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Health Authorities Contact List

As of April 1, 2009, the former nine regional health
authorities and two provincial health boards were
incorporated under Alberta Health Services. For
further information please contact:

2008/2009
Health Authorities

Contact
Phone Number

Alberta Health Services

780-342-2000

Chinook Regional Health Authority

Palliser Health Region

Calgary Health Region

David Thompson Regional Health Authority

East Central Health

Capital Health

Aspen Regional Health Authority

Peace Country Health

Northern Lights Health Region

Alberta Mental Health Board

Alberta Cancer Board

Health Quality Council of Alberta

403-297-8162
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CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2009

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management and have been reviewed and
approved by Senior Management. The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and the financial directives issued by Alberta Health and
Wellness, and of necessity include some amounts that are based on estimates and judgments.

To discharge its responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of financial reporting, management
maintains a system of internal accounting controls comprising written policies, standards and procedures,
a formal authorization structure, and satisfactory processes for reviewing internal controls. This system
provides management with reasonable assurance that transactions are in accordance with governing
legislation and are properly authorized, reliable financial records are maintained, and assets are
adequately safeguarded. The Authority has established a code of ethics and corporate directives, which
require communication of the code to employees.

The Authority members carry out their responsibility for the financial statements through the Audit and
Finance Committee. This Committee meets with management and the Auditor General of Alberta to
review financial matters, and recommends the financial statements to the Alberta Health Services Board
for approval upon finalization of the audit. The Auditor General of Alberta has free access to the Audit
and Finance Committee.

The Auditor General of Alberta provides an independent audit of the financial statements. His
examination is conducted in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and
includes tests and procedures, which allow him to report on the fairness of the financial statements
prepared by management.

[Original signed] [Original signed]
Dr. Stephen Duckett Les Tochor, CA
President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President Finance
- Alberta Health Services — Alberta Health Services
[Original signed]

Chris Mazurkewich, CA
Chief Financial Officer
- Alberta Health Services
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the Alberta Health Services Board
and the Minister of Health and Wellness

I have audited the statement of financial position of Chinook Regional Health Authority

(the Authority) as at March 31, 2009 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Authority’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Authority as at March 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Fred J. Dunn)
FCA
Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta
June 11, 2009

Chinook Regional Health Authority




CHINQQK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

MA.RCH 31,2009 For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(in thousands) (in thousands)

2009 2008

2009 2008
ASSETS
Current: Budget Actual Actual
Cash, cash equivalents and investments (Note 3) 5 22,467 $ 31,372 (Note 13)
Accm‘mts receivable 9.531 10,363 Revenue
Conuributions reccivable from Alberta Health and Wellness 483 9,654 L
Inventories 3,514 3,)528 Alberta Health and Wellness contributions (Note 14) $ 315776 3 321,559 $ 299,264
Prepaid expenses 802 1,765 Other government contributions (Note 15) 3,479 5,885 3,967
36,797 56,686 Fees and charges 11,766 19,887 18,398
Non-current cash, cash equivalents and investments (Note 3) 69,749 20277 Anm]ljary operations (Note 16) Sl 2019 Gt
Contributions receivable 824 26,617 Donations — AL —
Capital assets (Note 4) 193,617 190,482 Investment and other income (Note 17) 11,903 11,002 11,325
Other assets (Note 5) 13,935 10,256 Amortization of external capital contributions 13,437 14,373 13,820
TOTAL ASSETS $ 314,922 3 304,318
TOTALREVENUE 358,653 375,033 349,369
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current: Expenses (Schedule 1)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 33,778 $ 29,083 Inpatient acute nursing services 87,740 91,298 83,264
Accrued vacation pay 14,617 13,201 : . 9
Deferred contributions (Note 6) 23,563 24304 Em?r.gency o Ompa 11lent SCWICCS. o 21807 0.1
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 57 27 B e nelateEenvices S e )
73015 66615 Community-based care 33,463 38,050 29,576
Home care 20,055 22,058 18,204
Deferred contributions (Note 6) 724 589 Diagnostic and therapeutic services 64,938 68,721 63,019
Deferred capital contributions {Note 7) 67,292 42,359 Promotion, prevention and protection services 15,946 16,605 14,096
Long-term debt {Note 8) 57 - Administration 13,997 16,615 15,436
Deferred contributions — Healthy Aging Partnership (Note 9) 2,704 2,921 Information technology 12,716 11,087 10,759
Unamortized external capital contributions 175,170 174,095
Other liabilities 1,519 2,464 SRR g e S
319,481 - 785,043 Amortization of facilities and improvements 8,535 8,856 8,210
Net Assets (Liabilities):
Unrestricted TOTAL EXPENSES 368,035 394,018 352,676
Accumulated deficit (Note 11) (23,042) {2,084)
Accumulated net unrealized gains on investments (Note 2(a)(3)(v)) - 849 Deficiency of revenue over expenses 3 (9,382) $ (18,985) § (3,307)
Investment in capital assets 18,333 16,360
(4,709} 15,125
The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
Endowments 150 150
(4,559) 15,275

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 314,922 3 304,318

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these consolidated financial staiements.
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For the Year Ended March 31, 2009

(in thousands)

2009 2008
Accumulated net
Accumulated unrealized
Deficit gains/{losses) on Investment in
(Note 11) investments capital assets Sub-Total Endowments Total Total

Balance at beginning of year $ (2,084) § 849 § 16,360 § 15,125 § 150 $ 15275 § 18,813
Deficiency of revenues over expenses (18,985) - - (18,985) - (18,985) (3,307)
Contributed assets - - - - - - 408
Capital assets purchased (6,233) - 6,233 - - - -

with internal funds
Amortization of internally funded 2,732 g (2,732) g e = g

capital assets
Disposal of land - - - = g = (19)
Transfer related to the acquisition of plant equipment

from iternally funded to externally funded sources 1,612 = (1,612) = = = -
Repayment of long-term debt used

to fund capital assets (84) > 84 S S 5 -
Net unrealized losses on available for sale financial = (643) : (643) e (643) (799)

assets arising during the year
Transfer of net realized gains (losses) on investments to ‘

revenue (Note 2(a)(3)(v) - (206) - (206) - (206) 179
Balance at end of year §  (23,042) $ - 3 18333 § (47098 150 § (4559 % 15275

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended March 31, 2609
(in thousands)

2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 13)
Cash generated from {used hy):
Operating activities:
Deficiency of revenue over expenses $(9382) 5 (18985 % (3,307)
Non-<cash transactions:
Amortization (Schedule 1) 16,709 16,242 16,443
Gross amortization of external capital contributions {13,432) (14,373) {13,824)
Loss on disposal of assets S 870 3
(6.100) (16.246) {(685)
Changes in non-cash working capital account 17,017 (10,520) 4,515
Cash generated from (used by) operations 10,917 (26,766) 3,830
Investing activities:
Purchase of capital assets:
internally funded - equipment (3,499) (4,469) {4283
internally funded - facility and improvements {1,200) (1,764) (3,018)
externally fanded - equipment {2,864 {1,731) (6,189)
externally funded - facility and improvements (13,772) (12,442) (5,640}
debt funded - equipment - (170} (88)
Proceeds on sale of capital assets - 329 105
Proceeds on sale of investments - 10.724 11,185
Acquisition of investments - {11,586) (11,881)
Allocation (from} to current cash and investments (26,692) (49,458) 8,193
Capital assets transferred S - {408)
Changes in other asscts 3,014 {3.679) (2,415)
Changes in non-cash working capital account - 20,874 -
Changes in non-current contributions 24,214 25,793 (24,110}
Cash used by investing activities {20,79) (21,579) (34,694)
Financing activities:
Capital contributions received 12,324 40,381 31,260
Change in non-cash working capital accounts - - 209
Principal payments on long-term debt S {84) {209)
Proceeds from long-term debt = 170 88
Capital assets transferred - - 408
Changes in other liabihities 22 (945} 44
Change in non-current deferred contnbutions {390y {82) 1,287
Cash generated from financing activities 11,956 39.440 33,087
Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and investments 2.074 {8,503 2,223
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, beginning of year 31,372 31,372 29,149
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, end of'year (Note 3) § 33446 $ 22467 $ 31,372

The accompanying notes and schedul es are part of these financial statements.
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Note 1

CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Authority, Purpose and Operations

The Chinook Regional Health Authority (“the Authority™) was cstablished on June 24, 1994
under the Alberta Regional Health Authority Act, Chapter R-10, Revised Statutes of Alberta
2000, The Authority is exempt from the payment of income tax and is also a registered
charity under the Income Tax Act. Effective April 1, 2009 the Authority will be
disestablished and all the assets and liabilities will be transferred to Alberta Health Services
(Note 20).

The Authority delivers appropriate, accessible and affordable health services in Alberta,
operating programs that promote, protect, maintain, restore and enhance physical and mental
well-being,

The Authority’s operations include the following facilities and sites:

Rural Hospital/Health Centre Sites

= Chinook Health — Milk River Health Centre

»  Chinook Health — Pincher Creek Health Centre
e Chinook Health ~ Taber Health Centre

s Chinook Health - Fort Macleod Health Centre
¢ Chinook Health — Crowsnest Pass Health Centre
o Chinook Health — Raymond Health Centre

e Chincok Health - Cardston Health Centre

s Chinook Health - Magrath Health Centre

e  Chinovk Health - Coaldale Health Centre

»  Chinook Health — Piyami Heaith Centre

Community Health Sites:
Chinook Health — Lethbridge Community Health Site

Chinook Health - Vauxhall Community Health Site
Chincok Health — Taber Community Health Site

Chinook Health — Coaldale Community Health Site
Chinook Health — Raymond Comumunity Health Site
Chinook Health — Crowsnest Pass Community Health Site
Chinook Health — Magrath Community Health Site

s  Chinook Health — Pincher Creek Community Health Site

* 3 2 & & o @
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Note 1 Authority, Purpese and Operations (continued)

Other Sites/Locations;

e Chinook Regional Hospital

e Chinook Health — Children’s CARE Centre

¢ Chinook Health — Raymond Care Centre

e Chinook Health ~ Lethbridge Community Care Services
« Chinook Health — Community Mental Health

e Chinook Health — Population Health

These financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities and operations of any

voluntary or private facilities providing health services in the region, except as disclosed in
Note 18.

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices
(a) Basis of Presentation
(1) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and the reporting requirements of Alberta Health

and Wellness” Financial Directive 34.

(2) These financial statements were prepared on a consolidated basis and include the
following:

(i) The Authority uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its
50% interest in the Chinook Primary Care Network, a joint venture.

(ii) The Authority uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its
share in the Regional Shared Health Information Program (“RSHIP™).

(iii) The controlled foundations are not consolidated.

(3) These financial statements use the deferral method of accounting for contributions,
key elements of which are:

(i) Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenuc in the year receivable.

(ii) Externally restricted non-capital contributions are deferred and recognized as
revenue in the year the related expenses are incurred.

(iii) Externally restricted capital contributions are recorded as deferred capital
contribution until the amount is invested in capital assets. Invested amounts are
transferred to unamortized external capital contributions and recognized as revenue
in the period the related amortization expense of the capital asset is recorded.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(iv) Endowment and restricted contributions to purchase capital assets that will not be
amortized are recorded as direct increases to net assets.

(v) Investment income includes dividend and interest income, and realized and
unrealized investment gains and losses. Unrealized gains and losses on available-
for-sale financial assets are included directly in net assets or deferred contributions
as appropriate, until the asset is removed from the Statement of Financial Position or
it is determined that an impairment of these financial assets is other than temporary.
Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the
related expenses are incurred. Other unrestricted investment income is recognized
as revenue when eamed.

(vi) Donations and contributions in kind are recorded at fair value when such value can
reasonably be determined.

(b) Capttal Disclosure

Effective April 1, 2008, the Authority implemented new capital disclosure requircments
per section 1535 in the CICA Handbook. For operating purposes. the Authority defines
capital as including working capital and unrestricted net assets. For capital purposes, the
Authority defines capital as including deferred capital contributions, long term debt,
unamortized extemal capital contributions, and investment in capital assets.

The Authority’s objectives for managing capital are:

» In the short term to safeguard the Authority’s financial ability to continue to deliver
health services; and

e TIn the long term to plan and to build sufficient physical capacity to meet future needs
for health services.

The majority of the Authority’s operating funds are from Alberta Health and Wellness
which is paid on the first of each month. As a result, significantly less working capital is
required. The Authority monitors its working capital and cash flow forecasts.

Alberta Tealth and Wellness approves health care facilities based on long-term capital
plans and provides the majority of the funding through one-time capital grants. The
Authority funds the required equipment and systems by a combination of allocating a
portion of operating funds and obtaining external funding from charitable donations and
capital granis. The Authority borrows to finance capital investments related to ancillary
operations since Alberta Health and Wellness does not fund ancillary operations.

Where a health authority has incurred an accumulated deficit, legislation requires
submission of a deficit elimination plan (Note 11).

Chinook Regional Health Authority




Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(9]

@

Full cost

The Authority records the full cost of services for which it is responsible. Full cost
transactions comprise the following:

(1) Revenues that contracted health service operators eam from Ministry of Health and
Wellness designated fees and charges are recorded as fees and charges of the
Authority.  An equivalent amount is recorded as contracied health service operator
expense of the Authority.

(2) Alberta Health and Wellness direct payments to contracted health service operators
are recorded as revenue and a program expense as they represent part of the cost of
the Authority’s health programs costs.

(3) Fair value to use non-acute care facilities not owned by the Authority and provided to
the Authority at zero or nominal rent is recorded as other government contributions
and as program expenses.

(4) Other assets, supplies and service contributions that would otherwise have been

purchased are recorded as revenue and expenses, at fair value at the date of

contribution, when a fair value can be reasonably determined. Volunteers’
contributed services are not reported because a fair value cannot be reasonably
determined.

fd

Employee Future Benefits

The Authority participates in the Local Authorities Pension Pian. This multi-employer
defined benefit plan provides pensions for participating employees based on years of
service and earnings. Defined contribution plan accounting is applied where information
is insufficient to apply defined benefit plan accounting. Pension costs comprise the
employer’s contributions during the year, based on rates expected to provide benefits
payable under the pension plans. The Authority does not record its portion of the plan’s
deficit or surplus.

The Authority provides a defined benefit Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan to
senior executives. Costs of these benefits are actuarially determined using the projected
benefit method pro-rated on services, a market interest rate, and management’s best
estimate of expected costs and benefit coverage period. Net actuarial gains and losses of
the benefit obligation are amortized over the average remaining service life of the group.
Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefits earned in the fiscal year.
Prior service and other costs include amortization of past service costs on plan initiation,
amortization of actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability.
The plan is unfunded.

The Authority fully accrues its obligations for employee non-pension future benefits,
inchuding its self-insured extended health, dental and vision care plan.
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(e) Investments

®

Investments are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies described in
Note 2 ().

Transaction costs associated with the acquisition and disposal of investments are
expensed when incurred. The purchase and sale of investments are accounted for using
the trade date.

Financial Instruments

Initial measurement of financial instruments is at fair value and subsequent measurement
and recognition changes in value depend upon the classification. Financial assets
classified as “available-for-sale” are measured at fair value with changes in fair values
recognized in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets or deferred contributions until
realized, at which time the cumulative changes in fair value are recognized in the
Statement of Operations. “Loans and receivables™, and financial liabilities classified as
“other financial liabilities™ are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

The Authority has classified its financial assets and financial liabilities as follows:

Classification
Available-for-sale
Available-for-sale
Loans and receivables
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable, contributions receivable
Accounts payable

Long-term debt

The Authority does not use hedge accounting and accordingly, is not impacted by the
requirements of Section 3865 Hedges. The Authority as a Not-for-Profit Organization has
elected not to apply the standards for embedded derivatives in non-financial contracts.

When it is determined that an impairment of a financial instrument classified as
available-for-sale is other than temporary, the cumulative loss that had been recognized
directly in net assets or deferred contributions is removed and recognized in the
Statement of Operations even though the financial asset has not been derecognized.
{mpairment losses recognized in the Statement of Operations for a financial instrument
classified as available-for-sale are not reversed.

The carrying values of current cash, cash equivalents and investments, accounts
receivable, contributions receivable from Alberta Health and Weliness, and accounts
payable approximate their fair value because of the short term nature of these items. It is
management’s opinion that the Authority Is not exposed to significant interest, currency
or credit risks arising from its financial instruments.

Chinook Regional Health Authority




Note2  Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued) Note3  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

(g) Inventories 2009 2008
Fair Fair
In fune 2007, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (the “CICA”) issued a new Value Cost Value Cost
accounting standard, Section 3031 Inventories which provides guidance on the (in thousands)
recognition, measurement and disclosure of inventories. The standard provides specific
direction for not-for-profit organizations to record inventories held for consumption or Cash $75,566 $75,566 $25,282 $25,282
distribution at no charge at the lower of cost or current replacement cost. Guaranteed investment certificates 3,308 3,308 13,358 13,358
Bonds 10,922 10,905 10,882 10,515
The Authority adopted this new standard as of April 1, 2008, but did not adjust opening Equities 2,420 2,780 2,127 1,645
balances or restate prior periods because the adoption did not have a material impact.
$92,216 $92,559 $51,649 $50,800
Inventories for consumption or distribution at no charge are recorded at the lower of cost
(defined as moving average) and current replacement cost. All other inventories are Classified as:
recorded as the lower of cost (defined as moving average) and net realizable value. Current $22,467 $31,372
Non-current 69,749 20,277

(h) Capital Assets

) ) Total cash, cash equivalents and
Capital assets and work in progress are recorded at cost. investments. $92,216 351,649

Capital assets except land, construction in progress and art are amortized over their

cstimated usefitl Jives on a straight Jine basis as follows: (a) At March 31, 2009 management determined that an impairment of investments classified
S E S gl :

as available-for-sale was other than temporary and therefore a cumulative loss has been

Usefu] Life recognized in the Statement of Operations (Note 17).

. N o

Fandlipiosements RYSERITETE (b) Guaranteed Investment Certificates (“GIC’s”) maturing on April 22, 2009, April 30,

Buildings 20 - 40 years .
s : : 2009, May 28, 2009, and July 21, 2009 dates are guaranteed by the Canada Deposit

Building Service Equipment 10 - 25 years . ) . X . .

Equi . Insurance Corporation and bear interest at 3.44% paid annually. The effective yield of the

Zquipment 3 - 15 years

GIC’s is 3.44%.

Construction projects in progress are not amortized until the project is complete. Leases
transferring substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership of capital assets to the
Authority are accounted for as acquisitions of capital assets financed by long-term
obligations.

~
©
~

To optimize returns at an acceptable level of risk, management has established a policy
asset mix of 65% to 100% for fixed-income instruments, 0% to 25% for equities, and 0%
to 20% for cash and cash equivalents. Risk is reduced through asset ¢lass diversification,
diversification within each asset class and quality constraints on fixed-income and equity
instruments. At March 31, 2009 cash included a bank account balance of $72,572 (2008
- $18,969) that is managed by Alberta Infrastructure and therefore excluded from the
Authority’s policy asset mix. The Primary Care Network cash and GIC’s of §5,022
(2008 - $3,913) are also excluded from the Authority’s policy asset mix.

Measurement Uncertainty

¢l

=

The financial statements, by their nature, contain estimates and are subject to
measurement uncertainty. In order to determine whether an impairment of investments
classified as available-for-sale is other than temporary, management considers specific
factors including the nature and extent of the decrease in fair value of the investment
below cost and the underlying credit risk associated with holding investments, Capital
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives. The amounts recorded for
amortization of external capital contributions are based on estimates of the useful life of Government

(d) Fixed-income securities have an effective yield of 5.34% per year, and 5.23% per annum
for sccurities maturing between [ and 10 years, As at March 31, 2009, the fixed-income
securities have the following maturity structure:

related assets.  The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan obligation is based on of Canada et BT Forcign
actuarial calculations. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
1 to 5 years 49.30% 13.79% 47.94% 0.00%
5to 10 years 11.19% 49.54% 33.64% 53.85%
Over 10 years 39.51% 36.67% 18.42% 46.15%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

(e) Equities comprise publicly-traded securilies in major stock markets. Risk is reduced by
prudent security selection and sector rotation,
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Note 4 Capital Assets

2009 2008 Note 4 Capital Assets (continued)
Net Book Net Book
Value Value (a) Land

{in thousands}
Land at the Crowsnest Pass General and Auxiliary Hospital and Picture Butte Health

Buildings and improvements $ 130,884 $ 138,109 v i i i
Work in progress 21836 Ee Centre has been provided to the Authority at nominal value.
Equipment 17,629 17,728 )
Information systems 374 654 (b) Leased equipment
Software licenses 7,091 8,758
Leasehold improvements 850 935 Equipment was acquired through capital leases at a cost of $170 (2008 - $237) with
Land 4278 4,278 accwmulated amortization of $57 (2008 - $209).
Building service equipment 10,282 11,922
Land improvements 349 424
Other non-depreciable assets 44 44 Note 5 Other Assets
3 103,617 $ 190,482 2009 2008
(in thousands)
Cost Long-term receivable
Balance - . ”
— e Sugpo_ J\lelvnn;: options $ 11,057 $ 9,224
April 1, 2008 Transfers Additions Disposals 2009 Participating physicians s 10
(in thousands) (Grants receivable from East Central Health 957 S
- ) X ) (Note 21}
Buildings and improvements ~ $ 259,566 5 & $ - s 1722 § 257844 i
Wark in progress 7630 (124) 14330 . 21836 Other 50 50
Equipment 58,558 124 6,022 886 63,818 12,064 9,284
Information systems 10.808 - 127 - 10,935 o S e 3 Q
e T : 5 . B Deferred contract payments 1,871 972
Leasehold improvements 1,384 - = = 1,334
Land 4278 = 5 5 4278 3 13,935 $ 10,256
Building service equipient 17418 - - 995 16423
Land improvements 4488 - - S 4,488
Other n ¥ ble assets 44 - = - 44
The amounts included in the Supportive Living Options are recoverable as services are
3 376,946 H - s 2057 5 3603 $ 393919

rendered by the contracted health service provider over the life of the Continuing Care
Agreement. The Continuing Care Agreement is for an initial term of 20 years effective from
the date of commencement of operations, unless otherwise terminated. The deferred contract

Accumulated Amortization . N .
payments are amottized over the term of the related agreements. The average remaining term

Amortization .
Balance Cuivent year on Balance of the agreements at March 31, 2009 is 15.5 years.
April 1, 2008 dispasals Mareh 31, 2009

QLTS The Authority provided financial assistance to participating physicians to assist in a portion

of costs of the Sleep Apnea Clinic. Costs are reimbursed to the Authority over the term of the

Buildings and improvements S 121457 s 6,879 5 1376 s 126,960
Equiproerd 40,830 6.152 93 46,189 agreement.
[nformation sysiems 10.154 407 o 10,561
Software licenses 4014 1.764 - 5778
[Leasehold improvements 449 a5 - 534
Buikding service equipment 5496 880 235 6,141
Land improvenients 4064 ir) - 4439
N 186.464 $ 16,242 5 2,404 S 200,302
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Note 6 Deferred Contributions
Note 8 Long-term Debt

The balance at the end of the year is restricted for the following purposes: 2009 2008
2000 2008 (in thousands)
(in thousands)

Current: Obligations under capital leases $ 114 $ 27
Children’s health $ 860 $ 1,204 Less: current portion 57 27
Imnnumization programs 117 390
Mental health-innovations funds 1,427 2,951 3 57 3 -
Palliative care 301 467
Pandemic supplies 849 1,393 The Authority is commitied to making payments as follows:

Physician on call 928 1,905
Primary carc network 4,745 4,365 Year ending March 31
Seniors” health 7,051 7,056 2010 $ 57
Stanford management training 128 245 2011 57
Stroke strategy 907 615 T s
Telehealth programs 722 444 e
St 5,528 3,260 The capital lease expires on March 31, 2011,
23,563 24,304
Non-current:
Donations 724 589 Note § Deferred Contributions — Healthy Aging Partnership
$ 24,287 $ 24,893 Funds received from Alberta Health and Wellness for the purpose of providing supportive
living options to the Authority’s residents are recorded as long-term deferred contributions.
Note 7 Deferred Capital Contributions During the year the Authority amortized $217 (2008 - $229) of the Healthy Aging
Partnership program to community and home-based services and recognized an equal amount
The balance at the end of the year is restricted for the following purposes: as revenue under Alberta Healih and Weliness Contributions.
2009 2008 2009 2008
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Alberta Health and Wellness contributions (Note 14) $ 196 $ 199
Equipment replacement $ 1,852 $ 2,681 Investment and other income 21 30
Improvement of capital assets 65,440 39,678
3 217 $ 229

S 67292 § 42359
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Note 10  Long-Term Employee Benefits Note 11 Accumulated Deficit

. . The Authority has reported an accumulated deficit at March 31. Per Alberta Regulati
E Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan y D gulation
(a) uppie: v 2009 2008 15/95 of the RHA Act, Alberta Health Services will provide the Minister with a plan, in
{in thousands) writing, that is satisfactory to the Minister, to eliminate the net accwrnulated deficit of all

health regions combined, within three years of incurrence.

Accrued benefit obligation

Accrued obligation, beginning of year $ 1,182 $ 821 Note 12 Commitments and Contingencies
Current service cost 54 60
Interest cost 70 52 (a} The Authorily has outstanding contractual commitments related to facilities and
Prior service cost - 130 improvements projects in the amount of $21,400.
Actuarial (gain) loss [€19)) 149
Benefit payments (32) (30) (b} The Autherity is contractuaily committed to future operating lease payments until 2013
as follows:
Net accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 957 $ 1,182
Year ending March 31 (in thousands)
Reconciliation of funded status of accrued benefit asset/liability 5010 5 o
- S 2 5
Net accrued benefit obligation 3 957 3 1,182 2011 o
Unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) 317 (149) 5012 e
Unrecognized prior service costs - (234) 2013 271
Reported liability 3 1,274 3 799 3 2,170
Current service cost $ 54 $ 60 (c) The Authority has not recognized a liability of certain legal obligations, primarily special
Interest cost 70 52 handling for the removal and disposal of encapsulated ashestos from facilities and
Amortization of prior service costs 234 130 equipment. The fair valuc cannot be reasonable estimated as the settlement dates are
Amortization of net actuarial loss 149 173 unknown.
Net benefit cost $ 507 $ 415 (d) The Authority, in the conduct of its normal activities, is named a defendant in various
legal proceedings. While the ultimate outcome of these proceedings cannot be predicted
2009 2008 at this time, it is the opinion of management that adequate provision for these
proceedings have been made in the Authority’s accounts. It is believed that the resolution
Discount rate 8.00% 5.75%, of the .pmceedings will not have a material effect on -lhe financial positign of the
Expected average remaining service life of employees 3 years 5 years Authority, however, should any loss result from the resolution of these pmceedu.lgs, such
Salary increase - 5.00% 5.00% amounts would be expensed as the related amounts become known to the Authority.
The plan is unfunded. (e) The Authority has been named as a defendant in a legal action in respect of increased
long-term care accommodation charges levied effective August 1, 2003, The claim has
(b) Pension expense been filed against the Province of Alberta and the Regional Health Authorities. The
amount of the claim is in excess of $130 million based on the amount of the increase in
Pension expense related to the Local Authorities Pension Plan in these financial accommodation charges levied, which came into effect August 1, 2003. The outcome of
statements is equal to the Authority’s annual contributions payable of $10,861 for the the claim is not determinable.
year ended March 31, 2009 (2008 - $9,502). At December 31, 2008, the Local
Authorities Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $4,413,971 (2008 —deficiency of (f) The Authority contracts on an ongoing basis with voluntary and private health service
$1,183,334). operators to provide health services in the region (Note 18(g)). The Authority has
contracted for services in the year ending March 31, 2010 similar to those provided by
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan expense in these financial statements is equal to these operators in 2009.

the net benefit cost of $507 for the year ended March 31, 2009 (2008 - $415).
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Note 13 Budget (io thousands) Note 17  Investments and Other Income
The budget was prepared by management and submitted to the Minister of Health and 2009 2008
Wellness. Over the course of the fiscal year, the Minister provided additional funding of (in thousands)
$2,084. The Board has allocated these additional resources to address funding expectations.
Investment income earned:
Unrestricted resources $ 1,083 $ 1,808
Note 14 Alberta Health and Wellness Contributions Other than temporary impairment of investments (343 -
{Note 3)
2009 2008 Restricted resources for capital assets 11 22
(in thousands) Resources held for endowment 6 7
757 1,837
Unrestricted contributions $ 306,093 $ 286,801
Other income:
Transfers from deferred contributions 12,041 9,769 Transfers from deferred contributions 4,735 3,345
Healthy aging partnership (Note 9) 196 199 Other 5,521 6,165
Primary care network (Note 18{c)) 3,229 2,495 11,013 11.347
Less amounts deferred:
$ 321,559 $ 299,264 Restricted for capital asset acquisition {in (22)
Note 15 Other Government Contributions 11,002 S 11,325
2009 2008 Investment income is comprised of interest and dividends, gains or losses on the sale of
(in thousands) investments, and other than temporary impairment of investments.
Persons with developmental disabilities South Alberta Other income is comprised of recoveries from sources external to the Authority for
Board $ 2,476 3 2,281 compensation, and materials and supplies.
Transition grant from East Central Health (Note 21) 1,644 -
Transfers from deferred contributions 791 867
Alberta Infrastructure 240 143 Note 18 Related Parties
5,151 3,291
(a) Province of Alberta aud Health Regions
Fair value of rent less rent charges for non-acute care
facilities used by the Authority 734 676 The Minister of Health and Wellness appoints the members of Alberta Health
Services Board. The Board is economically dependant on the Ministry of Health
$ 5,885 3 3,967 and Wellness since the viability of its operations depends on contributions from
the Ministry.
Note16  Ancillary Operations The Authority had the following transactions with other health regions recorded
2009 2008 on the Statement of Operations and Financial Position at the amounts of
Excess of consideration agreed upon between the related parties:
Revenue Excess of 2009
Re Direct Amortizat |,on Tumf N over Revenue over Revenue EXPE‘HSG Receivable Payable
evenue Expenses Expense Expenses Expenses Revenue Expenses =
(in thousands)
(in thousunds) Other Regional Health Authorities
Parking operations $ 385 s 56 $ 128 §257 5 407 264 and Provincial Health Boards $ 3749 §__ 1,130 $ 2497 8 -
Nou-patient food
services 1498 1.749 3 1752 (254) 1437 184
Laundry uperations 79 78 i 79 - 85 .
Qther operations 87 113 = 113 (26) 138 2 2008
§3,049 52,062 Si0 52,072 5(23) 52,067 5450 Revenue Expense Receivable Payable
(in thousands)
. . Lo . Qther Regional Healtlh Authorities
Ancillary expenses are reported in support services in the Statement of Operations. and Provincial Health Boards S 1.808 $ 1808 5 1241 $ 1303
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Note 18 Related Parties (continued)
(b) Regional Shared Health Information Program (“RSHIP™)

The seven nen-metro health regions: Palliser Health Region, David Thompson Health
Region, Aspen Health Region, Northern Lights Health Region, Peace Country Health
Region, Chinook Regional Health Authority, East Central Health, have entered into an
agreement under the name Regional Shared Health Information Program (RSHIP), to
develop and implement a common, integrated health information system. This standard
system will integrate with Alberta’s Provincial Electronic Health Record (EHR)
initiative.

2009 2008
{in thousands)
Alberta Health and Wellness Funding $ 45 $ 683
Health Authority contribution 1,036 1,983

3 1,081 3 2.666

The Authority’s proportionate share of expenditures and costs incurred directly are as

follows:
2009 2008
(in thousands)
Expenses $ 958 $ 1,442
Capital assets 123 1,224

3 1,081 $ 2,666

The Authority accounts for its interest in RSHIP on a proportionate consolidation basis.

Note 18 Related Parties (continued)
(¢) Primary Care Network

The Authority’s interest in the Chinook Primary Care Network, a joint venture, is
included in the financial statements under the proportionate consolidation method.

Authority’s 50% Share
2009 2008

(in thousands)
Statement of Financial Position:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments g 5,022 $ 3,913
Accounts recelvable 37 639
Prepaid expenses 252 -
Capital assets 3 223
$ 5,314 $ 4,775

Accounts payable and accrued Habilities 3 320 $ 187
Deferred contributions 4,743 4,365
Unamortized external capital contributions - 223
Accumulated deficit (3) -
Investments in capital assets 252 -

$ 5,314 $ 4,775

Statement of Operations:

Revenue (Note 14) $ 3.229 $ 2,495
Expenses 2,980 2,495
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 249 $ =

{d) Foundations

The Authority exercises control aver the following Foundations by virtue of its
ability to appoint a majority of the voting members of the Boards of Directors.
These Foundations were established under the Regional Health Authorities Act
and are registered charities under the Income Tax Act. The controlled
Foundations are not consolidated in these financial statements.  Financial
information for these Foundations (in thousands) s as follows:

2009 2008
Assets __Liabilities  Net Assels Assets  Liabilities  Net Assets
Crowsnest Pass Health Foundation $246 $(3) 5243 $271 $- 5271
Cardston and District Health Foundation 17 1y 6 28 - 28
North County Health Foundation 49 - 49 74 (19} 55
Fort Macleod and District Health Foundation 74 - 74 76 19 37
Windy Slopes Health Foundation 71 (1 60 78 { 6) 72
2009 2008
Revenue Expenses  Excess/Deficit  Revenue Expenses Excess/Deficit
Crowsnest Pass Health Foundation $163  $(19D) $(28) $172 $(128) $44
Cardston and District Health Foundation 75 97) @2 12 114y @)
North County Health Foundation 30 3e) {6} 81 n 10
Fort Macleod and District Health Foundation 67 {30) 17 75 (36) 29
Windy Slopes Health Foundation 128 (141) (13} 180 (212) 32
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Note 18 Related Parties (continued)

Contributions Received by Health Authority Resources held by Foundation

Year Ended March 31 Year Ended March 31, 2009
2009 2008 Externally Restricted Unrestricted
Crowsnest Pass Health Foundation $157 397 $209 $34
Cardston and Digirict Health Foundation 7l 89 i S
North County Health Foundation 15 50 3 46
Fort Macleod and District Health Foundation 20 19 5 69
Windy Slopes Health Foundation 71 137 1 49

The value of administrative support provided to the above Foundations for the year ended March 31 s
2009 was $103 (2008 - $98). Of this amount, $14 was receivable from the Foundations at year end
(2008 - $38).

(e) Other Foundations

The Authority has an economic mterest in the Chinook Regional Hospital Foundation and
the Taber and District Health Foundation by virtue of its representation on the Board of
Directors.  The Foundations were established to raise funds for use in the respective
community. The Foundations were continued under the Regional Health Authorities Act
and are registered charities under the Income Tax Act. Financial information for these
Foundations (in thousands) is as follows:

2009 2008
Assets  Liabilities Net Assets Assets  Liabititics ~ Net Agsets
Chinook Regional Hospital Foundation $4.707 N7y $4,590 $5.086 $0150) $4.936
‘Taber and District Health Foundation 933 @] 926 264 [©)] 959

Conuibutions Received by Health Authorit Resources held by Foundation

Year Ended March 31 Year Ended March 31, 2009
2009 2008 Externally Restricted Unrestricted
Chinook Regional Hospital Foundation $317 $392 $4.124 $466
Taber and District Health Foundation 51 109 606 320

The value of administrative support provided to the above Foundations for the year ended March 31, 2009
was $388 (2008 - $301). Of this amount, $92 was receivable from the Foundations at year end (2008 -
$115).

(f) Society of Friends of the Lethbridge Regional Hospital (the “Society™)

The Authority significantly influences the Society through its provision of administrative
and financial services and by representation on the Board. The Society is incorporated
under the Societies Act of Alberta and operates the gift shop, telephone and television
rentals, and other various fund-raising activities. All funds earned are used to support the
activities of the Lethbridge Regional Hospital Site of the Authority by transferring funds
through the Lethbridge Regional Hospital Foundation.

As at March 31, 2009, $59 (2008 - $56) was due to the Authority.
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Note 18

Note 19

Note 20

Related Parties (continued)
(g) Contracts with Health Service Providers
The Authority has an econoniic interest through its confracts with voluntary and private

health service operators to provide health services in the Authority. Funding was
provided as follows:

Dircer
Alberta Fecs
Health and
Direct and Charges Full
Regional Wellness and Other Cost
Funding Funding [ncome Adjustments Total
(in thousands)
2009
Voluntary health service providers  $ 16,689 3 - $ 3072 $ - $ 19761
Private health scrvice providers 49,223 - 4,757 - 53,980
§ 65912 $ - 3 7829 by - § 73741
2008
Voluntary health service providers  § 14,516 $ = $ 2948 $ - $ 17464
Private health service providers 38,776 - 4,661 - 43437
S 53292 3 - $  7.609 $ - $ 60,901

Trust Funds

The Authority receives funds in trust from Alberta Health and Wellness for the Chinook
Primary Care Network. This initiative is a trilateral agreement between the Alberta Medical
Association, the Regional Health Authority, and Alberta Health and Wellness. Family
physicians in communities in Southwestern Alberta are identifying ways to strengthen the
services and care they have always delivered to their patients through the Chinook Primary
Care Network. During the year, the Authority disbursed all funds held and received to the
Chinook Primary Care Network.

The Authority also receives funds in trust from Ladies Auxiliary and from Society of Friends.
The Authority invests these funds on behalf of the organizations. At March 31, 2009 the
Authority held $200 in trust for Ladies Auxiliary and $100 in trust for Society of Friends.
These amounts are not reflected in these financial statements.

New Governance Structure

On May 15, 2008, the Minister of Health and Wellness restructured the governance model of
heatth services delivery in Alberta. A single common board replaced the board members of
each of Alberta’s nine Regional Health Authority boards, Alberta Mental Health Board,
Alberta Cancer Board and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission (AADAC).
Effective April 1, 2009, all of these entities including the Authority but excluding East
Central Health will be disestablished and all of the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of
these entities including the Authority, will be assumed by East Central Health whose name
will change to Alberta Health Services (“AHS”).

Chinook Regional Health Authority




Note 21 Transition and Restructuring Costs

As at March 31, 2009, the Authority recorded transition costs and restructuring charges in the CHINOOK REGIONAL MEALTH AUTHORITY Schedule 1
Statement of Operations. The charges consist of severance costs and termination benefits, and CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT
other applicable transition expenses. In the Statement of Operations, these charges are included FOR THE YEAR ENDED M;xRCH 31. 2000 =
in Administration, Support Services, Facility-Based Continuing Care Services, and Inpatient (in thousands) *
Acute Nursing Services.
Severance-
Related Other
Charges Charges Total 2009 2008
(thousands of dollars) Budget Aol Actal
Liability as at March 31, 2008 $ - $ - 3 - sl
?;;g?;;tsszggzsgiing the year (552233) (116643 (66887; S Lk (s $ i $ - s 1o
Liability as at March 31, 2009 3 - 3 - - Contracts with health service operators (Note 18 (g}) 60,809 73,741 60,901
’ Drugs and gases 5,782 5,714 6,154
) Medical and surgical supplies 9,896 10,995 9,440
Unfuncp:d Supplementa] . Other comractedgservices 21,385 26,341 24,373
Executive Retirement Plan 3 = $ 957 8 957
Interest on long-term debt 11 3 11
. e Other* 40,842 40,851 38,301
East Central Health received $80 million in funding trom Alberta Health and Wellness for the Amortization:
costs of AHS transitioning and the Authority has recorded a receivable from East Central Health Capital equipment — internally funded 3.033 2,656 2,364
for the transition costs incurred as described above. Capital equipment — exiernally funded 5;198 5.669 5.854
The transition grant restrictions include payments for the unfunded status of the Authority’s I-ac?m.[es - fmproxiemems - mtemallyvfundcd . 4 e
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. The Authority has recorded a non-current receivable e .and improvements ~ externally funded £l gl 7970
from East Central Health for the amount of the accrued benefit obligation at the end of the year. Loss on disposal of assels 5 870 3
$ 368,035 $ 394,018 $ 352,676
Comparative Figures
Certain 2008 figures have been reclassified to conform to the 2009 presentation.
*Included in other expense are the following:
Approval of Financial Statements Supplies $ 18,122 3 18,566 $ 16,655
Minor equipment and maintenance 9,173 9,047 8,746
These financial statements have been approved by the Alberta Health Services Board. Travel 4,575 4,683 4,097
Utilities 6,160 5,858 5,789
Other 2812 2,697 3,014
$ 40,842 3 40,851 $ 38,301
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Schedule 2
CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
Other -g 2 g
Base Other Cash Non-Cash 5% 5
FTE's ® Salary Benetits Benefits ‘" Subtotal A « Total FTE's @ Total
Board Chair
Ken Hughes ~ AHS 0.88 $- §- $- $- - $- $- - $ -
Jack Ady 0.12 - 7 | 8 - - 8 [.00 36
Board Members *

Jack Ady — AHS 0.88 5 5 - - - - - - _
Pierre Crevolin — AHS 0.21 - s = S 5 - - . B
Catherine Roozen — AHS 0.63 - - - - - - = s =
Linda Hohol — AHS 0.88 - - - - - - = S -
John Lehners — AHS 0.88 - - - - - - = s =
lrene Lewis — AHS 0.88 - - - - - - - = =
Don Sieben — AHS (.88 - - - - - - - s 5
Lori Andreachuk — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - = 5
Gord Bontje — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - - =
Teri Lynn Bougie — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - = =
Jim Clifford ~ AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - = 5
Strater Crowfoot — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - - S
Tony Franceschini — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - - -
Andreas Laupacis - AHS 0.33 - - - - c = - - -
Gord Winkel -~ AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - - -
Arthur Sanford 0.12 - 2 - 2 - - 2 1.00 9
Beverley Patterson 0.12 - 3 - 3 - - 3 1.00 8
Donna Bier 0.00 - - - - - - - 1.00 7
Douglas Schindeler 0.12 - 3 - 3 - - 3 1.00 7
Inez Kelly 0.12 - 1 - 1 - - | 1.00 8
James Farr 0.00 - - - - - - - 1.00 8
Lloyd Hickman 0.12 - 3 - 3 - - 3 1.00 8
Phyllis Bishoff 0.12 - 3 - 3 - - 3 1.00 6
Roy Reti 0.12 - 2 - 2 - - 2 1.00 8
Sam Marra 0.12 - 4 - 4 - - 4 1.00 13
Thaine Olsen 0.12 - 3 - 3 - - 3 1.00 8

9.96 $- $ 31 $1 $32 - $ - $32 12.00 %126
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Schedule 2 (continued)
CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
Y
cE 3
P! =
Other Other <3 g
Base Cash Non-Cash 373 B
FTE's Salary Benefits ¢ Benefits " Subtotal “ = = Total FTE's ™ Total
Board Direct Reports ™
President and Chief Executive Officer ~AHS™ 0.02 § - g~ $ - $- - $- $- ~ $-
Interim Chief Executive Officer — AHS @
0.88 - - - - - = - R
Chief Executive Officer " 1.00 385 - 332 717 - - 717 1.00 565
CEQ Direet Reports ™
Chief Clinical Officer 100 338 - - 338 - - 338 1.U0 348
Chief Operating Officer™ 0.92 97 - 206 303 l 523 §26 1.00 382
Chief Information Officer ™ 1.00 160 - 26 186 - - 186 0.97 177
Director Corporate Communications ™ 1.00 124 - 22 143 - - 143 1.00 121
Director Corporate Fundraising 1.00 104 - 25 129 e - 129 0.54 64
Director Corporate Planning & Support 1.00 114 - 20 134 - - 134 1.00 127
Director Workforce Plauning 1.00 118 - 24 142 - - 142 0.79 110
Executive Director Labour Relations 1.00 124 - 24 148 - - 148 1.00 142
Executive Director People Strategies 0.93 109 8 23 140 - - 140 1.00 141
Executive Director Special Projects 0.22 27 3 6 36 - - 36 0.52 84
Foundations Consultant ' 0.22 28 - 6 34 I 35 89 0.50 71
Manager of Executive Suite 1.00 88 - 18 106 - - 106 1.00 97
12.19 1813 H 732 2,556 2 578 3,134 11.32 2,429
Total Board and Exccutive 22.15 $1.813 $42 $733 $ 2,588 2 $578 $ 3,166 23.32 $2.555
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CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
8% g
Other Other = 5
Base Cash Non-Cash 3 2 %
FTE's @ Salary ® Bencfits Benefits “* Subtotal « Total FTE's® Total
Board and executive 22.15 $ 1,813 $42 $ 733 $2,588 2 $578 53,106 23.32 $ 2,555
Management reporting
to CEQ direct reports 12.22 1,655 I 309 1,965 - - 1,965 11.26 1,781
Other managers 100.07 10,515 66 2,196 12,777 3 165 12,942 97.23 11,825
Medical doctors 5.04 1,561 S 104 1,665 - - 1,665 5.08 1,707
Regulated nurses:
RNs, RPNs, grad
nurses 771.99 58,324 9,317 11,879 79,520 - = 79,520 738.36 72,267
LPNs 172.21 8,562 871 1,600 11,033 - = 11,033 170.91 9,651
Other health technical
and professional 561.61 40,075 2,710 8,333 S1,118 - - S5LEIS 542.48 44,540
Unregulated health
service 181.78 6,535 817 1,262 8,614 - - 8,614 175.91 7,411
Other staff 902.87 39,518 1,572 8,086 49,176 4 62 49,238 884.79 45,313
Total 2,729.94 $ 168,558 $ 15,396 $ 34,502 $ 218,456 9 $ 80S $219.261 2.649.34 $ 197,050
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Schedule 2 (continued)
CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

2009 2008
Accrued Change in Accrued
Current Other Benefit Accrued Benefit
Service SERP Obligation Benetit Obligation

Cost Costs Total Total March 31, 2008 Obligation March 31, 2009
Chief Executive Officer $33 $277 $310 $253 3515 $(121) $ 394
Chief Operating Officer 21 169 190 153 308 (74) 231
Retired Executive - 7 7 9 362 30 332
$ 54 $453 '$507 $415 $1,182 $ (225) 5957
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Schedule 2 (continued)

CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF SALARIES, AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

a, Full-time equivalent (FTE) is determined at the rate of 2,022.75 annual hours for each full-time employee. Total actual discrete number of individuals
employed during the year was 4,529 (2008 — 4,413). “Discrete” number of individuals refers to all employees who were in the system during the fiscal year.

b. Base salary includes pensionable base pay.
c. Other cash benefits include honoraria, bonuses, overtime, and lump sum payments.
d. Other non-cash benefits include:

e Employer’s current service and other costs of supplemental executive retirement plan per (f) below.

e Share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of employees including pension, health care, dental coverage, vision coverage,
out-of-country medical benefits, group life insurance, accidental disability and dismemberment insurance, long and short term disability plans.

e  Employer’s share of the cost of additional benefits including sabbaticals or other special leave with pay.

€. Severance includes direct or indirect payments to individuals upon termination, which are not included in other benefits.
f. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP)

Under the terms of the supplemental executive retirement plan, executives may receive supplemental retirement payments. SERP costs are not cash payments in
the period but are the period expense for rights to future compensation. SERP costs shown reflect the actuarially estimated cost to provide pension income over the
post-employment period. SERP provides future pension benefits to participants based on years of service and earnings. See also accounting policy Note 2(d)
Employee Future Benefits and Note 10 Long-term Employee Benefits.

Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefit earned in the fiscal year. Other SERP costs include amortization of past service costs on plan
initiation, amortization of actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability.

The change in the accrued benefit obligation includes current service cost, interest accruing on the actuarial liability and the full amount of any actuarial gain or loss

in the period.

g OnMay 15,2008, the Authority’s board, along with the other regional health authority boards, was replaced by the Alberta Health Services (*AHS’) intenim board
according to Ministerial Order 50/2008. On December 1, 2008, an additional 8 panel members were appointed to complete the 15 member board. Salaries and
benefits of the AHS board members are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of East Central Health.
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Schedule 2 (continued)
CHINOOK REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF SALARIES, AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2609

h. Board Direct Reports reflect FTE’s and costs for the entire 08-09 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at May 15, 2008.
i The Interim CEO - AHS was appointed effective May 15, 2008 to manage the operations of the health regions, provineial boards and Alberta Alcohol and

Drug Abuse Commission and to effect their transition to a single provincial health authority. Salary and benefits of the Interim CEO - AHS are reported and
disclosed in the financial statements of East Central Health. The President and CEO — AHS was appointed effective March 23, 2009, Salary and benefits of
the President and CEO ~ AHS are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of East Central Health.

] Effective July 8, 2008 the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority transitioned to the Chief Operating Officer Community and Rural — AHS. Costs incurred
are reported in the accounts of the Authority.

k. CEO Direct Reports reflect FTE’s and costs for the 08-09 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at July 8, 2008. Any title changes
subsequent to July 8, 2008 are noted in footnotes (1) to (o) below.

L Effective February 28, 2009 the incumbent received severance. Based on future SERP compensation benefits described under (f) above, the retired
individual will receive monthly pension income of $1,515 over an indefinite term.

m. Effective February 5, 2009 the Chief Information Officer of the Authority transitioned to the Vice President, Rural and Primary Care Services — AHS. Costs
incurred are reported in the accounts of the Authority.

n. Effective March 3, 2009 the Director of Corporate Communications of the Authority transitioned to the Service Lead, Clinical Programs and Services - AHS.
Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of the Authority.

0. Effective September 15, 2008 the incumbent received severance.
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
Financial Statements

March 31, 2009

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management and have been reviewed and
approved by Senior Management. The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and the financial directives issued by Alberta Health and Wellness,

PALLISER HEALTH REGION and of necessity include some amounts that are based on estimates and judgment.

To discharge its responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of financial reporting, management maintains a
system of internal accounting controls comprising written policies, standards and procedures, a formal
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS authorization structure, and satisfactory processes for reviewing internal controls. This system provides
management with reasonable assurance that transactions are in accordance with governing legislation and are
properly authorized, reliable financial records are maintained and assets are adequately safeguarded.

March 31 , 2009 The Region members carry out their responsibility for the financial statements through the Audit and Finance
Committee. This Committee meets with management and the Auditor General of Alberta to review financial
matters, and recommends the financial statements to the Alberta Health Services Board for approval upon
finalization of the audit. The Auditor General of Alberta has free access to the Audit and Finance Committee.

The Auditor General of Alberta provides an independent audit of the financial statements, His examination is
conducted in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and includes tests and other
procedures which allow him to report on the fairness of the financial statements prepared by management.

Statement of Management Responsibility [Original signed] [Original signed]
Auditor’s Report
Statement of Financial Position Chief Executive Officer- Alberta Health Services Chief Financial Officer— Palliser Health Region
Statement of Operations Dr. Stephen Duckett Seamas O’Fuarthain

June 11, 2009 June 11, 2009

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements
Schedule 1 - Schedule of Expenses by Object [Original signed]
Schedule 2 - Schedule of Salaries and Benefits

Chief Financial Officer— Alberta Health Services
Chris Mazurkewich
June 11, 2009
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The official version of this Report of the Auditor General,
and the information the Report covers, is in printed form.

PALLISER HEALTH REGION
STATEMENT OF FINANCTAL POSITION
March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)
2009 2008
(as restated
H ’ - note 19Y
Auditor’s Report NI
Current assets:
To the Members of the Alberta Health Services Board Cash, cash equivalents and investments (note 3) $32,155 $30.338
and the Minister of Health and Wellness Accounts receivable 7,867 6,429
Contributions receivable from Alberta Health and Wellness 298 1,921
Inventories 1419 1,239
I bave audited the statement of financial position of Palliser Health Region (the Authority) as at Prepaid expenses 572 1,241
March 31, 2009 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the 42311 41,168
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on Non-current advances - continuing care partnerships (note 4) 8381 8,785
my audit. Other assets (note 5) 310 299
Capital assets (note 6) 80,735 77,635
I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the TOTAL ASSETS $131,737 $127 887
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by s
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Current Liabilities: S
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $15,570 $14,228
In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial Aczued vacan%n pay 18’?22 éﬁi
position of the Authority as at March 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows Deforred contributions (ote 7) 3?679 35’91 2
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. ' ’
The financial statements as at March 31, 2008 and for the year then ended were audited by other DEferrEd.contnbut»lons i C?"“““"‘% care partnerships (note 4) 8,381 8785
. o . . . . Unamortized external capital contributions 72,365 68,691
auditors who expressed an opinion without reservation on those statements in their report dated :
May 16, 2008.
Net assets:
Accumulated surplus (note 9):
Unrestricted net assets 5942 878
Internally restricted net assets: - 4,675
[Original signed by Fred J. Dunn] Investment in capital assets 8370 8,944
FCA 14312 14,497
Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $131,737 $127,887

June 11, 2009

Comritments and contingencies (note 10)

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION PALLISER HEALTH REGION
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ended March 31, 2009 Year ended March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars) (thousands of dollars)

2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2008
2009 2009 2008 Accunmlated Surpjus Investment Cumulative Total] Total
Budget Actual Actual Ungestricted Internally in Capital NetUnrealized
(as resiated Restricted Assets Losses on
(note 11} -note 19) (note 9) (note 9 Investments
{as restated
- 9
Revenue: L
Alberta Health & Welln?ss f:omnbutions (note 12) $183,381 $185,398 $175,340 Deficiency of revenue over 3185) 5 s - P siss|  snesm)
Other government contributions (note 13) 3,505 4,660 3284 expenses
Fees and charges 18,077 19,636 16,025
Ancillary operations (note 14) 1,017 1,163 1,091 Capital assets purchased with
Donations 300 468 285 internal funds (1.954) . 1,954 =
Investment and other income (note 15) 4,005 3,138 4955 o .
Amortization of external capital contributions 5,555 6,629 5436 ?;;::;Z;T; oniniernally funded 2,528 (2,528) - - -
215,840 21,092 206416
Transfer Ijmm intemnally restricted 4675 @675 . . } .
Expenses (schedule 1): to umrestricted
Inpatient acute nursing services 56,683 54,184 54,099 ) . .
_ . Cunmulative net realized losses on investments:
Emergency and outpatient services 13,119 12,735 12382 Unrealized losses on available
Facility-based continuing care services 26,133 25,996 23598 for sale financial assets, arising - - - (1987 (1.987)| -
Ground Ambulance Discovery Project 4,397 4,789 4405 during the year
Community-based care 7,197 7,885 6,869 .
Home care 9,861 10,177 9321 Transfer of net nrealized
;! N X . losses on available for sale
Diagnostic and therapeutic services 41,752 41,672 37,631 finncial assets o revenue (ot - - - 1,987 1,987 -
Promotion, prevention and protection services 5,91 6,215 5927 2(0)
Administration 9,413 9,923 8,653
Information technology 5,435 5,039 5237 Net change 5064 @679 679 : assy G688
Support services 38,129 sbieile 37.597 Netassets, beginning of year 878 4,675 8,084 = 15207 17,185
Amortization of facilities and improvements 3,030 3,290 2985
221,140 221,277 209,104 Netassets, end of year $5.942 $__- $8.370 3 - $14.312 $14.497
The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
Deficiency of revenue over expenses ($5,300) ($185) ($2,688)

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2009 2008
Budget Actual Acmal
{as restated
{note 11) ~rote 19)
Cash generated from (used by):
Operating activities:
Deficiency of revenue over expenses ($5,300) ($185) ($2,688)
Non cash transactions:
Amortization of capital equipment - intemally funded 2600 2,528 2,369
Amortization of capital equipment - externally funded 2,525 3,339 2,451
Amort. of facilities & improvements - externally funded 3030 3,290 2,985
Amortization of external capital contributions (5,555) (6,629) (5,436)
Change in non-cash working capital - 1,439 (1,563)
(2,700} 3,782 (1,882)
Investing activities:
Purchase of capital assets:
Internally funded - equipment {2,600) (1,954) (1,098)
Externally funded - equipment (1,992) (5,070) (3,662)
Externally funded - facilities and improvements (3,055) (5,233) (6,186)
(Increase) decrease in other assets - an 23
(7,647) (12,268) (10,923)
Financing activities:
Capital contributions received 5047 10,303 9,848
5047 10,303 9,848
Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents & investments (5,300) 1,817 (2,957)
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, begiming of year 30,338 30,338 33,205
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, end of year 325038 $32,155 $30,338

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009

{thousands of dollars)

1.

Authority, Purpose and Operations

Palliser Health Region (“the Region™) was established Tune 24, 1994 under the Regional Health
Authorities Act, and is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and exempt from payment of
income tax. Effective April 1, 2009 the Region will be disestablished and all the assets and liabilities will
be transferred to Alberta Health Services (Note 17).

The Region delivers appropriate, accessible and affordable health services in Alberta, operating programs
that promote, protect, maintain, restore and enhance physical and mental well-being.

The Region’s operations include the following facilities and sites:

Bassano Health Centre

Bow Island Health Centre and Alfred Egan Home

Bow Island Community Health Office

Brooks Health Centre

Brooks Home Care Office

Medicine Hat Regional Hospital

Medicine Hat Community Health Office - Dunmore Road

Medicine Hat Community Mental Health Office — Provincial Building
Oyen Big Country Hospital and Health Office

These financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities and operations of voluntary or private
facilities providing health services in the Region, except as disclosed in Note 16.

. Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices

(a) Basis of Presentation
(1) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles and the reporting requirements of Alberta Health and Wellness’ Financial
Directive 34.

{2) These financial statements were prepared on a consolidated basis and include the following:

(i) The Region uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its 50% interest in
the Palliser Primary Care Network.

(ii) The Region uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its share in the Regional
Shared Health Information Program (RSHIP).

(3) These financial statements use the deferral method, key elements of which are:

(i) Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year receivable.

Palliser Health Region




PALLISER HEALTH REGION PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars) (thousands of dollars)

2. Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued) 2. Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(it) Restricted non-capital contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the related
expenses are incurred.

(iii) Restricted capital contributions are recorded as deferred capital contributions until invested in
capital assets. Invested amounts are transferred to unamortized external capital contributions
and recognized as revenue in the period the related amortization expense of the capital asset is
recorded.

(iv) Endowments and restricted contributions to purchase capital assets that will not be amortized
are treated as direct increases to net assets.

(v) Investment income includes dividend and interest income, and realized and unrealized investment
gains and losses. Unrealized gains and losses on available for sale financial assets are included
directly in net assets or deferred contributions as appropriate, until the asset is removed from the
Staterment of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses on held for trading financial assets are
included in investment income and recognized as revenue in the Statement of Operations, deferred or
reported directly in net assets, depending on the nature of any external restrictions imposed on the
investment income. Restricted investment incormne is recognized as revenue in the year in which the
related expenses are incurred. Other unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when
earned.

(vi} Donations and contributions in kind are recorded at fair value when such value can reasonably
be determined.

(b) Capital Disclosure

Effective April 1, 2008, the Region implemented new capital disclosure requirements per section 1535 of
the CICA Handbook. For operating purposes, the Region defines capital as including working capital and
unrestricted net assets. For capital purposes, the Regions defines capital as including deferred capital
contributions, unamortized external capital contributions, and the investment in capital assets.

The Region’s objectives for managing capital are:
= Inthe short term to safeguard the Region’s financial ability to continue to deliver health
services and
= In the long term to plan and to build sufficient physical capacity to meet future needs for
health services,

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009

The majority of the Regien’s operating funds are from Alberta Health and Wellness which is paid on the
first of each month. As a result, significantly less working capital is required. The Region monitors its
warking capital and cash flow forecasts.

Alberta Health and Wellness approves health care facilities based on long-term capital plans and provides
the majority of the funding through one-time capital grants. The Region funds the required equipment and
systems by a combination of allocating a portion of operating funds and obtaining external funding from
charitable donations and capital grants. The Region borrows to finance capital investments related to
ancillary operations since the department does not fund ancillary operations.

(¢} Full Cost

The Region accounts for all costs of services for which it is responsible. Fair value transactions
comprise:

(i) Revenue that contracted health service operators earn from Ministry of Health and Wellness
designated fees and charges are recorded as the Region’s fees and charges and as contracted
health service expense.

(if) Alberta Health and Weliness direct payments to contracted health service operators are recorded
as revenue and as program expense as they represent part of the Region’s health program costs.

(1ii) Fair value to use acute care facilities not owned by the Region is recorded as other government
contributions or donations, and as program expense, since the Region’s contract payments do not
include amounts for use of these facilities.

(iv) Fair value to use non-acute care facilities not owned by the Region and provided to the Region at
zero or nominal rent is recorded as other government contributions and as program expense.

(v) Other assets, supplies and services a health region would otherwise purchase are recorded as
revenue and expense, at fair value at the date of contribution, when a fair value can be reasonably
determined. Volunteers' contributed services are not reported because a fair value cannot be
reasonably determined.

Palliser Health Region




PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars) (thousands of dollars)
2. Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued) 2. Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(d)y Employee Future Benefits

The Region participates in the Local Authorities Pension Plan. This multi-employer defined benefit
pension plan provides pensions for participating employees based on years of service and earnings.
Defined contribution plan accounting is applied where information is insufficient to apply defined benefit
plan accounting. Pension costs comprise the employer's contributions during the year, based on rates
expected to provide benefits payable under the pension plans. The Region does not record jts portion of
the plan’s deficit or surplus. The Region fully accrues its obligations for employee non-pension future
benefits.

The Region provides a defined benefit Supplementary Retirement Plan (SRP) to senior executives. Costs
of these benefits are actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on services, a
market interest rate, and management’s best estimate of expected costs and benefit coverage period. Net
actuarial gains and losses of the benefit obligation are amortized over the average remaining service life of
the group. Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefits earned in the fiscal year. Prior
service and other costs include amortization of past service costs on plan initiation, amortization of
actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability. The Region’s SRP is fully
funded.

(e} Investments
Investments are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2(f).

Transaction costs associated with the acquisition and disposal of investments are expensed. The purchase
and sale of investments are accounted for using the settlement date accounting.

(f) Financial Instruments

Initial measurement of financial instruments is at fair value and subsequent measurement and recognition
of changes in value depend upon the classification. Financial assets and financial liabilities classified as
“held for trading” are measured at fair value with changes in those fair values recognized in the Statement
of Operations or deferred contributions. Financial assets classified as “available for sale” are measured at
fair value with changes in fair values recognized in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets or deferred
contributions until realized, at which time the cumulative changes in fair value are recognized in the
Statement of Operations. “Loans and receivables”, financial Habilities classified as “other financial
liabilities” and financial assets classified as “held to maturity” are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
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The Region has classified its financial assets and financial liabilities as follows:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Classification
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading
Investments Available for sale

Accounts receivable Loans and receivables
Non-current advances - continuing care partnerships ~ Loans and recetvables
Accounts payable Other financial liabilities

At March 31, 2008 the Region classified its investments as held to maturity. At March 31, 2009, the
Region no longer intends to hold these investments to maturity. Therefore, the Region re-categorized its
investmenis as available for sale (note 3).

The Region does not use hedge accounting and accordingly, is not impacted by the requirement of Section
3865 Hedges. The Region as a Not-for-Profit Organization has elected not to apply the standards for
embedded derivatives in non-financial contracts.

When it is determined that an impairment of a financial instrument classified as available for sale is other
than temporary, the cumulative loss that had been recognized directly in net assets or deferred
contributions is removed and recognized in the Statement of Operations even though the financial asset has
not been derecognized. Impairment losses recognized in the Statement of Operations for a financial
instrument classified as available for sale are not reversed.

The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, contributions receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and accrued vacation pay approximates their fair value because of the short term nature of these
items. Unless atherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Region is not exposed to significant
interest, currency or credit risks arising from its financial instruments.

(2) Inventories

In June 2007 the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (the “CICA”) issued a new accounting
standard, Section 3031 Inventories which provides guidance on the recognition, measurement and
disclosure of inventories. The standard provides specific direction for not-for-profit organizations to record
inventories held for consumption or distribution at no charge at the lower of cost or current replacement
CcOst.

Palliser Health Region




PALLISER HEALTH REGION PALLISER HEALTH REGION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars) (thousands of dollars)
2. Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued) 3. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
The Region adopted this new standard as of April 1, 2008, but did not adjust opening balances or restate 2009 2008
prior periods because the adoption did not have a material impact. Fair Fair
Market Market
Inventories held for consumption or distribution at no charge are recorded at the lower of cost (defined as Value Cost Value Cost
weighted average cost) and current replacement cost. All other inventories are recorded at the lower of cost Cash $ 11,362 $11,362 $ 6270 $ 6270
and net realizable value, with cost determined by the weighted average cost method. Bonds 33,781 35,768 36,848 36,157
Less Health Foundation funds 5,777) 5,777) (6,087) (6,087)
Less Third Party funds (7,211 (7,211) (6,002) (6,002)
() Capital Assets $32,055 _ $34142|  $31,009  $3033%
Capital assets and work in progress are recorded at cost and amortized over their estimated To optimize returns at an acceptable risk level, management has established a policy asset mix of 0% to

useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows: 100% for fixed-income securities and 0% for equities. Risk is reduced through diversification of issuers.

Bonds represent fixed income securities comprised of:

Useful Life Useful Life s 2 1 S it
Buildings 40 years Building service equipment 20 years Canadian provmcxa.l bonds Wlth §ffect1ve yields of 5.69% to 6.28% (2008 - 5.69% to 6.28%)
Land improvements 20 years Vehicles and equipment 5-20 years Corporate bonds with effective yields of 4.72% to 7.39% (2008 - 4.72% to 7.39%).
Lo . . At March 31 the bonds have the followi turity structure:
Work in progress is not amortized until after a project is complete. Leases transferring substantially all e £ opds have g O E ATy SIS
benefits and risks of capital asset ownership are reported as capital assel acquisitions financed by long-term 2009 2008
obligations. 1 t0 5 years 40% 45%
6 to 10 years 55% 47%
11to 15 years 5% 8%
i) M t Uncertai
() easurement Uncertainty h o0
The financial statements by their nature contain estimates and are subject 1o measurement uncertainty.
- . S N . S Total pooled funds have a market value of $1,987 less than book value (2008 - $691 greater than book
Amounts recorded for amortization of capital assets and amortization of external capital contributions are . . - .
based timates of th £ul life of related is. The Suppl tarv Reti ¢ Plan is based value). Valuation of bonds has been obtained from independent brokerage firms. At March 31, 2009,
ase F’n cstimates o the usetu e ot refa e_ assels. 1he '—‘PI_’ ementary Relirement Fan 15 based on management determined that the impairment of investments classified as available for sale was other than
actuarial calculations. Actual results could differ from these estimates. temporary and therefore the cumulative loss has been recognized in the statement of operations.
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION PALLISER HEALTH REGION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars) (thousands of dollars)

6. Capital Assets
4, Non-Current Advances — Continuing Care Partnerships

Funds received from Alberta Infrastructure and advanced for the construction of continuing care facilities Cost
in the Region, operated by voluntary/private health service contract operators, are recorded as a non- Opening Asset Asset Closing
current advance. Balance Additions Disposals Balance
Apr 1/08 Mar 31/09
The Region uses the Forgivable Mortgage Model! for reporting the contribution and advancement of
funds. Under this model, the Region finances the capital construction costs and extends an advance, Land $ 852 $ R $ - $ 852
which is secured by the facility and is forgivable for services rendered by the owner over the predicted life Buildings . 111,967 10,224 - 122,191
of the facility. The funding received is recorded as Deferred Contributions — Continuing Care Land/leasehold improvements 4,276 106 - 4.382
Partnerships and each year a portion is included in revenue with an offsetting expense in accordance with Building service equipment 17,578 1,556 S 19,134
the accounting policies for restricted contributions described in Note 2 (a) (3) (iii). The portion included Eq“’P"‘“‘T{L . 35,604 7,024 - 42,628
in revenue, representing the amount forgiven during the year, is $404 (2008 - $405). Construction in progress 8,710 (6,653) - 2,057
7 12,257 b - $ 191,244
During 2002, funding of $7.1 million was received from Alberta Infrastructure and advanced to the Good ERliE $ 12,25 E $
Samaritan Society for the construction of the 80 bed Southridge Village Project. 100% of the advance is
to be forgiven over the period from 2002 to 2027.
. . s . Accumulated Amortization Net Book Value
During 2005, funding of $4.013 million was received from Alberta Infrastructure and advanced to Club . )
Sierra Lifestyles at River Ridge Inc. for the construction of the 50 bed Masterpiece Living Project. 90% Opening  Additions Closing 2009 2008
of the advance is to be forgiven over the period from 2005 to 2035. Balance Balance (as restated —
Apr 1/08 Mar 31/09 note 19}
Land $ S $ - $ = $ 852 $ 852
5. Other Asset:
or Assets Buildings 66,632 2,833 69,465 52726 45335
On November 2, 2005, the Region initiated a Supplemental Retirement Plan (SRP) for certain senior La{lsj{leasehol.d R 2’209 32? 1?;22 ;?7; igg;
executives, as noted in 2 (d). At March 31, 2009, the fair value of plan assets is $1,307 (2008 - $965), gu' _pmg Sfrvwe equip. igsgg e LS 18,235 oo
and the net asset is $310 (2008 - $299). e > ; ; ; ;
. ¢ ) Construction in progress - - - 2,057 8,710
$ 101,352 $ 9,157 $ 110,509 $ 80,735 $ 77,635

Capital assets have been funded from the following sources:

2009 2008
Externally funded (Unamortized External Capital Contributions) $ 72,365 $ 68,691
Internally funded (Investment in Capital Assets) 8,370 8,944

$ 80,735 $ 77,635
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION PALLISER HEALTH REGION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009
{thousands of dollars) (thousands of dollars)
7. Deferred Contributions 8(a). Long Term Employee Benefits - Supplementary Retirement Plan
The balance at the end of year is restricted for the following purposes: 2000 2008
2009 2008
Alberta Telestroke program $ - $ 20 Accrued benefit obligation:
Clinical Telehealth 507 151 Accrued obligation, beginning of year $ 1,224 $ 876
Continuing care projects 283 584 Current service cost 51 57
Innovation in immunization - 140 Interest cost 65 48
Innovation in pre-school development 182 131 Prior service cost - 2
Mental health projects 534 1,270 Acuarial (gain) loss (260) )
Physician on call 383 939 Benefit payments 22) ®)
Regional Health Promotion Coordinators — healthy weights 417 370 Accrued obligation, end of year 1,051 1224
Security of systems 219 239
Pandemic funding - 891 Reconciliation of funded status of accrued bemefit asset:
Public health safety — hand hygiene 243 300 Funded status of plan (deficit) 256 (259)
Reducing and avoiding injury 640 728 Unamortized actuarial loss 34 384
Infrastructure - maintenance program and projects 6,055 5,411 Unrecognized initial obligation 20 173
Primary Care Network (Note 16 (¢)) 2,700 2,000 Unamortized pricr service costs e 1
$ 12,163 $ 13,174 Accrued benefit asset 310 299
Determination of net benefit cost for the year:
Current service cost 51 57
Interest cost 65 48
Amortization of initial obligation 153 86
Amortization of prior service costs S 1
Amortization of net actuarial loss 128 42
Expected retum on plan assets (32 (23)
Benefit cost 3 365 $ 211
Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:
Discount rate 6.20% 5.20%
Expected average remaining service life of employees 6 years 3 years
Salary increase 4.00% 4.00%
Expected retum on plan assets 3.10% 2.60%
The above is based onthe actuarial valuation performed at March 31, 2009.
The Region's SRP is fully funded.
Employer contributions at March 31:
Plan assefs (held by trustee) - fair value of assets 628 488
Plan assets (held by Canada Revenue Agency) - paid by refundable taxes 679 477
Total plan assets $ 1,307 $ 965
Funded status of plan (defidt) $ 256 $ (259)
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)

8(b). Long Term Employee Benefits - Pension Expense

Pension expense related to the Region’s participation in the Local Authorities Pension Plan in these
financial statements is equal to the Region’s annual contributions payable of $6,140 for the year ended
March 31, 2009 (2008 - $5,702).

At December 31, 2008, the Local Authorities Pension Plan reported a deficiency of $4.414 billion
(December 31, 2007 - deficiency of $1.183 billion).

Pension expense related to the Region’s participation in Supplementary Retirement Plan in these financial
statements is equal to $365 for the year ended March 31, 2009 (2008 - $211).

PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)

The Region has been named as a defendant in a legal action in respect of increased long term care
accommodation charges. The claim has been filed against the province of Alberta and the Regional
Health Authorities. The amount of the claim is in excess of $150 million, based on the amount of the
increase in accommodation charges levied, which came into effect August 1, 2003. The outcome of the
claim is not determinable.

With regard to its buildings, the Region has identified that certain costs could arise (asset retirement
obligations) on decommissioning for which fair value cannot currently be reasonably estimated, due to the
indeterminate timing and scope of when and how the buildings might be decommissioned in the future.
The asset retirement obligations for these assets will be recorded in the period in which there is sufficient
information to estimate fair value.

9. Accumulated Surplus 11. Budget
The Region’s accumulated surplus comprises the following: The budget was approved by senior executive and submitted to the Minister of Health and Wellness on
2009 2008 June 5, 2008.
(as restated
— note 19} e
12. Alberta Health and Wellness Contributions
Unrestricted net assets $ 5942 § 878
Internally restricted net assets:
Future capital equipment replacement - 4,675 2000 L
Unrestricted contributions $ 171,860 $ 162,131
RIEREY LECtEEE Transfers from deferred contributions 12,146 12,217
i i ) X Legacy Mortgage Assistance Program for nursing home upgrades 192 192
In 2009, the Alberta Health Services Board unrestricted all funds that were previously internally Primary Care Network (note 16) 1.200 200
restricted.
$ 185,398 $ 175,340
10. Commitments and Contingencies

The Region has entered into various multi-year commitments for the purchase of supplies. Also, the
Region contracts on an ongoing basis with unions and health service operators to provide services to the

13. Other Government Contributions

Region. These commitments have contracts terms varying from one to eight years in length, are part of 2009 200
the ordinary course of operations and are contracted for in upcoming years on similar terms to those in Persons with Developmental Disabilities ~ Alfred Egan Home $ 3,094 $ 2879
effect for the current fiscal year. Transition grant from East Central Health (note 18) 1,056 -
Emergency Medical Services grant from East Central Health 106 -
In the normal course of operations, various claims and lawsuits are brought against the Region. While it Continuing care partnerships 404 405

is not possible to estimate the ultimate liability, if any, the Region believes that there will be no material
adverse effect on its financial position from these claims.

$ 4,660 $ 3,284
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PALLISER HEALTH REGION March 31, 2009
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (thousands of dollars)
March 31, 2009

{thousands of doflars)

16. Related Parties

(a) Province of Alberta and Health Regions

14. Ancillary Operations
The Minister of Health and Wellness appoints the members of the Alberta Health Services Board. The

2009 2008 Board is economically dependent upon the Ministry of Health and Wellness since the viability of its on-
going operations depends on contributions from the Ministry.
Excess of Excess of
Direct Revenue | Revenue Revenue The Region had the following significant transactions with other health regions recorded on the Statement
Revenue Expenses over over of Operations and Financial Position at the amounts agreed upon by the related parties:
Expenses Expenses
2009 2008
. . s 14 $ 225
Parking f)perauons . $ 367 $ log $ 259 § g77 B Revenue Expense Receivable Payable | Revenue Expensc Receivable Payable
Non-patient food services 796 79 - Other regional health
authorities and provincial $1.814 $ - $4,433 $ - $ 670 $ - $2,165 $ -
Total $1,163 $ 904 § 259 $ 1,091 $ 225 health boards
Ancillary operations consist of the sale of goods and services that are not related to the direct provision of Total $1,814 $ - $ 4,433 $ - $ 670 $ - $2,165 $

health services. Ancillary expenses are reported in the support services line in the Statement of
Operations.

(b) Regional Shared Health Information Program (RSHIP)
15. Investment and Other Income
The seven non-metro health regions (Palliser Health Region, Chinook Regional Health Authority, David
Thompson Health Region, East Central Health, Aspen Health Region, Peace Country Health, Northern
Lighis Health Region) have entered into an agreement under the name Regional Shared Health
$ 1,954 $ 2,026 Information Program (RSHIP), to implement a common, integrated health information system. This
standard system will integrate with Alberta’s Provincial Electronic Health Record (EHR) initiative.

2009 2008

Investment income
Other than temporary impairment of investments (note 3) (1,987) -
Other income 3,171 2,929

$ 3,138 $ 4,955

RSHIP transactions recorded in the financial statements are as follows:

2009 2008
Investment income comprises interest, amortization of discounts (premiums) and net gains on disposal of Alberta Health and Wellness funding $ 1,067 $ 1,001
investments. Health region contribution 602 569

$ 1,669 $ 1,660

Other income comprises Student Health Initiative Program, WCB recoveries, rental income and

miscellaneous recoveries. Reported as follows:
Expenses $ 602 $ 569
Capital assets 1,067 1,091

$ 1,665 $ 1,660
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009

{thousands of dollars)

{c) Primary Care Network

During 2007, a Primary Care Network (PCN) commenced operation within the Region. The Region’s
50% share of the PCN is included in the financial statements under the proportionate consolidation

method, as follows:

2009 2008

Statement of Financial Position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,700 $ 2,000

Deferred contributions 2,700 2,000
Statement of Operations:

Revenue (note 12) $ 1,200 $ 800

Expenses 1,200 800

{d) Foundations
The Region has economic interest in the following foundations:
2009 2008
Assets Liabilities Net Assets Assets Liabilities  Net Assets
Bassano $ 35 - $ 35 $ 75 - 3 75
Bow Island 103 - 103 141 - 141
Brooks 623 - 623 670 - 670
Medicine Hat 4,741 - 4,741 4,923 - 4,923
Oyen 286 - 286 286 - 286
Total $ 5,788 - $ 5,788 $ 6,095 - $ 6,095
Revenue  Expenses Deficiencu Revenue  Expenses Excess

Bassano $ 31 $ 7 $ (40) $ 56 $ 6 $ 50
Bow Island 43 82 (39) 111 101 10
Brooks 339 387 (48) 230 157 73
Medicine Hat 935 1,117 (182) 1,390 915 475
Oyen 54 54 - 81 18 63
Total $ 1,402 $ 1,711 $ (309) $ 1,868 $ 1,197 $ 671
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)

Contributions received by the Region during the year, representing the funding of capital and non-capital

items selected by the foundations, are as follows:

2009 2008
Bassano & District Health Foundation $ 70 $ 6
Bow Island & District Health Foundation 77 101
Brooks & District Health Foundation 374 143
Medicine Hat & District Health Foundation 931 757
_Oyen & District Health Care Foundation 52 15
$ 1,504 $ 1,022

Resources held by the foundations at the end of the year, representing funds which must be used for

specific communities, are as follows:

Unres-  Externally 2009 2008

tricted Restricted Total Total

Bassano & District Health Foundation $ 10 $ 25 $ 35 $ 75
Bow Island & District Health Foundation 78 25 103 142
Brooks & District Health Foundation 326 297 623 670
Medicine Hat & District Health Foundation 3,562 1,179 4,741 4,923
Oyen & District Health Care Foundation 278 8 286 285
$ 4,254 $1,534 § 5788 $ 6,095

{e) Private Health Service Providers

The Region has an economic interest through its contracts with private health service providers. Funding

was provided as follows:

2009 2008
Direct Region funding $ 29,430 $ 26,745
Alberta Health & Wellness funding 192 192
Fees and charges 7,200 6,350

$ 36,822 $ 33,287
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION PALLISER HEALTH REGION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars) (thousands of doflars)

19, Correction of Errors

17. New Governance Structure
During the year, the Region identified and corrected errors from prior years. These errors and related

On May 15, 2008, the Minister of Health & Wellness restructured the governance model of the health adjustments to previously reported balances are as follows:

services delivery system in Alberta. A single common board replaced the board members of each of (a) Assets were purchased in 2006, 2007 and 2008 that were funded from external sources and were

Alberta’s nine regional health authority boards, Alberta Mental Health Board, Alberta Cancer Board, and not capitalized in the financial statements.

Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission. Effective April 1, 2009, all of these entities including the (b) Payroll benefits were incorrectly accrued in 2008 and prior years.

Region, but excluding East Central Health, will be disestablished and all the assets, liabilities, rights and (c) RSHIP assets were incorrectly recorded in 2008 and prior years.

obligations of these entities, including the Region, will be assumed by East Central Health whose name

will change to Alberta Health Services. As Adjustments As
Originally (a) (&) (©) Restated
Reported

18. Transition Costs
For the year ended March 31, 2008:

As at March 31, 2009, the Region recorded incremental transition costs and restructuring charges related Deficiency of revenues over $ (2,688) $ . $ R $ - $(2,688)
to the transition to Alberta Health Services, consisting of severance costs and termination benefits expenses
(Schedule 2). In the Statement of Operattons, these expenses are included in Administration. Additional
incremental expenses related to the transition to Alberta Health Services are also reported and disclosed in As at March 31, 2008:
the financial statements of East Central Health. Accounts receivable 4,934 . - 1495 6,429
Prepaid expenses 2,308 - - (1,067) 1,241
East Central Health received $80 million in funding from Alberta Health and Wellness for the costs of Capital assets 76,872 763 R R 77,635
AHS transitioning and the Region has recorded a receivable from East Central Health for the transition Accounts payable and 14,678 R (450) - 14,228
costs incurred as described below. accrued liabilities
Unamortized External Capital 67,928 763 - - 68,601
Severance- Other Total Contributions
Related Net Assets: Accumulated 4,675 - 450 428 5,553
Liability as at March 31, 2008 s - 8 - 5 - surpls
Expenses i 1,056 - 1,056 As at March 31, 2007:
Payments made during the year (699) - (699) Net Assets: Accumulated 6,092 : 450 428 6970
Liability as at March 31, 2009 $ 357 $ - $ 357 surplus

20. Comparative Figures

Certain 2008 figures have been reclassified and restated to conform to the 2009 presentation.

21. Approval of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been approved by the Alberta Health Services Board.
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION Schedule 1 PALLISER HEALTH REGION Schedule 2(a)
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

Year ended March 31, 2009 Year Ended March 31, 2009
(lhiaursa::ls of dolij) ’ (thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
2009 2008 FIE Base Other Other Sub Severace Total FTE Total
Budger Actual Actual Sday  Cash  NonCash| Tow | FITE | Amount
(note 11) Benefits  Benefits
(1) 2) 3 @) (© 5) (1)
Salaries and benefits (schedule 2) $129,510 $129,562 $121,985 Board Chair (7)
Contracts with health service providers (note 16) 34,877 36,822 33,287 ge“ ']'*S“«‘%}‘E:i:\km g-fﬁ s 1A1 . o 3171 o $3'2
am! Secon: 3 -
Drugs and gases 5,080 4,618 4,695
Medical and surgical supplies 5,590 5,975 5,261 Board Members (7)
Other contracted services 16,210 15,252 15,266 ;?Ck Agz" AHI'IS s g'sf - :
e qsgs erre Crevolin - .. - -
Other expenses - utilities 4,000 3,854 3,772 Catherine Roozen - AHS 0.63 - - - .
Other expenses - miscellaneous 17,718 16,037 17,033 Lindz Hohal - AHS 0.8 . - . B
T John Lehners - AHS 0.88 - - -
Amorpzatlon: . 2600 AT 2360 Irene Lewis - AHS 0.88 = - -
Capital equipment - internally funded A 8 s Don Sieben - AHS 0.88 R B R
Capital equipment - externally funded 2,525 3,339 2,451 Lori Andreachuk - AHS 0.3 B . .
iliti i - ally funded 3,030 3,290 2,985 ST B - - -
Facilities and improvements - externally Ter Lynn Bovgie . AHS neE ) i i
Jim Qlifford - AHS 0.3 - -
$221,140 $221,277 $209,104 Strater Crowfoat - AHS 0.33 5 5 = -
Tony Fanceschini - AHS 0.33 - - - S
Andreas Laupacis - AHS 0.33 - - - -
Gord Winkel - AHS 0.33 - - - -
Howard Barker 0.2 2 p . o ro 9
Jim Black 0.12 1 1 | 10 7
Hugh English 0.2 - 5 4 e 5
Jim Kirwan 0.12 1 1 il 10 7
Albat McFadyen 0.12 2 2 A 1o 17
Leva Olstad 0.12 3 3 3} 10 12}
Lynne Sangster 0.12 2 2 ! IR 13
Ken Saver 0.12 2 2] 2l 10 )
Martin Shields 0.12 1 1 | 7
Rod Sommerfeld 0.12 2 2 o 1o 12|
Harold Storlien 6.2 1 1 1y 10 6}
Craig Widimer 0.12 1 1 | IX) 9
10.32 $29 5291 329} 130 S137
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
Year Ended March 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)

Schedule 2(a) continued

2009 2008
FIE Base Other Other Sub Severance Total FTE Total
Salary Cash Non-Cash Total FIE { Amount
Benefiis  Benefits
(1) @) (3) 4 ©) (5) )
Boaxd Direct Reports (8):
President / Chicf Executive 0.2 R ~ ~ ~ ~ R
Officer ~ AHS (9) :
Interim Chief Executive Officer 0.8
~ AHS (9) ) - B B - N "
President / Chief Executive
Officer (Palliser) (9) 0.27 78 7 247 3321 Lo 699 1,031) Lo 454
CEO Direct Reports (10):
Sertor Viee Rresident-Health | ) 190 1 7 302 w| ro 76
Services
Vice President- Commanity | o) 160 4 % 210) 210 Lo 178
Health
Viee Presidant- Plning & | ) 160 = 39 | 0| 3 sso| L0 173
Corporate Services
Chief Financial Officer 1.00 187 17 4 208 2|l L0 179§
Vwe.Premdenl‘Medlca] 100 259 . ~ 259 I 399
Services
Other Employees:
Other Management reporting to
CEO Direct Repotts 28 3,150 - 547 3,697 3,697 29 3,673
Other Management 36 3453 S 600 4,053 4,053) 37 4,186
Regulated Nurses; o
RNs, RPNs, Grad Nurses 459 37533 - 6,517 44,050 44,050F 469 43,094]
LPNs 129 7227 o 1,255 8,482 8,482) 137 7,802
Other Health Technical &
Professionals 31 22,657 - 3,934 26,591 26,5914 308 24,433
Unregulatzd Health Service 148 5845 . 1015 6860 6.860] 148 6040)
Providers
Other Staff 604 28,320 - 4914 33,234 33,234) 398 30,962
1731 $109,219 $91 $19,196]  $128,500] 2| $1.056) $129,562 1745 $121,985;

The accompanying notes (1) to (10) are part of this Schedule
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION

SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS - NOTES
Year Ended March 31, 2009

(thousards of dollars)

Schedule 2(b)

(1) Full time equivalent (FTE) is defermined at the rate of 2,022.75 anual hours for each full time employee. Total actual discrete number of
individuals employed: 3.112 (2008 - 3,091). “Discrete” number of individuals refers to all employees who were in the system during the

fiscal year.

{2}  BaseSalary includes pensionable base pay.

(3)  Other cash benefits include honoraria (for Board Members), fixed vehicle allowances and vacation fiabi lity increases (for

named positions).

(4 Other non-cash benefits include:

a Emplo yer's current and prior service cost of supplementary refirement plans (per note 6 below).

b. Shareof all employee benefits and coniributions made on behalf of enployees induding pension, health care, dental coverage, vision
coverage, out-of-country medical benefits, group Life insurance, aceidental disability and dismembement insurance, lon gand short

term disabifity plans, professional membership and tuition.

(5)  Severance includes direct or indirect payments to individuasupon tenmination, which are not included in other benefits.

{6)  Supplemental Retirement Plan (SRP):

Under the terms of the supplementary refirement plan, executive officers may receive supplemental retirement paymenis. SRP costs
detailed below are not cash payments during the year, but are the period expense for dghts to future compensation. SRP costs reflect the
actuarially estimated oost to provide pension income over the post-employment period. The SRP provides future pension benefits to

participants based on years of serviceand eamings.

The annual benefit for each executive is as follows:

2009 2008
Current Prior Service Tatal Total
Service Costs & Other costs

Fresident / Chief Executive Officer (Palliser) 310 $235 $245 3149
Senior Vice President - Health Services 16 40 56 44
Vice President - Community Health 8 16 24 4
Vice President - Planning & Corporate Services 8 2 16 3
Other refirees and non-named positions g 15 24 11
$51 5314 $363 $211

The acqued SRP obligation for each executive is as follows:
Accrued Change in Accrued
Obligation accrued Obligation
Mar 31, 2008 obligation Mar 31, 2009
President / Chief Executive Officer (Palliser) $677 (3$88) $589
Senior Vice President - Health Services 219 (5) 214
Vice President - Community Health 142 23) 117
Vice President - Planning & Corporate Services 75 “48) 27
Other retirees and non-named positions 1l [©)] 104
$1.224 $173) $1.051

The acwal SRP payments made cr payable to named recipients upon termin ation were as follows (in thousands of dollars):
- President/ Chief Executive Officer (Palliser): Total SRP payments of $24 for 2009 (2008 - $0), based on
payments of $3 per month from August 2008 indefinitely (joint & survivor benefit).
- Vice President - Planning & Corporate Services:  Total SRP payments of $27 for 2009 (2008 - $0), basedon a

single lump sum paymentof $27, payable after March 3 1, 2009.
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PALLISER HEALTH REGION Schedule 2(b) continued
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS - NOTES

Year Ended March 31, 2009

(thousards of dollars)

(1) OnMay 15, 2008, the Region’s board, along with the other regional health authority boards, was replaced by the Alberta Health Services
(AHS) interim board according to Ministed al Order 50/2008. On December 1, 2008, an additional 8 panel members were appointed to
complete the 15 member board. Salaries and benefits of AHS board members are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of East
Central Health.

(8  Board Direct Reports reflect FTEs and costs for the entire 2009 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at May 15,
2008.

9
@ On July 8, 2008 the Region's CEO was terminated. TheInterim CEO - AHS was appointed effective May 15, 2008 to manage the

operations ofthe health regions, provindal boards and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission and to effect their transition to a
single provincia health authority. Salary and benefits of the Interim CEO - AHS are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of
East Central Health. The President and CEO - AHS was appointed effective March 23, 2009. Salary and benefits of the President and CEO
- AHS are reported and disclosed in thefinancial statements of East Central Health.

10
e CEO Direct Reports reflect FTEs and costs for the 2009 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at July 8, 2008.
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CALGARY HEALTH REGION

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

MARCH 31, 2009

The accompanying final consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of management and have
been reviewed and approved by Senior Management. The consolidated financial statements were
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the financial
directives issued by Alberta Health and Wellness, and of necessity include some amounts that are based
on estimates and judgments.

To discharge its responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of financial reporting, management
maintains a system of internal accounting controls comprising written policies, standards and procedures,
a formal anthorization structure, and satisfactory processes for reviewing internal controls. This system
provides management with reasonable assurance that transactions are in accordance with governing
legislation and are properly authorized, reliable financial records are maintained, and assets are
adequately safeguarded.

The Region carries out its responsibility for the consolidated financial statements through the Audit and
Finance Committee. This Committee meets with management and the Auditor General of Alberta to
review financial matters, and recommends the final consolidated financial statements to the Alberta
Health Services Board for approval upon finalization of the audit. The Auditor General of Alberta has
free access to the Audit and Finance Committee.

The Auditor General of Alberta provides an independent audit of the consolidated financial statements.
His examination is conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and
includes tests and procedures, which allow him to report on the fairness of the consolidated financial
statements prepared by management.

[Original signed] [Original signed]
Dr. Stephen Duckett Chris Mazurkewich, CA
President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

— Alberta Health Services — Alberta Health Services

[Original signed]

Les Tochor, CA
Senior Vice President Finance
— Alberta Health Services
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the Alberta Health Services Board
and the Minister of Health and Wellness

I have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of the Calgary Health Region
(the Authority) as at March 31, 2009 and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in
net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Authority’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as at March 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

[Original signed by Fred J. Dunn)
FCA
Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta
June 11, 2009
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CALGARY HEALTH REGION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
(Restated)
(Note 24)
ASSETS
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 172,832 3 30,863
Accounts receivable 63,373 60,171
Contributions receivable from Alberta Health and Wellness 5,843 49,972
Inventories 35,231 35,576
Prepaid expenses 11,172 11,557
288,451 188,139
Non-current cash and investments (Note 3) 865,318 468,816
Capital contributions receivable 22,749 475,727
Capital assets (Note 4) 2,328,232 1,884,350
Other assets (Note 5) 14,800 29,078
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,519,550 $ 3,046,110
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 328,670 $ 285,262
Accrued vacation pay 125,003 111,129
Current portion of deferred contributions (Note 6) 112,359 95325
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 12,135 11,353
579,167 503,069
Deferred contributions (Note 6) 35,592 35,272
Deferred capital contributions (Note 7) 773,757 771,392
Long-term debt (Note 8) 185,919 142,823
Long-term employee benefit liabilities (Note 9) 9,391 8,174
Unamontized external capital contributions 1,879,405 1,526,513
3,463,231 2,987,243
Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Accurmnulated deficit (Note 21) (218,886) (193,028)
Accumulated net unrealized (losses) gains on investments
(Note 2(a)(2)(v)) (2,736) 8,166
Investment in capital assets 277,941 243,729
56,319 58,867
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 9, 10 and 18)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 3,519,550 $ 3,046,110
The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these c lidated fi ial s.
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CALGARY HEALTH REGION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)

Revenue
Alberta Health and Wellness contributions (Note 12)

Other government contributions (Note 13)
Fees and charges (Note 14)

Ancillary operations (Note 15)

Donations

Investment and other income (Note 16)
Amortization of external capital contributions

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenses (Schedule 1)

Inpatient acute nursing services

Emergency and outpatient services
Facility-based continuing care services
Community-based care

Home care

Diagnostic and therapeutic services
Promotion, prevention and protection services
Research and education (Note 17)
Administration

Information technology

Support services (Note 5 and Note 15)
Amortization of facilities and improvements

TOTAL EXPENSES
(Deficiency) Excess of revenue over expenses

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these con.

2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 11) (Restated)
(Note 24)
3 2,609,867 2,859,715 2,421,152
34,605 54,666 31,631
177,933 177,592 160,517
39,655 43,637 38,914
6,073 7,880 7,552
96,405 96,323 109,870
91,934 107,091 86,629
3,056,472 3,346,904 2,856,265
924,104 906,516 829,500
381,365 397,300 355,452
224,097 227,215 205,397
186,305 194,617 167,113
118,139 117,260 105,488
570,835 576,074 521,254
75,460 74,484 68,396
49,548 49,371 42,669
117,379 102,471 95,477
115,283 122,066 94,283
471,733 507,871 425,428
44,642 63,299 44,362
3,278,890 3,338,550 2,954,819
3 (222,418) 8,354 (98.554)
lidated ncial
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CALGARY HEALTH REGION

CALGARY HEALTH REGION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

FOR THE, YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dolars)

o P 2009 2008
Accumulated Budget Actual Actual
net (Note 11) (Restated)
unrealized (Note 24)
gains Investment Operating activities:
Accumulated (losses) on in capital (Deficiency) Excess of revenue aver expenses $ (222,418) $ 8,354 $ (98,554)
deficit investments assels Total Total Non-cash transactions:
sy Amortization (Schedule 1) 131,198 143,380 115,042
Amortization of external capital contributions (91,987) (107,143) (86,681}
Balance at beginning of year $ (193,028) $ 8,166 $ 243,729 $ 58,867 $ 173,064 Goodwill impairment (Note 5) - 25,804 -
Other 3,817 2,270 4,018
(Deficiency) Excess of revenue over expenses 8,354 - - 8,354 (98,554) (179,390) 72,665 (66,175)
Capital assets purchased with internal funds (70,584) - 70,584 S S Net change in non-cash working C?p“al 47,198 76,190 25,271
Amortization of internally funded capital assets 36,237 - (36,237) - - Cash (used by) generated from operations (132,192) 148,855 (40,904)
Repayment of long-term debt used to fund
capital assets (8,138) - 8,138 - - Investing activities:
Portion of goodwill impairment funded by Purchase of capital assets:
repayment of long-term debt e i LD ’ i Internally funded - equipment (120,000) (5.606) (12,343)
Disposal of land R 5 & - (429) Internally funded - information systems (100,000) (30,674) (58,240}
Purchase of land = - 5 5 3,866 Internally funded - facilities and improvements (1,728) (34,304) (22,742)
Transfer of land - - - - 2] Externally funded - equipment (40,695) (26,280) (26,936)
Net unrealized losses arising during the year on Externally funded - inf(.n"mation s.ystems (24,400) (26,895} (2,725)
investments (Note 2(a)(2)(v)) - (11,601) S (11,6013 9,717 Externally funded - facilities and improvements (511,065) (406,122) (338,918)
Transter of net realized gains (losses) on Externally funded - land - - (3,866}
investments to revenue (Note 2(2)(2)(v)) - 699 = 699 (9,392) Debt funded - facilities and improvements (105,705) (56,572) (13,374)
Acquisition of investments (3,337) (29,451) (102,639)
Balance at end of year $  (218.886) $_ (2.736) $ 277941 3$ 56,319 $ 58,867 Proceeds on sale of investments - 127,687 210,813
Allocations to (from) current cash and investments 144,220 (506,339) 100,367
Net change in non-cash working capital - 27,448 33,135
The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these lidated financial Cash used by investing activities (762,710) (967,108) (237,488)

Financing activities:

Capital contributions received 434,124 914,635 257,351
Principal payments on long-term debt (9,412) 9,413) (8,155)
Proceeds from long-term debt 439,327 55,000 3,308
Cash generated from financing activities 864,039 960,222 252,504
Net (decrease) increase in current cash and cash equivalents $ (30,863) 141,969 (25,888)
Current cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 30,863 56,751
Current cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 172,832 $ 30,863
Interest paid on long-term debt $ 6,927 $ 7,287

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1

CALGARY HEALTH REGION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2009
Authority, Purpose and Operations

The Calgary Regional Health Authority was established June 24, 1994 under the authority of
the Alberta Regional Health Authorities Act, Chapter R-10, Revised Statutes of Alberta,
2000 and subsequently adopted the name Calgary Health Region (the “Region”). The
Region is exempt from payment of income tax and is a registered charity under the Income
Tax Act (Canada). Effective April 1, 2009, the Region will be disestablished and all assets
and liabilities will be transferred to Alberta Health Services (“AHS”) (Note 22).

The Region’s mandate is to deliver appropriate, accessible and affordable health services in
Alberta. This responsibility includes operating programs designed to promote, protect,
maintain, restore and enhance physical and mental well-being.

Operations of the Region include the following:

Rural acute and continuing care facilities:

Canmore General Hospital

Claresholm General Hospital

Didsbury District Health Services

High River General Hospital

- Little Bow Continuing Care Centre (in Carmangay)

Calgary continuing care facilities - Oilfields General Hospital (in Black Diamond)
operating as Carewest: + Strathmore District Health Services

Calgary acute care facilities:

+ Alberta Children’s Hospital
Foothills Medical Centre
Peter Lougheed Centre
Rockyview General Hospital

Colonel Beicher Vulcan Community Health Centre
Dr. Vernon Fanning Centre Willow Creek Continuing Care Centre (in
George Boyack Claresholm)
Glenmore Park
Nickle House Psychiatric rehabilitation facility:
Royal Park - Claresholm Care Centre
Signal Pointe
Sarcee Urgent Care facilities:
Sheldon M. Chumir Health Centre
South Calgary Health Centre
Other:

Community health centres and public health units throughout the region.
Mental health clinics throughout the region.
Provincial Laboratory for Southern Alberta located at the Foothills Medical Centre.

The Diagnostic and Scientific Centre and various patient service centres operating as
Calgary Laboratory Services within Calgary.

Numerous hemodialysis satellites sites outside the region.
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Note 1

Note 2

Authority, Parpose and Operations (continued)

These consolidated financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities and operations
of any voluntary or private facilities providing health care services in the region.

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting requirements of Financial Directive
34 issued by Alberta Health and Wellness. Following are the significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of Presentation

(1) The financial statements have been prepared on a consolidated basis, except
that controlled foundations are not consolidated (Note 19(d)(1)).

Included in these consolidated financial statements are the following wholly
owned subsidiaries:

(i)  Carewest - The Region contracts with Carewest to provide health
services in the region.

(il  Calgary Laboratory Services Ltd. (“CLS”) - The Region contracts with
CLS to provide health services in the region.

(iii) 1115399 Alberta Inc. which operates as Chemical Exposure Support
Services.

The transactions between the Region and these subsidiaries have been
eliminated on consolidation.

The Region uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its
50% interest in each of the following Primary Care Networks:

Bow Valley Primary Care Network

Calgary Foothills Primary Care Network
Calgary Rural Primary Care Network
Calgary West Central Primary Care Network
Highland Primary Care Network

Mosaic Primary Care Network

South Calgary Primary Care Network
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(b

2) These consolidated financial statements were prepared nsing the deferral method
of accounting for contributions; the key elements of our revenue recognition
policies are:

(i) Unrestricted operating grants and other contributions are recognized as
revenue in the year they become receivable.

(i)  Externally restricted non-capital contributions are deferred and recognized
as revenue in the year the related expenses are incurred.

(iii) Extemally restricted capital contributions are recorded as deferred capital
contributions until expended on capital assets. Amounts expended,
representing externally funded capital assets, are then transferred to
unamortized external capital contributions. Unamortized external capital
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the related amortization
expense of the funded capital asset is recorded.

(iv) Extemally restricted contributions to purchase capital assets which will not
be amortized are recorded as direct increases to net assets.

(v)  Investment income comprises interest from cash balances, money market
and fixed income investments, dividends from equities, and realized gains
or losses on the sale of investments. Investment income is calculated on
an accrual basis. Interest on fixed income investments is calculated over
the term of the investment using the effective interest rate method.
Unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as available for sale
are included directly in net assets, until the investments are sold.

- Unrestricted investment income is recognized in the year earned.
- Investment income subject to external restrictions is deferred and
recognized as revenue in the year the related expenses are incurred.

(vi) Donations and contributions in kind are recorded at fair value when such
value can reasonably be determined.

Capital Disclosure

Effective April 1, 2008, the Region implemented new capital disclosure requirenents per
section 1535 of the CICA Handbook. For operating purposes, the Region defines capital
as Including working capital and unrestricted net assets. For capital purposes, the
Region defines capital as including deferred capital contributions, long term debt,
unamortized extemal capital contributions, and investment in capital assets.

The Region’s objectives for managing capital are:

¢ In the short term to safeguard the Region’s financial ability to continue to deliver
health services; and

* Inthe long term to plan and to build sufficient physical capacity to meet future needs
for health services.

The majority of the Region’s operating funds are from Alberta Health and Wellness
which is paid on the first of each month. As a result, significantly less working capital
is required. The Region monitors its working capital and cash flow forecasts,
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

()

Alberta Health and Wellness approves health care facilities based on long-term capital
plans and provides the majority of the funding through one-time capital grants. The
Region funds the required equipment and systems by a combination of allocating a
portion of operating funds and obtaining external funding from charitable donations
and capital grants. The Region borrows to finance capital investments related to
ancillary operations since Alberta Health and Wellness does not fund ancillary
operations.

The Region complied with all debt covenants during the year and at the end of the year.

When a health region has incurred an accumulated deficit, legislation requires
submission of a deficit elimination plan (Note 21).

Full Cost

The Region records the full cost of services for which it is responsible. Full cost
transactions comprise the following:

(1) Revenue earned by contracted health service operators from Ministry of Health and
Wellness designated fees and charges are recorded as the Region’s fees and
charges. An equivalent amount is recorded as program expenses as this revenue
funds part of the cost of the Region’s programs.

(2) Alberta Health and Wellness payments directly to contracted health service
operators are recorded as revenue and an equivalent amount is recorded as
program expenses as these payments represent part of the cost of the Region's
programs.

(3) The estimated cost for use of acute care facilities not owned by the Region is
recorded as revenue from other government contributions and as program
expenses, since the Region’s contract payments do not include an amount for the
use of these facilities.

(4) The estimated cost for use of non-acute care facilities not owned by the Region and
provided to the Region at zero or nominal rent is recorded as other government
contributions and as program expenses.

(5) Other assets, supplies and service contributions that would otherwise have been
purchased are recorded as revenue and expenses, at fair value at the date of
contribution, when a fair value can be reasonably determined. The value of
volunteers” contributed services is not reported because fair value cannot be
reasonably determined.
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued) Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

{d) Financial Instruments (e} Investments

The Region’s financial instruments were classified as follows:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Classification
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading
Investments Available for sale

Accounts receivable, contributions receivable,
and mortgage receivable

Accounts payable

Long-term debt

Loans and receivables
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Initial measurement of financial instruments is at fair value and subsequent measurement
and recognition of changes in value depend upon the classification. Financial assets and
financial liabilities classified as “held for trading” are measured at fair value with
changes in those fair values recognized in the Statement of Operations or deferred
contributions. Financial assets classified as “available for sale” are measured at fair
value with changes in fair values recognized in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets or
deferred contributions until realized, at which time the cumulative changes in fair valoe
are recognized in the Statement of Operations. “Loans and receivables” and financial
liabilities classified as “other financial liabilities™ are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method. The Region does not use hedge accounting and
accordingly is not impacted by the requirements of Section 3865 Hedges. The Region as
a Not-for-Profit Organization has elected not to apply the standards for embedded
derivatives in non-financial contracts.

When it is determined that an impairment of a financial instrument classified as available
for sale is other than temporary, the curmulative loss that had been recognized directly in
net assets or deferred contributions is removed and recognized in the Statement of
Operations even though the financial asset has not been derecognized. Impairment losses
recognized in the Statement of Operations for a financial instrument classified as
available for sale are not reversed.

The carrying values of current cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, contributions
receivable from Alberta Health and Wellness, capital contributions receivable, and
accounts payable approximate their fair value because of the short-term maturity of these
items. It is management’s opinion that the Region is not exposed to significant interest
rate, currency, credit or market risks arising from these financial instruments.

Further disclosure on financial instruments is provided in Note 2(e) Investments, Note 3
Cash , Cash Equivalents and Investments, and Note 8 Long-term debt.
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Investments are classified as available for sale and are recorded at fair value as it is not
management’s primary objective to generate trading profits from short-term fluctuations
in price nor to hold investments to maturity. Fair values are determined by reference to
published price quotations in an active market at year-end.

Transaction costs associated with the acquisition and disposal of investments are
capitalized and are included in the acquisition costs or reduce proceeds on disposal.
Investment management fees are expensed as incurred. The purchase and sale of
investments are accounted for using trade-date accounting.

Employee Future Benefits

The Region participates in the Local Authorities Pension Plan. This multi-employer
defined benefit pension plan provides pensions for participating employees, based on
years of service and earnings. Defined contribution plan accounting has been applied
because the Region has insufficient information to apply defined benefit plan accounting.
Pension costs comprise the employer’s contributions during the year, based on rates
expected to provide benefits payable under the pension plans.

The Region provides a non-contributory defined benefit Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan (SERP) to senior executives of the Region. The cost of these benefits is
actuarially determined on an annual basis as at March 31 using the projected benefit
method pro-rated on services, a market interest rate, and management’s best estimate of
expected costs and the period of benefit coverage. Net actuarial gains or losses of the
benefit obligation are amortized over the average remaining service life of the employee
group. Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefits earned in the
fiscal year. Prior service and other costs include amortization of past services costs on
plan initiation, amortization of actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the
actuarial liability. This plan is unfunded but is secured by a letter of credit (Note 9(a)).

The Region also provides defined contribution pension plans for two employee groups.
Inventories

In June 2007 the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (the “CICA”) issued a
new accounting standard, Section 3031 Inventories which provides guidance on the
recognition, measurement and disclosure of inventories. The standard provides specific
direction for not-for-profit organizations to record inventories held for consumption or

distribution at no charge at the lower of cost or current replacement cost.

The Region adopted this new standard as of April 1, 2008 but did not adjust opening
balances or restate prior periods because the adoption did not have a material impact.

Inventories for consumption or distribution at no charge are valued at the lower of cost
(defined as moving average) and current replacement value,
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued} Note 3 Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

2009 2008
Fair Fair
Value Cost Value Cost
(thousands of dollars)

(hy Capital Assets

Capital assets and work in progress are recorded at cost. Capital assets with unit costs
less than five thousand dollars are expensed. Capital assets are amortized over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Cash $ 1,006,960 $ 1,006,960 $ 346,664 $ 346,664
Facilities and improvements 10 - 40 years Money market - - 11,988 11,988
Equipment 3-20 years Fixed income 20,631 20,891 92,401 91,757
Information systems 3-7 years Equities 10,559 13,035 48,626 41,104
Leased facilities and improvements term of lease $ 1,038,150 $ 1,040,886 $ 499,679 $ 491,513
Building service equipment 5 - 40 years
Land improvements 5 - 40 years Current $ 172,832 $ 172,832 $ 30,863 $ 30,863

Non-current (Note 3(d)) 865,318 868,054 468,816 460,650
Work in progress includes infrastructure and information systems projects. Actual $ 1,038,150 $ 1,040,886 $ 499,679 $ 491,513

interest incurred on debt funded projects is capitalized. Work in progress is not

amortized until the project is complete. In order to earn optimal financial returns at an acceptable level of risk, the Region’s

investment bylaw and policy establish benchmark and maximum asset mix ranges for fixed
income investments and equities. The portfolio is rebalanced to the asset mix on a quarterly

Land and facilities transferred from Alberta Infrastructure are reported at the net book basi
asis.

value recorded by Alberta Infrastructure at the time of the transfer.

Leases transferring substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership of capital a) Interest Rate Risk

assets are reported as acquisitions of capital assets funded by long-term obligations. . . . e .
P q P! y long & The Region manages the interest rate risk exposure of its fixed income investments by

management of average duration and laddered maturity dates.

() Goodwill and Intangible Assets Fixed income investments have an effective yield of 4.30% per annum, an average
. . . . . duration of 6.5 years and the following maturi :

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired businesses in excess of the fair value of net 4 © £ maturity dates as at March 31, 2009:
identifiable assets acquired. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more 1 -5 years 42%
frequently if changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment in the carrying 6 — 10 years 35%
value. Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over Over 10 years 23%
their remaining lives. Investments in equity securities are not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

()  Asset Retirement Obligations b) Currency Risk
Asset retirement obligations are leggl obligatior?s a§sociated with the retirement of The Region is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations on its investments denominated
tangible long-lived assets. Asset retirement obligations are recorded when they are in foreign currencies. However, this risk is mitigated by the fact that the Region’s
incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be determined. Accretion (interest) investment bylaw limits non-Canadian equities to 50% of total equities
expense is the increase in the obligation due to the passage of time. The associated 4 :
retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the asset and amortized ¢) Credit and Market Risks

over the asset’s remaining useful life.
The Region’s investment bylaw restricts the types and proportions of eligible

(k)  Measurement Uncertainty investments. Money market investments are limited to a rating of R1 or A1 or higher
) ] } ) ) . . and no more than 10% may be invested in any one issuer. Investments in corporat
The consolidated financial statements, by their nature, contain estimates and are subject bonds are limited to BBB Zated bonds or highyer and to no more than 40% of?ljle toteal
to measurement uncertainty. The amounts recorded for amortization of capital assets fixed income investments, No more than 10% may be invested in BBB rated bonds
and amortization of external capital contributions are based on the estimated useful life Equities are comprised of'publicly traded securities in major stock markets Investn‘wms
Ef th?relattjd assets. Th; al;ldoums récordzdfﬁor asset lre;]lremen;and Tmpl‘iyee fult;ije‘ff in debt and equity of any one issuer are limited to 5% of the issuer’s total debt and
enefits obligations are based on estimated future cash flows. Actual results could differ equity. Short selling is not permitted.

from these estimates.
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Note 3

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

d) Non-current cash and investments represent the following:

Deferred capital contributions (Note 7) $
Capital contributions receivable from Alberta
Health and Wellness
Capital accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Externally restricted for long-term care
partnership projects (Note 18)
Other restricted contributions invested in bonds and
equities

2009 2008

(thousands of dollars)
773,757 $ 771392
(22,749) (475,727)
84,553 63,119
29,757 34,017
- 76,015
$ 865,318 $ 4683816
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Note 4

Capital Assets

2009 2008
Net Book Net Book
Value Value
(thousands of dollars)
(Restated)
(Note 24)
Facilities and improvements $ 932,840 $ 765,235
Work in progress 940,754 658,839
Equipment 150,625 162,355
Information systems 115,974 119,989
Leased facilities and improvements 95,975 83,932
Land ® 52,917 52,624
Building service equipment 35,762 37,641
Land improvements 3,385 3,735
$ 2,328,232 3 1,884,350
Cost.
Balance
Balance March 31,
April 1, 2008 Transfers Additions Disposals 2009
(thousands of dollars)
Facilities and improvements 3 1,232,528 $ 219,962 3 o $  (28.,000) $ 1,424,490
‘Work in progress 658,839 (272,652) 554,567 - 940,754
Equipment 415,893 2,717) 32,623 (41,380) 404,419
Information systems 217,227 29926 - (5,146) 242,007
Leased facilities and
improvements 111,245 23,400 - (2,391} 132,254
Land @ 52,624 293 - - 52,917
Building service equipment 64,710 1,762 - (3,762) 62,710
Land improvements 8,759 26 - 1,277y 7,508
3 2,761,825 $ = $ 587,190 $  (81,956) $ 3,267,059
Accumulated Amortization
Balance Balance
April 1, 2008 Amortization Disposals March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)
Facilities and improvements ~ $ 467,293 $ 45,692 $ (21,335 $ 491,650
Equipment 253,538 39,629 (39,373) 253,794
Information systems 97,238 33,531 (4,736) 126,033
Leased facilities and
improvements 27,313 11,348 (2,382) 36,279
Building service equipment 27,069 3,245 (3,366) 26,948
Land improvements 5,024 328 (1,229) 4,123
$ 877,475 3 133,773 $ (72421) $ 938,827
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Note 4 Capital Assets (continued) Note5 Other Assets

2009 2008
(a) Land (thousands of dollars)
Land at the following sites has been provided to the Region at nominal values: Grants receivable from East Central Health (Note 23) $ 11,742 $ S
Sit , X Goodwill - 25,804
Siic Provided b Lease Expiry Intangible asset — premise leases
. s . . . (net of accumulated amortization of $213 (2008 - $142) 230 301
Alberta Children’s Hospital University of Calgary December 21, 2101 Forgivable mortgage receivable — non-current portion 2,828 2,973
Foothills Medical Centre University of Calgary July 30, 2054 $ 14,800 $ 29,078
parkade 2 >
i A Mineral Springs January 30, 2028 As at March 31, 2009, the Region recorded goodwill impairment of $25,804,000 within

Hospital Support Services on the Consolidated Statement of Operations related to the purchase of CLS
in 2006. This impairment is due to the announcement during the year of a new and fully
integrated provincial health service delivery model, Alberta Health Services effective April I,
2009. Prior to this announcement, CLS and its management provided almost all of the clinical
laboratory services required by the Calgary Health Region. Effective April 1, 2009 CLS and
its management join the clinical laboratory service providers of the other entities within AHS
to become one fully integrated provincial clinical laboratory.

(b)  Asset Retirement Obligations

The Region has recorded a liability for an asset retirement obligation of $2,409,026

(2008 - $4,118,000) (Note 8). The asset retirement obligation represents the legal

obligations associated with the removal of asbestos during planned renovations at the

Foothills Medical Centre. The Region has also identified other asset retirement

obligations for which the fair value cannot be reasonably estimated due to the Note 6
indeterminate timing and scope of the removal. The asset retirement obligation for

these assets will be recorded in the period in which there is sufficient information to

estimate fair value.

Deferred Contributions
The balance at the end of the year is restricted for the following purposes:

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)

(¢) Funding

Capital assets have been funded from the following sources:

Current:

Inpatient acute nursing services $ 25,165 $ 21,136
2009 2008 Emergency and outpatient services 13,493 19,931
(thousands of dollars) Continuing care services 8,505 11,628
Community-based care 9907 16,159
Externally funded (unamortized external capital Diagnostic and therapeutic services 7425 7,555
contributions) $ 1,879,405 $ 1,526,513 Promotion, prevention and protection services 6,007 5,978
Internally funded (investment in capital assets) 278,012 238,540 Research and education 8,206 6,345
Funded by debt 170,815 119,297 Information technology 396 1,291
Support services 31,873 4,154
$ 2328232 $ 1,884,350 Other 1,382 1,148
112,359 95,325

Non-current:
Alzheimer/dementia facility 2,828 2,973
Long-term care partnership projects (Note 18) 32,764 32,299
35,592 35,272
$ 147,951 $ 130,597
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Note 7 Deferred Capital Contributions Note 8 Long-term Debt (continued)

Balance at the end of the year is restricted for the following purposes: (b) The Region leases a building from the University of Calgary.
2009 2008 (©) The maturity dates and interest rates are:
(thousands of dollars)}
(Restated) Maturity
(Note 24) Date Interest Rate
Facilities and improvements $ 657259 $ 642,170 Original Market
Information systems 102,313 114,292
Equipment 14,185 14,930 Debentures payable:
Parkade loan #1 September 2026 4.4025% 4.2625%
$ 773,757 $ 771,392 Parkade loan #2 September 2027 4.3870% 4.3339%
Parkade loan #3 March 2029 4.9150% 4.4410%
Note 8§ Long-term Debt Calgary Laboratory
2009 2008 Services purchase May 2013 4.6810% 2.2683%
Fair Fair Obligation under capital
Value Cost Value Cost lease January 2028 6.5000% 4.4082%

thousands of dollars
Debentures payable: © ( )

Parkade loan #1 $51,366 $50,722 $ 53,601 $ 52,614
Parkade loan #2 45,943 45,664 47,937 47,238 () The Region is committed to making payments as follows:
Parkade loan #3 57,375 55,000 - -
Calgary Laboratory Services . - Debentures Capital Lease
purchase 30,522 28,535 35,865 34,109 Principal Minimum Lease
$185,206 179.921 $137,403 133,961 Year ending March 31 Payments Payments

(thousands of dollars)

Obligation under capital lease:

Building ® $18,974 15,724 $19,754 16,097 2010 $ 11,125 § 1,383

—— _— 2011 11,645 1,383

Asset retirement obligation (Note 4(b)) 2,409 4,118 2012 12,190 1,383

$198,054 $154,176 2013 12,760 1,395

S S 2014 9,804 1,453

Thereafter 122,397 21,204

Current $ 12,135 $ 11,353 5 T o

Nomenment o3 0s [ Less: interest 12,477)
$198,054 $154,176 ess: interes (12,

$ 15,724

(a) The Region issued debentures to Alberta Capital Financing Authority (a Province of
Alberta related party) to finance the construction of parkades and the purchase of the
remaining 50.01% ownership interest in CLS. The Region has pledged as security
for these debentures revenues derived directly or indirectly from the operations of all
parking facilities being built, renovated, owned and operated by the Region.

Parkade loan #1 financed parkades at Foothills Medical Centre and Alberta
Children’s Hospital.

Parkade loan #2 financed parkades at Rockyview General Hospital, Peter Lougheed
Centre and Sheldon M. Chumir Centre.

Parkade loan #3 financed parkades at South Health Campus and Foothills Medical
Centre.
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Note 9 Long-term Employee Benefit Liabilities (continued)

Note 9 Long-term Employee Benefit Liabilities
(b) The Region participates in the Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP), which is a

(a) Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan multi-employer defined benefit plan. The pension expense recorded in these financial
2009 2008 statements is equal to the Region’s contributions to the plan during the year as
(thousands of dollars) determined by LAPP to provide for future benefits payable. Since January 1, 2009, the
contribution rates for the employer were 8.46% for earnings up to the Year’s

Net accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 12,905 $ 11,397 Maximum Pensionable Earnings (YMPE) and 11.66% for earnings above YMPE to the
Current service cost 1,278 1,591 maximum allowed. The LAPP Board of Trustees conducts a full review of the plan’s
Interest cost 768 694 performance each year. If the performance deviates from the Board’s economic and
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,330) 38 demographic assuraptions, contribution rate changes may be necessary.
Benefit payments (1,879) (865)

At December 31, 2008, LAPP reported a deficiency of $4,413,971,000 (2007 —
Net accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 11,742 3 12,905 deficiency of $1,183,334,000). The Region has insufficient information to determine
its share of this deficit. Therefore, no obligation has been recorded.

Net accrued benefit obligation $ 11,742 $ 12,905 () Pension expense
Unrecognized actuarial loss (1,943) (4,125) P o
Unrecognized prior service costs (408) (606) (tgw % of dall 0)8
ousands of dollars
Reported Labilit; 9,391 $ 8,174 . .
eportec Habiity . . Local Authorities Pension Plan $ 81,098 $ 68,439
. o 5 Defined contribution pension plans 9,642 8,821
Current service cost $ B2k $ Lr Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 3,096 2,939
Interest cost 768 694
Prior service cost amortization 198 175
Actuarjal loss amortization 852 479 $ ELE 3 _80.1%
Net benefit cost $ 3,096 $ 2,939
) Note 10  Commitments and Contingencies
Assumptions:
Discount rate for accrued benefit obligation 6.2% 52% (a) Leases
Discount rate for benefit cost 5.2% 52%
Expected average remaining service life of employees 9 years 9 years The Region is contractually committed to future operating lease payments until 2025
Salary increase 4% 4% as follows:
Date of actuarial valuation - March 31, 2009
Year ending March 31 (thousands of dollars)
The value of the accrued benefit obligation under the Plan is fully secured by a
combination of contingent assets in the form of a letter of credit held by the trustee plus 2010 $ 18,396
the balance in the refundable tax account held by the Canada Revenue Agency. The letter 7011 18,090
of credit is payable to the trustee only if a designated event as defined by the Plan occurs. 2012 17,885
A designated event includes, for example, the Region becoming insolvent or bankrupt and 2013 17,483
failing to meet certain Plan conditions. 2014 16,854
Thereafter 71,105

The amount of the letter of credit has been calculated assuming the Plan has been

terminated within the period April 1 to March 31 and all benefits settled in lump sum $ 159,813
payments. The lump sum payment for each member is sufficient to purchase an annuity T
using the Plan’s prescribed assumptions and to pay the member’s income tax on the lump

sum and interest thereon to the date of pension commencement. The required face amount

for the letter of credit according to the trust agreement is 110% of the actuarial present

value for each member plus 110% of a reasonable estimate of expenses less the assets in

the refundable tax account. The face amount of the letter of credit is $21,479,000

($18,430,000 for April 1, 2007 to March 31, 2008).

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009 Calgary Health Region




Note 12 Alberta Health and Wellness Contributions
Note 10  Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

2009 2008
(b) Capital Assets (thousands of dollars)
The Region has the following outstanding contractual commitments for capital assets: Unrestricted contributions $ 2,568,906 $ 2,207,907
Restricted contributions recognized as
2009 revenue 290,809 213,245
(thousands of dollars)
$ 2,859,715 $ 2421,152
Facilities and improvements $ 1,375,052
Information systems 23,642
Equipment . 4348 Note 13 Other Government Contributions
S 1403042 2009 2008

. (thousands of dollars)
(¢}  Contracted Health Service Operators
. . —_— . . Alberta Government
The Region contracts on an ongf)mg_basm Wlth voluntary anld private health service Alberta Infrastructure % 11276 $ 8300
operators to provide health services in the Region. The Region has contracted for b A Bl
services in the year ending March 31, 2010 similar to those provided by these Other 18, :

operators in 2009. Transition grant from East Central Health 20,615 =
Full cost adjustments:
(d) Legal Fair value for use of non-owned
acute care facilities (Note 19(e)) 655 649
The Authority has been named as a defendant in a legal action in respect of increased Fair value for use of non-owned
long-term care accommodation charges levied effective August 1, 2003. The claim non-acute care facilities 493 2,610
has been filed against the Province of Alberta and the Regional Health Authorities,
The amount of the claim is in excess of $150 million based on the amount of the Unrestricted contributions
increase in accommodation charges levied, which came into effect Angust 1, 2003. Alberta government 239 307
The outcome of the claim is not determinable. Other government 2,477 2,061
In the ordinary course of operations, various claims and lawsuits are brought against
$ 54,666 $ 31,631

the Region. While it is not possible to estimate the ultimate liability with respect to
pending litigation, the Region believes there will be no material adverse effect on the

financial position of the Region.
Note 14  Fees and Charges

2009 2008

Note 11  Budget
(thousands of dollars)

A preliminary business plan with a budgeted deficit of $222.4 million was submitted to the

Minister of Health and Wellness in early fiscal 2008-2009. Subsequent to the submission Acute care — inpatient $ 57,795 $ 52,956
several revisions were submitted to the new AHS executive reflecting reclassifications Acute care — outpatient 25,165 19,135
between revenue and expense categories. The reported budget reflects the original $222.4 Continuing care 21,238 19,812
million deficit and the classifications used for reporting and internal accountability. Other 7,430 6,554
Over the course of the fiscal year, the Minister provided additional funding for FeeCsoi]:i(jlzihr?gri:Sre contracted operators: 60.899 57.890
$186,082,000. The Board has allocated these additional resources to address the Other 5’0 65 4’170

expectations of the funding.

$ 177,592 $ 160,517
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Note 15  Ancillary Operations Note I8  Long-term Care Partnership Projects

2009 2008 The Alberta Government has supported long-term care partnership projects by providing
(thousands of dollars) one-time, up-front funding to enable the Region to make annual supplementary payments to
Deficiency the partners over the term of the partnership contracts. Amounts invested under the terms of
of Excess of long-term care partnership agreements will be utilized to fund futnre payments to operators
Revenue Revenue over the next 24 years. These payments have a net present value of $28,456,584 at March 31,
Direct Amortization AL over 2009 (2008 - $29,953.,449) discounted at 2.5% (2008 — 2.9%). The investments have a
Revenue Expenses Expense Expenses Revenue Expenses market value at March 31, 2009 of $31,189,269 (2008 - $36,201,000) of which $29,757,500

is classified as long-term. The Region is subject to risk in that the invested amounts may not

Il:}zr[lr;ﬁg{;afrg;%ns $ 21,790 $ 15,200 $ 4,550 $ 2,040 $ 19,950 $ 3,672 earn a rate of return adequate to meet the payments as they become due.
services 11,772 11,192 25 555 11,355 522

Sales of goods and 2009 2008
services 8,203 7,783 2 418 5,785 496 (thousands of dollars)

Rental operations 1,872 543 - 1,329 1,824 1,287

Administrative support Included in deferred contributions:
to Calgary Health ) Current portion $ 2,195 $ 2,184
Trust (Note 19 (d)(i))} - 4,492 - (4,492) - (4,748) Non-current portion 32,764 32,299

$ 43,637 $ 39,210 3 4,577 $ (150) $ 38,914 $ 1,229

$ 34,959 $ 34,483

These expenses are included in Support Services on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Note 16  Investment and Other Income Note19  Related Partics

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)

(a) Province of Alberta

The Minister of Health and Wellness appoints the board members of Alberta Health

Recoveries of services, dru d material i
Investment income B and materias s 73’823 § ;?’gg? Services. The Region is economically dependent upon the Ministry of Health and
Workers’ Compensation Board special dividend 4’905 5,908 Wellness since the viability of its ongoing operations depends on contributions from
Other 10,826 11’992 the Ministry. Transactions between the Region and the Ministry are disclosed in the
> = Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of
$ 96,323 $ 109,870 Operations, and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Investment income consists of interest income, gains/losses on disposal of investment, and (b) Health Authorities and Boards

foreign exchange gains/losses.

The Region shares a common relationship with other health authorities and boards
through its relationship with the Province of Alberta. The Region had the following
transactions with other health authorities and boards recorded on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Financial Position at the amounts of consideration
agreed upon between the related parties:

Note 17  Research and Education
Research and education expenses were funded from the following sources:

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)

Alberta Health and Wellness contributions:

Restricted $ 36,869 $ 32,368
Unrestricted 8,003 6,733
Other government contributions 322 69
Donations 1,512 1,157
Investment and other income 2,665 2,342

$ 49,371 $ 42,669

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009 Calgary Health Region




Note 19  Related Parties (continued) Note 19  Related Parties (continued)

2009 2008 The Region, the Trust, and the Unijversity of Calgary (the “University”) are
collaborating in a joint fundraising initiative branded “Reach!”. The purpose of
Receivable $32,367 $6,647 Reach! is to employ the expertise of the participants to create specific donor
Payable 1,359 1,719 opportunities and raise philanthropic capital to achieve new world standards of
Revenne 64,408 36,802 health care. Under the initiative, the Trust receives donations and makes grants to
Expense 10,189 11,211 ‘the Region, the University and other health-related organizations as requested by

the donors.

The following aggregated financial information of the Trust is presented using the

(c) Primary Care Networks same accounting policies as the Region.
The Region’s share of the Primary Care Networks’ contributions from Alberta Health Calgary Health Trust
and Wellness, including amounts received less amounts recognized as revenue in the 2009 2008
year, are as follows: (thousands of dollars)
2009 2008
(thousands of dollars) Revenue $ 51,530 $ 34,721
Expenses 50,518 33,726
Deferred contributions, beginning of year $ 9,244 $ 11,162 Excess of revenue over expenses $ 1,012 $ 995
Contributions from Alberta Health and Wellness 16,986 10,385
Amounts recognized as revenue (19,012) {12,303) Total assets $ 95,675 $ 108,062
Total liabilities (80,886) (90,239)
Deferred contributions, end of year $ 7,218 $ 9,244 Net assets $ 14,789 $ 17,823
(d) Foundations Resources held by the Trust:
Endowments $ 13,777 $ 16,799
(i) Calgary Health Trust Unrestricted 1,012 1,024
The Calgary Health Trust is considered a controlled foundation as the Region Deferred contributions 73,371 76,599
appoints the majority of the voting members of the Foundation’s Board of
Directors. The purpose of the Trust is to benefit the Region, each facility within the
Region and individual health programs and services operated by the Region, and to Transactions in the normal course of operations between the Region and the Trust are as
hold funds for its own account and, without restriction, to manage endowment funds follows:
received from any source. The Trust is a registered charity under the Income Tax
Act (Canada). The Calgary Health Trust is not consolidated in these financial 2009 2008
statements. (thousands of dollars)
Grants and administrative support provided to the
Trust for operating expenses $ 4492 5 4,748
Charitable disbursements received by the Region 19,566 11,821
Accounts payable to the Region (43) 273)
Fair value for use of office space provided by the
Region — not included in administrative support 350 350
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Note 19  Related Parties (continued)
(i1)  Other Foundations

The Region has economic interests in several foundations which raise funds to
benefit the Region and other health related entities. The resources held by these
foundations are not necessarily limited for use by the Region. These foundations
are not consolidated in these financial statements. The foundations are registered
charities under the Income Tax Act (Canada). The foundations are:

Alberta Children’s Hospital Foundation
Canmore and Area Health Care Foundation
Claresholm and District Health Foundation
High River District Health Care Foundation
Oilfields/Okotoks Health Foundation
Rosebud Health Foundation

Strathmore District Health Foundation

(e)  Contracted Health Service Operators

The Region has an economic interest through its contracts with voluntary and private
health service providers in the region. Funding was provided as follows:

Fees
and
Direct Charges Full
Regional and Other Cost
Funding Income Adjustments Total
(thousands of doflars)
2009
Voluntary health service providers  § 91,214 $ 25,019 $ 635 $ 116,888
Private health service providers 157,042 41,266 - 199,208
$ 249,156 $ 66,285 3 655 $ 316,096
2008
Voluntary health service providers  § 76,964 $ 23282 $ 649 $ 100,895
Private health service providers 142,526 39,370 - 181,896
$ 219,490 $ 62,652 $ 649 $ 282,791
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Note 19

Note 20

Related Parties (continued)
()  University of Calgary

The University is considered a related party as the Province of Alberta appoints the
board members of both the Region and the University. Transactions in the normal
course of operations between the Region and the University recorded at their exchange
amounts are as follows:

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)
Amount included in expenses $ 40,000 % 37,000
Amount included in revenue @ 23,000 18,000
Net payable by the Region to the University 3,000 11,500

® The Region pays to the University amounts related to: physicians; research

projects, studies and grants; programs; and support services.
@ The Region receives from the University amounts related to: utilities; salaries and
benefits; and materials, supplies and overheads.

The Region leases a building from the University (Note 8(b)).

Trust Funds

The Region receives funds in trust from Alberta Health and Wellness to pay other Regional
Health Authorities for certain programs coordinated by the Region. The Region receives other
funds in trust for research and development, education and other programs. The Region
receives funding from Alberta Health and Wellness for the Primary Care Networks; the Region
uses these funds to cover the Primary Care Networks’ expenditures until they make their own
banking arrangements. The Region also receives funds in trust from continuing care residents
for personal expenses. These amounts are not reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)

Balance of funds held by the Region:

Alberta Health and Wellness $ 9,643 $ 31,879

Research and development, education and
other programs 5,585 5,036
Primary Care Networks 3,151 3,286
Continuing care residents 650 537
$ 19,029 $ 40,738
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Note 21

Note 22

Note 23

Accumulated Deficit

The health region has reported an accumulated deficit at March 31. Per Alberta Regulation
15/95 of the RHA Act, AHS will provide the Minister with a plan, in writing, that is
satisfactory to the Minister, to eliminate the net accumulated deficit of all health regions
combined, within three years of incurrence.

New Governance Structure

On May 15, 2008, the Minister of Health and Wellness restructured the governance model
of health services delivery system in Alberta. A single common board replaced the board
members of each of Alberta’s nine regional health authority boards, Alberta Mental Health
Board, Alberta Cancer Board, and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission. Effective
April 1, 2009, all the entities including the Region but excluding East Central Health will be
disestablished and all the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of these entities including
the Region will be assumed by East Central Health whose name will change to Alberta
Health Services (“AHS”).

Transition and Restructuring Costs

As at March 31, 2009, the Region recorded transition costs and restructuring expenses in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations. The expenses consist of severance and termination
benefits, professional services, consulting costs and other applicable transition expenses. In
the Consolidated Statement of Operations, these expenses are included in Administration,
Support Services and Information Technology.

Severance-
Related
Charges Other Charges Total
(thousands of dollars)
Liability as at March 31, 2008 $ - $ = $ =
Amounts expensed 6,619 1,067 7,686
Amounts capitalized - 4,258 4,258
Payments made during the year (3,827) (1,067) (4,894)
Liability as at March 31, 2009 $ 2,792 S 4,258 $ 7,050
Unfunded Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan $ 5 $ 12,929 $ 12,929

East Central Health received $80 million in funding from Alberta Health and Wellness for
the costs of Alberta Health Services transitioning and the Region has recorded a receivable
from East Central Health for the transition costs incurred as described above.

The transition grant restrictions include payments for the unfunded status of the Region’s
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. The Region has recorded a non-current receivable
from East Central Health for the amount of the accrued benefit obligation at the end of the
year. The Region has also recorded a current receivable from East Central Health for the
amount of any lump sum supplementary executive retirement plan payments during the year
as part of a severance package.
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Note 24

Note 25

Note 26

Prior Period Adjustment

During the year, the Region identified and corrected errors from prior years. These errors
and related adjustments to previously reported balances are as follows:

(a) Liabilities related to one capital project were not recorded at March 31, 2008.

(b) Various capital projects were not amortized on a timely basis for the period from
2002 to 2008.

(©) The Region reviewed the internal/external funding split in the capital assets sub-

ledger and identified capital assets that were previously reported with incorrect
funding sources for the period from 1999 to 2008,

As
Originally
Reported (a) (b) (c) As Restated
{Note 25) (in thousands)
For the year ended March 31, 2008
Revenue $2,855,095 $ - $ 972 $ 198 $2,856,265
Expenses 2,952,641 - 2,178 - 2,954,819
Deficiency of revenue over
expenses (97,546) - (1,206) 198 (98.554)
As at March 31, 2008
Capital assets 1,882,951 3,737 (2,338) - 1,884,350
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 281,525 3,737 - - 285,262
Deferred capital contributions 774,455 3,737 - 674 771,392
Unamortized external capital
contributions 1,521,363 3,737 (1,330) 2,743 1,526,513
Unrestricted net assets (192,354) - (674) (193,028)
Investment in capital assets 247,480 - (1,008) (2.743) 243,729
As at March 31, 2007
Net assets 176,480 - 199 (3,615) 173,064

Comparative Figures

Certain 2008 figures have been reclassified to conform to 2009 presentation.
Approval of Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Alberta Health Services
Roard.
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Schedule 1 (continued)
Schedule 1 CALGARY HEALTH REGION
CALGARY HEALTH REGION -
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009 (thousands of dollars)
(thousands of dollars)

@ Other contracted services include the following:

2009 2008
2009 2008
(Restated)
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 24}
(Note 11) (Restated)
(o) Medical purchased services $ 282,015 232,704
Salaries and benefits (Schedule 2) S 1768853 5 L764059 S 1,579,404 S‘h“ U EE RIS 131,932 128,535
i X egal fees 3,480 3,569
Contracts with health service operators 394,002 408,745 357,792 Other professional fees 10.896 12,338
Contracts under the Health Care Protection Act 17,586 16,354 16,914 = -
Drugs and gases 96,633 97,792 92,601
Medical and surgical supplies 123.671 126,457 117,513 S 2571 I 56
Other contracted services ® 398,268 428,423 377,146
Interest on long-term debt 6,864 6,812 6,176 @ . .
Goodwill impaitment (Note 5) 5 25,804 - Other includes the following:
Other ® 341,815 320,724 292,231
3,147,692 3,195,170 2,839,777 2009 2008
(Restated)
Amortization: (Note 24)
Capital equipment — internally funded 15,959 7,321 8,276
Capital equipment — externally funded 36,258 34,725 33,119 Clinical lab and therapeutic supplies $ 51,393 $ 45902
Information systems — internally funded 13,132 17,336 10,165 Utilities 38,893 35,472
Information systems — externally funded 15,984 16,195 15,096 Rented space 34,578 30,731
Facilities and improvements — internally funded 11,550 11,509 9,850 Equipment maintenance 29,422 25,033
Facilities and improvements — externally funded 38,244 56,223 38,466 Minor equipment 22,797 22,186
Intangible assets — internally funded 71 71 70 Department and office supplies 22,306 20,751
131,198 143,380 115,042 Food supplies 20,828 19,207
Repairs and maintenance 19,985 17,290
$ 3,278,890 $ 3,338,550 $ 2,954,819 Communication and education 19,319 24,176
Recruitment and travel 18,060 16,362
Housekeeping and laundry supplies 9,776 9,990
Plant maintenance and equipment supplies 7,289 6,353
Insurance 4,733 4477
Other 21,345 14,301

$ 320,724 $ 292,231
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Schedule 2
CALGARY HEALTH REGION
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)
2009 2008
s 2
Other .g S g
Base Other Cash Non-Cash S g o
FTE’'s @ Salary @ Benefits © Benefits Y0 Subtotal Z 5 “e Total FTE’s @ Total
Board Chair ©
Ken Hughes — AHS 0.88 $- $- $- $- S - $- . $-
David Tuer 0.12 - 7 1 8 - - 8 1.00 39
Board Members ®

Jack Ady — AHS 0.88 s s . - - - - - -
Pierre Crevolin — AHS 0.21 - S e = - - - . .
Catherine Roozen — AHS 0.63 - - - s - - - - -
Linda Hohol — AHS 0.88 S S S = - - - R R
John Lehners - AHS 0.88 - - - - S . S - -
Irene Lewis — AHS 0.88 - - - - - S S S S
Don Sieben — AHS 0.88 - - - - s s S S S
Lori Andreachuk — AHS 0.33 - - - - - S S 5 5
Gord Bontje — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - = S =
Teri Lynn Bougie — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - S S
Jim Clifford — AHS 0.33 - - - S s S S = =
Strater Crowfoot — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - S s =
Tony Franceschini — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - s S
Andreas Laupacis — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - - - -
Gord Winkel — AHS 0.33 - - - - - - S S =
Courtney Roussean 0.12 - 5 - 5 - - 5 1.00 23
Diane Caleffi 0.12 - 6 - 6 - - 6 1.00 10
George Pinchbeck 0.12 - 7 7 - - 7 1.00 23
Gordon McPherson 0.12 - 6 - 6 - - 6 1.00 18
Loreen Gilmour 0.12 - 3 1 4 - - 4 1.00 12
Lynn Martin 0.12 - 6 1 7 - - 7 1.00 22
Mairi Matheson 0.12 - 5 - 5 - - 5 1.00 8
Marjorie Ricketts 0.12 - 5 - 5 - - 5 1.00 13
Myron Kanik - - - - - - - - 0.46 3
N.D. (Skip) Mcdonald 0.12 - 1 - 1 - - 1 1.00 4
Nancy Laird 0.12 - 1 - 1 - - 1 1.00 2
Robert Moskovitz - - - - - - - - 0.24 3
Sandy Dougall 0.12 - 3 - 3 - - 3 1.00 8

10.20 $- $55 $3 $58 - $- $58 12.70 $ 188
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Schedule 2 (continued)
CALGARY HEALTH REGION
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
= 4
Other ; g E
Other Non-Cash 2 E g
Base Cash Benefits 5T D
FTE’s © Salary ® Benefits © @D Subtotal Z = » < Total FTE’s @ Total
Board Direct Reports @
President and Chief Executive Officer - AHS @ 0.02 $- $- $- $- - $- $- - $-
Contracted Service - Interim Chief Executive
Officer - AHS © 0.88 - = = - = s s S 5
Chief Executive Officer ®© 0.27 106 78 484 668 1 1,671 2,339 1.00 1,335
Medical Officer of Health 1.00 257 46 97 400 - - 400 1.00 334
Chief Audit Executive @ 1.00 223 39 60 322 - - 322 1.00 218
CEO Direct Reports ©

President and Chief Operating Officer © 1.00 316 140 203 659 - - 659 1.00 612
Interim President and Chief Operating Officer 0.71 171 29 39 239 = = 239 = .
Executive Vice President, Risk

Management and CFO ™ © 1.00 314 140 618 1,072 1 782 1,854 1.00 589
Senior Vice President, Planning and

Capital Development ¢ 1.00 210 29 43 282 - - 282 1.00 411
Senior Vice President, People and

Learning ™ © 0.02 5 1 3 9 - - 9 1.00 412
Senior Vice President, Interprofessional

Practice and Chief Nursing Officer @ ® 0.38 98 20 118 236 1 535 771 0.23 118
Senior Vice President and Chief Medical

Officer, Physician Leadership Portfolio ™ 1.00 380 95 104 579 - - 579 0.23 116
Senior Vice President, Advanced

Technology and Enterprise Reporting @ 1.00 334 71 155 560 - - 560 0.23 99
Senior Vice President, Communications

and Community Relations - - - - - - - - 0.78 482
Senior Vice President, Wellness 0.51 107 18 71 196 1 327 523 0.77 297
Senior Vice President, South Health

Campus 1.00 258 56 27 341 - - 341 0.23 47
Vice President, Strategic Health Planning 1.00 232 39 64 335 - - 335 0.23 66
Acting Senior Vice President, Patient

Experience and Advocacy S - o S S S & - 042 57
Senior Vice President and Advisor Patient

Experience and Advocacy - - - - - 1 382 382 0.88 511
Vice President, Government Relations and

Assistant Corporate Secretary © 1.00 189 40 49 278 - 278 1.00 255

12.79 3,200 841 2,135 6,176 5 3,697 9,873 12.00 5,959

Total Board and Executive 22.99 $ 3,200 $ 896 $ 2,138 $6,234 5 $3,697 $9,931 24.70 $6,147
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Schedule 2 (continued)
CALGARY HEALTH REGION
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)
2009 2008
5 4
< [
52 8
Other Other € g
Base Cash Non-Cash =2 R
, o -as z g 853
FTE's ¥ Salary ® Benefits © Benefits Subtotal = Total FTE’s @ Total
Board and executive 22.99 $3,200 $ 896 $2,138 $6,234 5 $ 3,697 $9,931 24.70 $6,147
Management reporting
to CEO direct reports 20.53 4,123 509 1,039 5,671 5 1,668 7,339 18.60 5,407
Other managers 947.71 95,541 2,181 16,980 114,702 28 2,660 117,362 915.93 111,684
Medical doctors 79.36 17,838 296 525 18,659 1 83 18,742 71.64 18,321
Regulated nurses:
RNs, RPNs, grad
nurses 6,329.88 517,630 39,774 86,146 643,550 3 140 643,690 6,143.11 599,871
LPNs 749.44 39,984 2,771 6,514 49,269 - - 49,269 708.67 41,489
Other health technical
and professional 4,816.58 319,068 10,398 59,957 389,423 5 186 389,609 4,324.79 351,191
Unregulated health
service 1,962.36 81,069 3,184 13,242 97,495 - - 97,495 1,844.68 82,253
Other staff 7,039.13 349,662 10,470 69,756 429,888 41 734 430,622 6,661.96 363,041
Total 21,967.98 $1,428,115 $ 70,479 $ 256,297 $ 1,754,891 88 $9,168 $ 1,764,059 20,714.08 $ 1,579,404
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Schedule 2 (continued)

CALGARY HEALTH REGION
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
2009 2008
Accrued Change in Accrued
Current Other Benefit Accrued Benefit
Service SERP Obligation Benefit Obligation
Cost Costs Total Total March 31, 2008 Obligation March 31, 2009

Chief Executive Officer @ $74 $395 $ 469 $704 $4,028 $(303) $3,725
Medical Officer of Health 33 44 77 121 421 57 478
Chief Audit Executive 26 17 43 12 170 27 197
President and Chief Operating Officer 101 98 199 186 872 43 915
Interim President and Chief Operating Officer 27 8 35 - 74 25 99
Executive Vice President, Risk Management

and CFO @ 91 520 611 181 1,001 (1,001) -
Senior Vice President, Planning and

Capital Development 24 18 42 57 265 14 279
Senior Vice President, People and Learning 24 39 63 50 165 (165) -
Senior Vice President, Interprofessional Practice

and Chief Nursing Officer @ 17 94 111 138 839 (207) 632
Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Officer,

Physician Leadership Portfolio 75 22 97 86 242 92 334
Senior Vice President, Advanced Technology

and Enterprise Reporting 101 33 134 120 311 145 456
Senior Vice President, Communications

and Community Relations - - - 53 - = =
Senior Vice President, Wellness © 16 47 63 81 494 (12) 482
Senior Vice President, South Health Campus 19 1 20 - - 17 17
Vice President, Strategic Health Planning 24 20 44 42 193 18 211
Vice President, Government Relations

and Assistant Corporate Secretary 19 10 29 17 80 7 87
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Scneaule Z (conunued)
CALGARY HEALTH REGION
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

a. Full-time equivalent (FTE) is determined at the rate of 2,022.75 annual hours for each full-time employee. Total actual discrete number of
individuals employed during the year was 35,597 (2008 — 33,767). “Discrete” number of individuals refers to all employees who were in the system
during the fiscal year.

b. Base salary includes pensionable base pay.
ch Other cash benefits include honoraria, bonuses, overtime and lump sum payments.
d. Other non-cash benefits include:

e Employer’s current and prior service cost of supplementary executive retirement plan per (f) below.

¢ Share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of employees including pension, health care, dental coverage, vision
coverage, out-of-country medical benefits, group life insurance, accidental disability and dismemberment insurance, long and short term disability
plans.

¢ Employer’s share of the cost of additional benefits including sabbaticals or other special leave with pay.

e. Severance includes direct or indirect payments to individuals upon termination, which are not included in other benefits.

f. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP)
Under the terms of the supplemental executive retirement plan, executives may receive supplemental retirement payments. SERP costs are not cash
payments in the period but are the period expense for rights to future compensation. SERP costs shown reflect the actuarially estimated cost to provide
pension income over the post-employment period. SERP provides future pension benefits to participants based on years of service and earnings. See also

accounting policy Note 2(e) Employee Future Benefits and (Note 9) Long-term Employee Benefit Liabilities.

Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefit earned in the fiscal year. Other SERP costs include amortization of past service costs on
plan initiation, amortization of actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability.

The change in the accrued benefit obligation includes current service cost, interest accruing on the actuarial liability and the full amount of any actuarial
gain or loss in the period.
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Schedule 2 (continued)
CALGARY HEALTH REGION
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

8. On May 15, 2008, the Region’s board, along with the other regional health authority boards, was replaced by the Alberta Health Services (‘AHS’) interim
board according to Ministerial Order 50/2008. On December 1, 2008, an additional 8 panel members were appointed to complete the 15 member board.
Salaries and benefits of the AHS board members are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of East Central Health.

h. Board Direct Reports reflect FTE’s and costs for the entire 08-09 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at May 15, 2008.

i On July 8, 2008 the Region’s CEO was terminated. The Interim CEO - AHS was appointed effective May 15, 2008 to manage the operations of the
health regions, provincial boards and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission and to effect their transition to a single provincial health
authority. Salary and benefits of the Interim CEO - AHS are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of East Central Health. The President
and CEO — AHS was appointed effective March 23, 2009. Salary and benefits of the President and CEO - AHS are reported and disclosed in the
financial statements of East Central Health.

iR This position was held by two incumbents during the year.

k. CEO Direct Reports reflect FTE’s and costs for the 08-09 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at July 8, 2008. Any title
changes subsequent to July 8, 2008 are noted in (1) through (s) below.

L This position was held by two incumbents during the year. Effective July 8, 2008:
e  The President and Chief Operating Officer of the Region transitioned to the Chief Operating Officer - Urban - AHS. Costs incurred are reported
in the accounts of the Region.
e  The Interim President and Chief Operating Officer was appointed for the Region.

m. Effective July 8, 2008 the Executive Vice President, Risk Management and Chief Financial Officer of the Region was also appointed the Interim
Chief Financial Officer - AHS. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of the Region. Effective March 31, 2009 the incumbent departed.

n. Effective April 7, 2008, the incumbent retired. Due to organization restructuring from April 7, 2008 to July 28, 2008 this position reported to the
Interim President and Chief Operating Officer, and is included in Management reporting to CEO Direct Reports. Effective July 28, 2008, the Interim
Senior Vice President of Human Resources - AHS was appointed and reported to the Interim Chief Operating Officer, Corporate Services - AHS.
Effective December 1, 2008 the position transitioned to the Interim Human Resources Lead and Vice President, Total Rewards and Human Resource
Analytics and reported to the Special Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer, Corporate Services - AHS. Costs incurred for the Interim Senior Vice
President of Human Resources - AHS and the Interim Human Resources Lead and Vice President, Total Rewards and Human Resource Analytics are
reported in the accounts of the Region.
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CALGARY HEALTH REGION

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Schedule 2 (continued)

(thousands of dollars)
0. Due to organization restructuring, effective August 15, 2008 this position was assumed by the Interim President and Chief Operating Officer. Costs
are captured in (1) above.
p. Effective February 6, 2009 the Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Officer, Physician Leadership Portfolio transitioned to the Senior Physician

Executive — AHS. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of the Region.

q. Effective November 20, 2008 the Senior Vice President, Advanced Technology and Enterprise Reporting of the Region was also appointed the Senior

Vice President and Chief Information Officer - AHS. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of the Region.

r. Effective October 3, 2008 the incumbent retired. Subsequently, the Wellness portfolio was realigned to report to the Chief Operating Officer - Urban -
AHS.
S. Effective June 17, 2008 the Vice President, Government Relations and Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Region transitioned to Chief of Staff,

Board Office - AHS. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of the Region. Effective June 17, 2008 the Vice President, Government Relations
and Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Region transitioned to the Vice President of Government Relations and Assistant Corporate Secretary -

AHS. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of the Region.

t. These individuals are provided with an automobile allowance. Dollar amounts are included in other cash benefits (c) above.

u. Based on future SERP compensation benefits described under (f) above, the following schedule outlines pension income received by individuals who

departed within the 2008-09 fiscal period:

Name Pension Income Frequency Term
(not in thousands)

Chief Executive Officer $ 22,409 Monthly Indefinite
Executive Vice President, Risk Management

and CFO 1,186,758 Lump-Sum One-Time
Senior Vice President, Interprofessional Practice

and Chief Nursing Officer 3,919 Monthly Indefinite
Senior Vice President, Wellness 2,991 Monthly Indefinite
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David Thompson Health Region
Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting
March 31, 2009

The accompanying final consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of management and have
been reviewed and approved by Senior Management. The consolidated financial statements were
prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and the Financial
Directives issued by Alberta Health and Wellness, and of necessity include some amounts based on
estimates and judgment.

To discharge its responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of financial reporting, management
maintains a system of internal accounting controls comprising written policies, standards, procedures, a
formal authorization structure, and satisfactory processes for reviewing intemnal controls. This system
provides management with reasonable assurance that transactions are in accordance with governing
legislation, are properly authorized, reliable financial records are maintained, and assets are adequately
accounted for and safeguarded.

The Region members carry out their responsibility for the consolidated financial staternents through the
Audit and Finance Committee. This Committee meets with management and the Office of the Auditor
General of Alberta to review financial matters, and recommends the final consolidated financial
statements to the Alberta Health Services Board for approval upon finalization of the audit. The Office
of the Auditor General of Alberta has free access to the Audit and Finance Committee.

The Office of the Auditor General of Alberta provides an independent audit of the consolidated financial
statements. His examination is conducted in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and includes tests and other procedures, which will allow him to report on the faimess of the
consolidated financial statements prepared by management.

[Original signed] [Original signed] [Original signed]

Bryan Judd Chris Mazurkewich Dr. Stephen Duckett

Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer President & Chief Executive
Officer

David Thompson Health Region  Alberta Health Services Alberta Health Services

June 11, 2009 June 11, 2009 June 11, 2009
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of the Alberta Health Services Board
and the Minister of Health and Wellness

I'have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of the David Thompson Health
Region (the Authority) as at March 31, 2009 and the consolidated statements of operations,
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Authority’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as at March 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its
cash (lows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

The financial statements as at March 31, 2008 and for the year then ended were audited by other
auditors who expressed an opinion without reservation on those statements in their report dated
April 28, 2008.

[Original signed by Fred J. Dunn]
FCA
Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta
June 11, 2009
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David Thompson Health Region

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

ASSETS
Current:
Cash and investments (Note 3)
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable from Alberta Health and Wellness
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Non-current cash and investments (Note 3)
Capita] assets (Note 4)
Loans - continuing care partnership projects (Note 5)

Other assets (Note 6)
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued vacation pay

Deferred contributions (Note 7)

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 9)

Deferred capital contributions (Note 8)

Deferred contributions - continuing care partnership projects
Long-term debt (Note 9)

Unamortized external capital contributions (Note 4)

Net assets
Accumulated (deficit) surplus (Note 11)
Investment in capital assets from internally funded sources (Note 4)
Cumulative net unrealized gains on investments

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Subsequent event (Note 22)

2009 2008
(Restated)
(Note 21)
$ 99,825 $ 83,368
14,111 17,817
5,898 6,103
6,976 6,166
1,317 2,063
128,127 115,517
20,674 39,119
414,194 421,885
26,213 20,656
664 828
$589,872 $598,005
$ 60,051 $ 45,455
25,890 23,664
68,767 38,883
179 125
154,887 108,127
5,961 18,538
40,926 41,237
262 326
379,339 389,842
581,375 558,070
(25,492) 8,678
33,989 31,167
- 90
8,497 39,935
$589,872 $568,005

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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David Thompson Health Region
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

Revenue

Alberta Health and Wellness contributions (Note 14)

Other government contributions (Note 15)
Fees and charges

Ancillary operations (Note 16)

Donations

Investment and other income (Note 17)
Amortized external capital contributions

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenses (Schedule 1)
Facility-based inpatient acute nursing services
Facility-based emergency and outpatient services
Facility-based continuing care services
Community-based care
Home care
Diagnostic and therapeutic services
Promotion, prevention and protection services
Research and education
Administration
Information technology
Support services
Amortization of facilities and improvements

TOTAL EXPENSES

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses

2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
(Unaudited) (Restated)
(Note 13) (Note 21)

$ 571,848 $ 585,691 $ 577,065

5,047 10,377 11,673
34,159 36,711 33,724
5,266 4,463 4,864
971 3,021 1,703
14,187 16,553 15,036
28,412 26,039 24,697
659,890 682,855 668,762
175,207 181,006 164,659
46,247 55,808 46,626
73,816 74,938 69,062
34,320 34,009 29,693
24,929 25,781 21,558
111,596 111,340 101,271
22,848 21,933 20,506
629 570 644
32,113 39,130 27,637
24,902 19,179 17,126
129,996 134,082 120,926
16,703 16,427 16,390
693,306 714,203 636,098

$  (33416) $  (31,348) § 32,664

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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David Thompson Health Region
Consolidated Statement of Changes In Net Assets

For the Year Ended March 31, 2009

(thousands of doltars)

2009 2008
Cumulative net
Accumulated unrealized gains
surplus Investment in (losses) on
(deficit) capital assets investments Total Total
Balance at beginning of year $ 8,678 $ 31,167 $ 90 $ 39,935 $ 7,248
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses (31,348) - - (31,348) 32,664
Capital assets purchased with internal funds (8,299 8,299 - - -
Amortization on internally funded capital assets 5487 (5,487) - - -
Repayment of long-term debt used to fund capital
assets (257) 257 - - -
Proceeds from long-term debt 247 (247) - - -
Unrealized (losses) gains on "available-for-sale"
financial assets arising during the year - - (90) (90) 23
Balance at end of year $ (25492) § 33,989 3 S $ 8497 $ 39,935

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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David Thompson Health Region

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

Cash generated from (used by):
Operating activities:
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Items not involving cash
Amortization (Schedule 1)
Amortized external capital contributions
Changes in non-cash operating working capital (Note 18)

Cash generated from operations

Investing activities:
Purchase of capital assets:
Internally funded - equipment
Externally funded - equipment
Internally funded - facility and improvements
Externally funded - facility and improvements
(Decrease) increase in net unrealized gains on investments
Allocations to non-current cash and investments

Cash used by investing activities
Financing activities:
Capital contributions received
Principal payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from long-term debt
Allocations from non-current cash and investments
Cash generated from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and investments

Cash and investments, beginning of year

Cash and investments, end of year

2009 2008

Budget Actual Actual
(Unaudited) (Restated)
(Note 13) (Note 21)
$(33.416) $ (31348) $ 32,664
34,679 31,526 29,851
(28,412) (26,039) (24.697)
(37,113 44,849 39,476
(64,262) 18,988 77.294
(5,500) (5,704) (3,290)
(6,600) (7,899) (9,930)

(3,000) (2,595) S
(6,123) (7,637) (22,902)
- (90) 90
- - (12,402)
(21,223) (23,925) (48,434)
12,723 2,959 24,653
(123) 257) (210)

- 247 -

29,119 18,445 -
41,719 21,394 24,443
(43,766) 16,457 53,303
79,941 83,368 30,065
$ 36,175 $ 99,825 $ 83,368

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 1 Authority, Purpose and Operations

The David Thompson Health Region (the "Region™) was established June 24, 1994 under the Alberta
Regional Health Authorities Act, is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and exempt from
payment of income tax. Effective April 1, 2009 the Region was disestablished and all the assets and
liabilities were transferred to Alberta Health Services (Note 22).

The Region delivers appropriate, accessible and affordable health services in Alberta, operating
programs that promote, protect, maintain, restore and enhance physical and mental well-being.

The Region's operations include the following facilities and sites:

Bentley Care Centre

Breton Health Centre

Centennial Centre for Mental Health and Brain Injury
Consort Hospital and Care Centre
Coronation Hospital and Care Centre
Drayton Valley Hospital and Care Centre
Drumheller Health Centre

Hanna Health Centre

Innisfail Health Centre

Lacombe Hospital and Care Centre

Olds Hospital and Care Centre

Castor Community Health Centre

Consort Community Health Centre

Coronation Community Health Centre

Drayton Valley Community Health Centre

Drumheller Environmental Health and Support Services
Eckville Community Health Centre

Elnora Community Health Centre

Johnstone Crossing Community Health Centre
Lacombe Community Health Centre

Olds Community Health Centre

Drayton Valley Mental Health Centre
Drumheller Mental Health Centre
Hanna Mental Health Centre
Lacombe Mental Health Centre

Olds Mental Health Centre

Ponoka Mental Health Centre

Ponoka Hospital and Care Centre

Red Deer Nursing Home

Red Deer Regional Hospital Centre

Red Deer Valley Park Manor Care Centre
Rimbey Hospital and Care Centre

Rocky Mountain House Health Centre
Stettler Hospital and Care Centre

Sundre Hospital and Care Centre

Three Hills Health Centre

Wetaskiwin Hospital and Care Centre

Ponoka Community Health Centre

Red Deer Bremner Ave. Community Health Centre
Red Deer 49™ St. Community Health Centre
Rimbey Community Health Centre

Rocky Mountain House Community Health Centre
Stettler Community Health Services

Sundre Community Health Centre

Sylvan Lake Community Health Centre
Wetaskiwin Community Health Centre

Winfield Community Health Centre

Rimbey Mental Health Centre

Rocky Mountain House Mental Health Centre
Stettler Mental Health Centre

Three Hills Mental Health Centre
Wetaskiwin Mental Health Centre
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Note 1

Note 2

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Authority, Purpose and Operations (continued)

The financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities and operations of voluntary or private
facilities providing health services in the region, except as disclosed in Note 19.

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices
(a) Basis of Presentation

(1) The financial statements were prepared on a going concem basis notwithstanding the new
governance structure that became effective April 1, 2009 (Note 22).

(2) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and the reporting requirements of Alberta Health and Wellness’ Financial
Directive 34.

(3) These financial statements were prepared on a consolidated basis and include the accounts of the
facilities and sites disclosed in Note 1 but do not include the accounts of the foundations within
the Region (Note 19(d)).

(i) The Region uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its interests in
Primary Care Networks (Note 19(c)).

(4) These financial statements use the deferral method, the key elements of which are:

(i)  Unrestricted operating grants and other contributions are recognized as revenue in the year
recejvable.

(ii) Restricted non-capital contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the related expenses
are incurred.

(iii) Externally restricted capital contributions are recorded as deferred capital contributions until
invested in capital assets. Amounts invested, representing externally funded capital assets, are
transferred to unamortized external capital contributions. Unamortized external capital
contributions are recognized as revenue in the period in which the related amortization expense
of the capital assets is recorded.

(iv) Endowments and restricted contributions to purchase capital assets that will not be amortized
are recorded as direct increases to net assets.

David Thompson Regional Health Authority
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David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continuned)
(a) Basis of Presentation (continued)

(v) Investment income includes dividend and interest income, and realized investment gains and losses.
Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets are included directly in net assets or
deferred contributions as appropriate, until the asset is removed from the Statement of Financial
Position.  Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred. Other unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned.

(vi) Contributions in kind are recorded at fair value when such value can reasonably be determined.

(vi)Aneillary operations reflect gross revenues earned through the various activities undertaken. Related
expenses are reported under support services on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

(b) Capital Disclosure

Effective April 1, 2008, the Region implemented new capital disclosure requirements per section
1535 — Capital Disclosures of the CICA Handbook. For operating purposes, the Region defines
capital as including working capital and unrestricted net assets. For capital purposes, the Region
defines capital as including deferred capital contributions, unamortized external capital
contributions, and investment in capital assets.

The Region’s objectives for managing capital are:

e In the short term to safeguard the Region’s financial ability to continue to deliver health
services and

e In the long term to plan and to build sufficient physical capacity to meet future needs for
health services.

The majority of the Region’s operating funds are from Alberta Health and Wellness which is paid
on the first of each month.  As a result, significantly less working capital is required. The
Region monitors its working capital and cash flow forecasts.

Alberta Health and Wellness approves health care facilities based on long-term capital plans and
provides the majority of the funding through one-time capital grants. The Region funds the
required equipment and systems by a combination of allocating a portion of operating funds and
obtaining external funding from charitable donations and capital grants. The Region borrows to
finance capital investments related to ancillary operations since the department does not fund
ancillary operations.

The Region complied with all debt covenants during the year.
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Note 2

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(b) Capital Disclosure (continued)

(c

-~

Where a health region has incurred an accumulated deficit, legislation requires submission of a
deficit elimination plan (Note 11).

Full Cost

The Region accounts for all costs and revenue from services for which it is responsible. The fair
value of such services are recorded. Fair value transactions comprise the following:

(i) Revenue earned by contracted health service operators from Alberta Health and Wellness
designated fees and charges are recorded as the Region’s fees and charges. An equivalent
amount is recorded as contracted health service expense of the Region.

(i) Alberta Health and Wellness direct payments to contracted health service operators are
recorded as revenue and an equivalent amount recorded as program expense as these
payments represent part of the cost of the Region’s health programs.

(iii) The fair value for use of acute care facilities not owned by the Region is recorded as revenue
from other government contributions or donations, and as program expense, since contract
payments from the Region do not include an amount for use of these facilities,

(iv) The fair value for use of non-acute care facilities not owned by the Region and provided to
the Region at zero or nominal rent is recorded as other government contributions and as
program expense.

(v) Contributions of other assets, supplies and services that the Region would otherwise
purchase are recorded as revenue and expense, at fair value at the date of contribution, when
a fair value can be reasonably determined. Volunteers’ contributed services are not reported,
as a fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

(d) Employee Future Benefits

The Region participates in the Local Authorities Pension Plan. This multi-employer defined
benefit pension plan provides pensions for the Region's participating employees, based on years
of service and earnings. Defined contribution plan accounting is applied to a mulii-employer
defined benefit plan for which the Region has insufficient information to apply defined benefit
plan accounting. Pension costs comprise the employer’s contributions required for its employees
during the year, based on rates expected to provide benefits payable under the pension plan.
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Note 2

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(d) Employee future benefits (continued)

(e

~

The Region does not record its portion of the plan’s deficit or surplus. The Region fully accrues
its obligations for employee non-pension future benefits.

The Region provides a non-contributory defined benefit Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
(SERP) to senior executives (Note 10). The cost of these benefits is actuarially determined using
the projected benefit method pro-rated on service, a market interest rate, and an actuaria) estimate
of expected costs and the period of benefit coverage. Net actuarial gains and losses of the
benefit obligation are amortized over the average remaining service life of the group. Current
service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefits earned in the fiscal year. Prior service
and other costs include amortization of past service costs on plan initiation, amortization of
actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability. The Region’s SERP is
fully funded on an annual basis.

Investments
Investments are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2(f).

Transaction costs associated with the acquisition and disposal of investments are capitalized. The
purchase and sale of investments are accounted for using the trade date method of accounting.

Financial Instruments

Initial measurement of financial instruments is at fair value and subsequent measurement and
recognition of changes in value depend upon the classification. Financial assets classified as
“available for sale” are measured at fair value with changes in fair values recognized in the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets or deferred contributions until realized, at which time the
cumulative changes in fair value are recognized in the Statement of Operations. “Loans and
receivables”, financial liabilities classified as “other financial liabilities” and financial assets
classified as “held to maturity” are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Note 2

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (continued)

(g

-

The Region has classified its financial assets and financial liabilities as follows:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Classification
Cash and equivalents Held for trading

Available for sale

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Investments

Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable from Alberta Health and Wellness
Loans — continuing care partnership projects

Accounts payable

Long-term debt

When it is determined that an impairment of a financial instrument classified as available for sale
is other than temporary, the cumulative loss that had been recognized directly in net assets is
removed and recognized in the Statement of Operations even though the financial asset has not
been derecognized. Impairment losses recognized in the Statement of Operations for a financial
instrument classified as available for sale are not reversed.

The carrying value of receivables, payables and loans — continuing care partnerships project
approximate their fair value. The fair value of Investments is disclosed in Note 3 and the fair
value of Long-term debt in Note 9. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the
region is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from its financial
instruments.

Inventories

In June 2007 the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (the “CICA™) issued a new
accounting standard, Section 3031 Inventories which provides guidance on the recognition,
measurement and disclosure of inventories. The standard provides specific direction for not-for-
profit organizations to record inventories held for consumption or distribution at no charge at the
lower of cost or current replacement cost.

The Region adopted this new standard as of April 1, 2008 but did not adjust opening balances or
restate prior periods because the adoption did not have a material impact.

Inventories for consumption or distribution at no charge are recorded at lower of cost and current

replacement cost using the weighted average method of accounting. All other inventories are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, on an individual item basis.
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David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)
(h) Capital Assets
Capital assets and work in progress are recorded at cost and amortized over their estimated useful

lives on a straight-line basis as follows:
Useful life

Land improvements 10 - 20 years
Facilities and improvements 10 - 40 years
Equipment 3 -20 years
Leased equipment Lease term

Capital assets with unit costs less than five thousand dollars are expensed. Work in progress is
not amortized until the project is complete. Leases transferring substantially all benefits and risks
of capital assets ownership to the Region are reported as capital asset acquisitions financed by
long-term obligations.

(i) Measurement uncertainty

The financial statements, by their nature, contain estimates and are subject to measurement
uncertainty. Amortization of capital assets and external capital contributions is based on
estimates of the useful life of related assets. Accrued liabilities for utility contracts, home care
services and diagnostic testing are estimated based on prior usage. Actual results could differ
from estimates.
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Note 3

David Thompson Health Region

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Cash and Investments

Cash

Term deposits

Money market securities
Bonds and bond funds
Marketable securities

Total cash and investments
Classified as:
Current

Non-current

Total cash and investments

2009 2008
Fair Market Fair Market
Value Cost Value Cost
(Restated)
(Note 21)
$ 37,152 $ 37,152 $ 28,953 $ 28,953
1,533 1,533 1,308 1,308
67,036 67,037 77,418 77419
10,484 10,132 10,162 10,002
4,294 5,290 4,646 4,715
$120,499 $121.144 $122.487 122
$ 99,825 $ 83,368
20,674 39.119
$120,499 $122,487

(1) Term deposits represent funds held by Primary Care Networks (Note 19(c)). Eligible
investments and durations are defined within the Primary Care Initiative policies.

(i) To optimize returns at an acceptable risk level, management has established a policy asset mix of
0% to 60% for fixed-income instruments, 0% to 20% for equities and 20% to 100% for cash and
cash equivalents. Risk is reduced through diversification.

(iif) Fixed-income securities, such as bonds (Government of Canada, Provincial — other than
Alberta), and bond funds (Global Government Bond Index, Private Canadian Corporate) have an
average effective yield of 3.45% per year for securities maturing between one and six years. As
at March 31, 2009, the securities have the following maturity structure:

%
1 to 5 years 20
5to 10 years 10

(iv) Equities (Canadian — 62%, U.S. — 38%) comprise publicly-traded securities in major stock
markets. Risk is reduced by prudent security selection and sector rotation.
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David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 3 Cash and Investments (continued)
(v} Unrealized investment losses totalled $6435,000 at March 31, 2009. Of this amount, $400,000 is
refated to unrestricted investments and has been recognized within the Consolidated Statement
of Operations due to the likelihood that these investments will be liquidated during the next year.
The balance of $245,000 is related to restricted investments and is included within deferred
contributions.
Note 4 Capital Assets
Transfers from Closing
Opening Capital Balance
Balance Projects in March 31,
Capital Asset April 1, 2008 Progress Additions  Disposals 2009
(Restated)
(Note 21)
Land $ 6,577 $ 1,154 $ o $ - $ 7,731
Land improvements 11,293 - - (634) 10,659
Facilities and improvements 536,488 7,112 - (95) 543,505
Equipment 146,381 12,609 6,981 (5,750) 160,221
Capital projects in progress 47,178 (20,875) 16,854 - 43,157
$ 747,917 $ - $ 23,835 $ (6479) $ 765273
Acc lated Amortization Net Book Value
Opening Accumulated Closing
Balance Current Year Amortization Balance
April 1, 2008 Amortization on Disposals March 31, 2009  March 31,2009  March 31, 2008
(Restated) {Restated)
(Note 21) (Note 21)
Land $ S $ o $ S $ S $ 7,731 $ 6,577
Land improvements 3,830 845 (634) 4,041 6,618 7,463
Facilities and improvements 227,374 15,546 04 242,826 300,679 309,114
Equipment 94,828 15,099 (5,715) 104,212 56,009 51,553
Capital projects in progress - - - - 43,157 47,178
$ 326,032 $ 31,490 $ (6,443) $ 351,079 3 414,194 § 421,885
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Note 4

Note 5

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Capital Assets (continued)

(a) Leased equipment
Equipment was acquired through capital leases at a cost of $849,000 (2008 $602,000) with
accumulated amortization of $717,000 (2008 $443,000).

Capital assets were funded from the following sources:

2009 2008
Short-term debt $ 425 $ 425
Long-term debt 441 451
Unamortized external capital contributions 379,339 389,842
Investment in capital assets from internally funded sources 33,989 31,167

$414,194 $421.885

Loans - Continuing Care Partnership Projects

2009 2008
Loans receivable
Continuum Healthcare Corporation $ 122 $ 157
Michener Hill Village 7,563 1,314
Voluntary health service providers 18,528 19,185
$26213 $20.656

The Region has a non-interest bearing forgivable loan with Continuum Healthcare Corporation
initiated under the Healthy Aging Partnership Initiative. During the year, $35,416 (2008 $35,872)
was forgiven under the terms of the agreement.

The Region has signed contracts with three voluntary health service providers under the Private
Public Partnership Initiative (P3) and Health Aging Partnership Initiative (HAPI) to build and operate
continuing care and assisted living facilities within the region. The Region uses the forgivable
mottgage model for reporting the contribution and advancement of funds. The provincial
government supports partnerships between the Region and private, public or voluntary organizations
by providing a one-time, up-front capital grant. The Region in tumn provides a demand loan to the
partner. The partner uses these funds towards the construction of the facility. The loan is repayable
on demand, is secured by the facility and is forgivable for services rendered by the owner as per the
terms of the contract. During the year, $657,047 (2008 $657,047) was forgiven on the loans
receivable and has been recorded in the facility based continuing care services expense.

Pursuant to these contracts, interest has been charged at the bank prime rate (2.50% at March 31,
2009) plus 2% on the loans receivable for a total of $1,189,171 (2008 $1,642,844).  This amount is
included in investment income. The interest has been forgiven and $1,189,171 (2008 $1,642,844)
has been recorded in the facility based continuing care services expense. The remaining balance of
the loans will be forgiven on a straight-line basis or repaid over a term of 30 years.

David Thompson Regional Health Authority
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David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 6 Other Assets Note 8 Deferred Capital Contributions
2009 2008 Balance at the end of the year is restricted for the following purposes:
Laboratory Lean Project $132 $265 2009 2008
Mineral rights 24 24 )
Cooperative’s sharcs 3 3 Equipment replacement $ 558 $ 6,242
Accrued pension benefit 505 536 New construction 0:d03 12,296
foo4 5828 $ 5961 5 18538
The accrued pension benefit relates to the Supplementary Executive Retirement Plan, which is
fully funded (Note 10). Note 9 Long-term Debt
2008
Cost Fair Valoe Cost
Note 7 Deferred Contributions
Bank loan”’ $ 388 388
The balance at the end of the year is restricted for the following purposes: Obligations under capital lease® 63 63
451
2009 2008 5
(Restated) Current portion (125)
(Note 21) —
326
Inpatient Acute Care Nursing $ 398 $ -
Emergency and Outpatient Services 2,795 4,286
Continuing Care Services 1,433 1,607 Future principal payments are estimated for the year ended March 31:
Community-based Services 4,484 6,273
Diagnostic and Therapeutic Services 1,280 1,179 Bank Loan Capital Lease Total
Promotion, Prevention & Protection 1,450 1,208
Research and Education 163 223 2010 64 115 179
Information Technology Programs 15,378 710 2011 67 S 67
Support Services 396 684 2012 70 8 70
Alberta Infrastructure 20,931 11,276 2013 72 5 72
Pandemic Supplies 2,710 2,759 2014 and thereafter 53 - 53
Human Resources Projects 8,555 -
Special Purpose Funds - Donations 8,771 8,676 $326 115 $441
Other 23 2
(1) The bank loan is due in monthly installments of $6,367 including interest at 3.85% (rate term
Total $68.767 38,883 expires on June 1, 2009). It is secured by a general assignment of book debts and matures
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November 2010 and is renewed annually, amortized to 2018.

(2) The capital lease expires on November 30, 2009. The implicit interest rate payable on the lease is

3%.
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Note 10

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
{Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Long-Term Employee Benefits

(a) Supplementary Executive Retirement Plan

Accrued benefit obligation

Accrued obligation, beginning of year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Prior service cost

Actuarial gain

Benefit payments

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year

Reconciliation of funded status of accrued benefit asset/liability
Funded status of plan

Unamortized actuarial loss (gain)

Unamortized prior service costs

Unamortized initial obligation

Accrued benefit asset

Current service cost

Interest cost

Amortization of prior service costs
Amortization of net actuarial loss
Expected return on plan assets
Benefit cost

Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:
Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets

Expected average remaining service life of employees
Salary increase

The above information is based on the actuarial valuation performed at March 31, 2009,

The Region's SERP is fully funded on an annual basis.
Plan assets (held by trustee

Employer contributions - fair value of assets at March 31

Plan assets (held by Canada Revenue Agency

Employer contributions paid by refundable taxes
Total plan assets

Funded status of plan
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2009 2008

$ 1,305 $ 1,221
920 112

71 70

R 1
(174) (80)
(42) {19

$ 1,250 $ 1,305
362 165

(6) 147

- 1

149 223

$ 505 $ 536
90 113

71 69

74 78

27 18
(39 (33)

$ 223 $ 245
6.2% 5.2%
3.1% 2.6%
9 years 9 years
4.0% 4.0%

766 731

846 738

3 1,612 $ 1,469
$ 362 $ 165

Note 10

Note 11

Note 12

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Long-Term Employee Benefits (continued)
(b) Pension Expense

Pension expense in these financial statements is equal to the Region’s annual contributions of
$24,481,000 for the year ended March 31, 2009 (2008 $21,424,000).

At December 31, 2008, the Local Authorities Pension Plan reported an actuarial deficit of
$4,413,971,000 (2007 deficit $1,183,344,000).

Accumulated (Deficit) surplus
The Region’s accumulated (deficit) surplus comprises of the following:

2009 2008

Accumulated (deficit) surplus $(25,492) $ 8,678

The Region has reported an accumulated deficit at March 31. Per Alberta Regulation 15/95 of the
RHA Act, Alberta Health Services will provide the Minister with a plan, in writing, that is satisfactory
to the Minister, to eliminate the net accumulated deficit of all health regions combined, within three
years of incurrence.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Region is contingently liable for the buyback of 27 assisted living units at the option of and at
90% of the original cost to the purchaser. The average cost is $100,000 per unit. However,
management feels that these units could be resold and costs recovered and that realistically, the
possibility of having to purchase back all units simultaneously is highly improbable. As at March 31,
2009, the Region was negotiating the sale of vacant units and the buy-back obligations on all other
units with an arm’s length not for profit organization.

The Region contracts on an ongoing basis with voluntary and private health service operators to
provide health services in the region. The Region has contracted for services in the year ending March
31, 2010 similar to those provided by these operators in 2009. Contracted continuing care services
total $29,433,000 on an annual basis, subject to inflation and service requirements.

The Region is currently in the process of developing a new P3 project, Michener Hill Village, that

would replace the 220 continuing care beds in Valley Park Manor and Red Deer Nursing Home.
Funding in the amount of $21,401,000 was received and cost to date total $7,563,853.

David Thompson Regional Health Authority
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David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 12 Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

The Region has committed to capital upgrade projects at the Rimbey Health Centre in the amount of
$20,000,000. Total costs to date are $17,699,005 and total contributions to date are $20,000,000.

The Region has committed to capital projects at the Red Deer Regional Hospital Cancer Centre, Red
Deer Community Health Centre and the Michener Centre Site (Red Deer) in the amount of
$82,400,000. Total costs to date are $21,581,518 and contributions to date total $21,600,000.

In the ordinary course of operations, various claims and lawsuits are brought against the Region.

While it is not possible to estimate the ultimate liability with respect to any pending litigation, the
Region believes there will be no material adverse effect on its financial position.

Note 13 Budget

The budget was approved by Senior Management of the Region, and was submitted to Alberta
Health and Wellness and Alberta Health Services.
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Note 14

David Thompson Health Region

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended March 31, 2009

(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Alberta Health and Wellness Contributions

Unrestricted contributions

Restricted contributions

Transfers to deferred contributions

Transfers to deferred capital contributions
Transfer to RSHIP project

Transfers from deferred contributions
Transfers from deferred capital contributions
Share of project funds held in trust (Note 20)
Share of Primary Care Networks

Restricted contributions made by Alberta Health and Wellness
directly to other health service operators on the Region's behalf

2009 2008
(Restated)

(Note 21)
$ 549,494 $ 558390
37,706 65,186
(7.971) (15,076)
(18,282) (50,110)
(1,500} -
18,290 15,778
1,336 10
35 201
2,367 1,445
4,216 1,241
$ 585,691 $ 577,065

David Thompson Regional Health Authority



David Thompson Health Region David Thompson Health Region

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009 For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) (Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 15 Other Government Contributions
Note 17  Investment and Other Income

2009 2008
2009 2008
Unrestricted Alberta Infrastructure $ - 3 5,220 (Restated)
(Note 21)
Fair value of rent less rent charges for non-acute care
facilities used by the Region 619 551 Investment income $ 4.028 $ 3.938
Transfers from deferred contributions 4,151 2,763 Unreal}lzed PGS S T (400) N
Other income 12,925 11,098
Transition grant from East Central Health Region (Note 23) 2,107 -
$16,553 $15,036
EMS Transition Grant from East Central Health Region 133 S
Transfers from deferred capital contributions - 769 Investment income is comprised of interest, dividends, and net gains and losses on disposal of
investments.
Workers Compensation Board - refund 1,352 1,746
Other income is comprised of revenue from various programs and revenue and expense recoveries
Alberta Cancer Board 687 624 external to the Region.
Other 728 -

Note 18  Changes in Non-cash Operating Working Capital
$ 10,377 $ 11,673

2009 2008
(Restated)
Note 16 Ancillary Operations (Note 21)
2009 2008

Excess Excess Accounts receivable $ 3,706 $ 1,730

(Deficiency) of (Deficiency) of Contributions receivable from Alberta Health and Wellness 205 5,103

Direct Amortization  Revenue over Revenue over Inventories (810) 449

Revenue Expenses Expense Expenses Revenue Expenses Prepaid expenses 746 523
Non-patient food services $ 1,487 $ 1,724 $ I $ (238) $ 1,798 § (143) Loans - continuing care partnership projects (5,557) (622)
Assisted living condos ™ 3 57 ; (54) 103 49 ST — — (282)
Parking operations 1,250 851 _ 199 1,189 232 Accounts paygble and accrued liabilities 14,596 (1,643)
David Thompson Dispensary 1,607 1,709 . (102) 1,654 (30) Accrued vacation pay 2,226 1,792
TV and telephones 116 65 S 51 120 61 Deferred contributions 20,884 11,584
Deferred contributions - continuing care partnership projects (311) 20,842

$ 4,463 $ 4,406 § 13 56 $ 4864 $ 169
$ 44,849 $ 39,476

(1) Includes Designated Assisted Living:
Housing/hoteling component for only those facilities owned by a health region
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David Thompson Health Region David Thompson Health Region

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009 For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars) (Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 19  Related Parties (continued)
Note 19  Related Parties
(¢) Primary Care Networks
{a) Province of Alberta and Health Regions
The Region’s interest in its Primary Care Networks (joint ventures) are included in the financial

The Minister of Health and Wellness appoints the members of the Alberta Health Services statements under the proportionate consolidation method at the following percentages:

Board. The Board is economically dependent on the Ministry of Health and Wellness since
the viability of its operations depends on contributions from the Ministry.

Provost ~ Consort Primary Care Network 25%
The Region had the following transactions with other regional health authorities and provincial APl RSO m‘?“g e Moun_tam et e 2l
. . . - 1191451 Alberta Ltd. — Operating as Red Deer Primary Care Network 50%
health boards recorded on the Statements of Operations and Financial Position at the amounts . i
of consideration agreed upon between the related parties: LA S AT A SO s S
& e g ’ Wolf Creek Primary Care Network 50%
2009 2008
Revenue Expense Receivable Payable Revenue Expense Receivable Payable Audited financial statements were not available from the Primary Care Networks at the time of
preparation of these financial statements.
$6,081 $3,123 $ 3239 $5,007 $3635 $1280 § 6974 $6,537

(d) Foundations

. 3 The Region has an economic interest in the following foundations:
(b)  Regional Shared Health Information Program (RSHIP)

The seven non-metro h‘ealth regions, Aspen Health Région, Chinook Health Region, Da'vid Contributions Received by
Thompson Health Region, East Central Health Region, Northern Lights Health Region, the Region
Palliser Health Region, and Peace Country Health Region, have eniered into an agreement 2009 2008
under the name Regional Shared Health Information Program (RSHIP), to develop and _ . . i
implement a common, integrated health information system.  This standard system will David Thompson Health Region Foundation § 226§ 1522
- ith Alberta’s Provincial El ic Health R d (EHR) initiati Wetaskiwin Health Foundation 208 552
integrate wi erta’s Provincial Electronic Health Record ( ) initiative. Drayton Valley Health Services Foundation 337 243
Stettler Health Services Foundation 139 60
2009 2008 Coronation Health Centre Foundation 12 47
Drumheller Area Health Foundation 153 113
X Consort Hospital Foundation - 5
Alberta Health and Wellness funding $ 2,949 $ 3,607 $ 2075 $ 2547
Health Region contribution 948 3.688
Total $ 3.897 i 729 Contributions are comprised of externally restricted amounts for equipment, programs, research

and education.
Reported as follows:

Expenses $ 1,285 $ 1,700
Capital assets 1.449 5.595
Total $ 2734 $ 7,295
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David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 19 Related Parties (continued)

(d)

Foundations (continued)

Included in accounts receivable are amounts owing from the foundations at year-end as follows:

2009 2008
David Thompson Health Region Foundation 3 504 $ 226
‘Wetaskiwin Health Foundation 41 409
Drayton Valley Health Services Foundation 9 13
Coronation Health Centre Foundation 5 13
Stettler Health Services Foundation 34 -
Drumbeller Area Health Foundation - 14

$ 593 $ 675

Resources of the foundations are restricted by donors for the exclusive use of the hospital or
care centre in the community in which the foundation resides.

Audited financial statements were not available from the foundations at the time of preparation
of these financial statements. Additional preliminary information for the David Thompson
Health Region Foundation is provided as follows:

2009 2008

Assets $ 8,754 $ 8,379

Liabilities 234 393

Net Assets 8,520 7,986

Revenue 5,741 3,192

Expense 4,892 1,633

Excess 849 1,559
Resources held at March 31:

Externally restricted 7,913 7,236

Unrestricted 607 750

3 8,520 3 7,986
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David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Note 19 Related Parties (continued)

(e)  Contracts with Health Service Providers
The Region has an economic interest through its contracts with voluntary and private health
service providers in the region. Funding was provided as follows:
2009 2008
Voluntary Private Voluntary Private
Health Health Health Health
Service Service Service Service
Providers  Providers Total Providers  Providers Total
Direct Region funding $ 19,524 § 25589 $45113 § 18113 $ 22297 $ 40410
Direct Alberta Health and Wellness funding - 184 184 - 184 184
Fees and charges 4,150 1,758 5,908 4,189 1,730 5919

Total

$ 23674 $§ 27531 $51205 § 22302 § 24211 $46513

Note 20 Trust Funds

(a) The Region received funds in trust from Alberta Health and Wellness for the Regional Shared

(b)

Health Information Program. These amounts are not reported in these financial statements.

During the year, the Region received $7,421,617 (2008 $1,400,000) and disbursed $2,249,484
(2008 $11,922,133) for costs relating to the project. The Region shows revenue equal to its
share of the expenses in the amount of $1,285,380. The funds held by the Region is $0 (2008
deficit $5,172,133).

The Region received funds in trust from Alberta Health and Wellness for implementation of
Continuing Care Health Service Standards for Health Care Aide Education. These amounts are
not reported in these financial statements.

During the year, the Region received $0 (2008 $0) and disbursed $0 (2008 $2,595,380) for costs

relating to the project. The Region showed revenue equal to its share of the expenses in the
amount of $34,409. The balance of funds held by the Region is $247,020 (2008 $247,020).
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Note 21

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

Restatement of Prior Year Figures

(a) Based on new information provided to the Region, it has been determined that the Region has
Jjoint control over the Primary Care Networks. Accordingly, the Primary Care Networks have
been included in the Financial Statements of the Region retroactively, using the proportionate
consolidation method.  This resulted in the following changes to the Financial Statements as
reported for March 31, 2008:

March 31, 2008 March 31, 2008

as Originally as
Stated Adjustment Restated
Statement of Financial Position:
Cash and investments $ 79,941 3 3,427 $ 83,368
Accounts receivable 17,734 83 17,817
Prepaid expenses 2,061 2 2,063
Capital assets 421,742 143 421,885

3 521,478 8 3655 $ 525,133

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 45279 % 176 % 45,455
Deferred contributions 35,547 3,336 38,883
Unamortized external capital contributions 389,699 143 389,842

$ 470,525 $ 3,655 § 474,180

Statement of Operations:
Alberta Health and Wellness contributions  $ 575,620 $ 1,445 $ 577,065

Investment and other income 14,854 182 15,036
Amortized external capital contributions 24,654 43 24,697

$615,128 $1,670 $616,798
Community-based care $ 28023 § 1,670 & 29,693

(b) The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has also been restated to correct for an error in 2008,
Changes in non-cash operating working capital has been increased, and capital contributions
received has been decreased, by $8,179,000.
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Note 22

Note 23

Note 24

Note 25

David Thompson Health Region
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

New Governance Structure

On May 15, 2008, the Minister of Health and Wellness restructured the governance model of health
services delivery system in Alberta. A single common board replaced the board members of each of
Alberta’s nine regional health authority boards, Alberta Mental Health Board, Alberta Cancer Board
and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission (AADAC). Effective April 1, 2009, all the entities
including the Region but excluding East Central Health were disestablished and all the assets,
liabilities, rights and obligations of these entities including the Region were assumed by East Central
Health whose name will change to Alberta Health Services (“AHS”).

Transition and Restructuring Expenses

As at March 31, 2009, the Region recorded incremental transition and restructuring expenses, related
to the transition to AHS, consisting of severance costs and termination benefits (Schedule 2). In the
Consolidated Statement of Operations, these expenses are included in Administration.  Additional
incremental expenses related to the transition to AHS are also reported and disclosed in the financial
statements of East Central Health.

Severance-

Related
Liability as at March 31, 2008 $ =
Expenses 2,707
Payments made during the year (1,546)
Liability as at March 31, 2009 $ 1,161

East Central Health received $80 million in funding from Alberta Health and Wellness for the costs of
AHS transitioning and the Region has recorded a receivable from East Central Health for the
transition costs incurred as described above.

Comparative Figures

Certain 2008 figures have been reclassified to conform to the 2009 presentation.

Approval of Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Alberta Health Services Board.
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Schedule 1
David Thompson Health Region
Consolidated Schedule of Expenses by Object
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)
2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
(Unaudited) (Restated)
Salaries and benefits (Schedule 2) $ 454,165 $ 466,725 $ 415,681
Contracts with health service operators (Note 19(e)) 51,779 51,205 46,513
Drugs and gases 14,331 13,891 13,622
Medical and surgical supplies 15,883 16,119 14,935
Other contracted services 36,048 44,508 34,699
Interest on long-term debt 19 20 28
Other " 86,402 90,209 80,769
Amortization:

Capital equipment - internally funded 5,900 5,157 4,825
Capital equipment - externally funded 12,076 9,978 8,666
Facilities and improvements - internally funded 367 330 329
Facilities and improvements - externally funded 16,336 16,061 16,031
$ 693,306 $ 714,203 $ 636,098

“ Other:
Building and equipment maintenance $ 21,212 $ 17,662
Diagnostic and therapeutic supplies 7,306 5,729
Dietary supplies 7,423 6,687
Insurance 1,810 1,733
Minor equipment purchases 2,362 1,721
Patient transport and staff travel 11,748 11,518
Rental or lease of building and equipment 6,972 5,919
Utilities 12,174 12,054
Other 19,202 17,746
$ 90,209 $ 80,769

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

David Thompson Regional Health Authority
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Schedule 2

David Thompson Health Region
Schedule of Salaries and Benefits
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)
2009 2008
Severance®
Number of Other Cash ~ Other Non-Cash Nuwber of Nurmber of
FTE" BaseSalary™  Benefits®  Benefis™  SubTotal FTEs Amount Total FTEs® _ Total
Board Chair'®
Ken Hughes - AHS 088 $ - % -8 - % = -8 = - % =
Jean Graham 0.2 . 13 . 13 - 13 1.00 41
Board Members® . .
Jack Ady - AHS 0.88 . . . - . . . .
Pierre Crevolin - AHS 021 - - - - - - - S
Catherine Roozen - AHS 063 2 . = = . = . .
Linda Hohol - AHS 088 . - . . . . - .
John Lehners - AHS 0.88 . = . . = 5 = =
Trene Lewis - AHS 0.8 = . = = - - . .
Don Sieben - AHS 0.88 = . = 2 = = . .
Lori Andreachuk - AHS 033 . . . = . 2 . =
Gord Bontje - AHS 033 = 2 = . . = 5 .
“Teri Lynn Bougie - AHS 033 . 2 5 . . 5 2 =
JimClifford - AHS 033 = 2 . . = . - =
Strater Crowfoot - AHS 033 = . . . 2 . . =
Tony Franceschini - AHS 033 - . = 2 . 2 - =
Andreas Laupacis - AHS 033 . 2 . . . 2 . =
Gord Winkel - AHS 033 = 2 . . 2 2 = =
Colleen Andersen 012 2 3 2 3 . 3 1.00 23
Gloria Bergman 012 . 3 = 3 S 3 1.00 2
Michael Dawe 0.12 = 3 5 3 . 3 1.00 13
Don Fowler 0.12 . 3 = 3 S 3 1.00 16
Trene Gataint 0.12 - 4 . 4 - 4 1.00 11
E. Sylvia Gillespic 012 2 3 . 3 = 3 1.00 12
Warna Moore 0.12 = 7 = 7 2 7 100 21
Wayne Notley 0.12 . 5 s 5 S 5 1.00 15
Brent Pedersen 012 . 4 S 4 - 4 1.00 15
Helen Posti 012 = 4 - 4 - 4 1.00 14
Kathy Rooyakkers 0.12 - 5 - 5 - 5 1.00 26
Sheila J. Taylor 0.12 - 5 - 5 - 5 1.00 16
Robert G. Thompson 0.12 . 4 . 4 . 4 1.00 11
Dorothy Ungstad 0.12 . 5 s 5 . 5 1.00 12
Sub-total 1056 $ - $ 7S - $ 718 - % 71 1500 § 258
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Schedule 2 (Cortinued)

David Thompson Health Region
Schedule of Salaries and Benefits
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)
2009 2008
Severance(e)
Number of Other Cash  Other Non-Cash Nurmber of Number of
FTES® Base Salary®  Berefits®  Berefis™  Subtotl FIEs Amount Total FTES® Total
Board Direct Reports ™
President and Chief Executive Officer - AHS® S - $ -8 -3 - - % - $ - -3 -
Interim Chief Executive Officer - AHS® _ _ . . . . . . . .
President & CEQ™*V 03 97 12 67 176 1.0 970 1,146 100 42
CEO Direct Reports?
Sr. Vice President & COO - Health Services™® 05 108 3 40 151 Lo 529 680 1.00 282
Vice President & COO - Carporate Services®™ 10 216 4 46 266 - s 266 100 254
Vice President - Public Health™ 1.0 167 4 34 205 5 5 205 1.00 188
Vice President - Capital Planning & Project
Development® 1.0 160 4 37 201 e 5 201 100 189
Vice President - Medicine 08 252 2 51 325 . . 325 079 312
Vice President - Communications & Public Relations 08 115 2 25 142 10 335 471 1.00 161
Executive Director - Corporate & Legislative Affairs® 10 123 4 24 151 - - 151 1,00 130
Sub-totak 64 1,238 55 324 1,617 30 1,834 3,451 779 1,938
Grher anagement persons reporting to those above™® 383 4,796 39 916 5,754 40 834 6,585 3954 5,187
Other managenment 2321 22,75% 10t 4425 21,282 - - 27,282 23565 26,109
Medical doctors not included above 35 1,014 15 86 1,115 5 S L115 285 932
Regulated nurses not included above
- RNs, Reg. Psych. nurses, Grad nurses 1,525.5 111,812 24,756 24T 159,039 10 2 159,041 1,483.50 146,665
-1PNs 4365 21911 2792 4,253 28,956 5 . 28,956 42527 24,143
Other health technical arxt professiorals 1,037.0 69,955 4,151 13,990 88,09% - s 88,09% 993.49 71458
Unregulated health service providers 899.7 32,289 4,606 6,009 42,904 1.0 8 42912 83935 36,105
Orher staff 2,052.6 86,930 4,85 17461 109,216 = . 109,216 1,981.03 95,686
Total Staff 6,225.2 351,463 41,285 69,611 462,359 6.0 844 463,203 6,00068 413,485
Total honoraria and staff 62422 $ 352701 § 41411 $  69.935 § 464,047 90 $ 2678 § 466,725 62347 $ 415681
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Schedule 2 (Continued)

David Thompson Health Region
Schedule of Salaries and Benefits
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan®
2009 2008
Change in
Accrued Benefit Accrued Accrued Benefit
Current Service Other SERP Obligation Benefit Obligation

Cost Costs Total Total March 31, 2008 Obligation March 31, 2009
President & CEO $ 13 $ 52 $ 65 $ 90 $ 506 $ @ s 479
Sr. Vice President & OO0 - Health Services 7 17 24 31 193 14 179
Vice President & QOO - Corporate Services 9 10 19 20 138 4 134
Vice President - Public Health S 1 6 6 32 Q)] 31
Vice President - Capital Planning & Project Development 5 5 10 10 49 1 50
Vice President - Medicine 27 2 29 24 - 25 25
Vice President - Commumications & Public Relations 5 1 6 2 3 (©)] -
Other managerent persons reporting to those above 19 45 64 62 384 (32) 352
3 D0 $ 133 $ 223 3 245 $ 1,305 $ (55) $ 1,250
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Schedule 2 (continued)

David Thompson Health Region
Schedule of Salaries, Honoraria, Benefits, Allowances and Severance
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009

(a) Full Time Equivalent (FTE) is determined at the rate of 2,022.75 annual hours for each full-time employee. Total actual discrete number of individuals
employed during the year was 11,817 (2008 10,487). “Discrete” number of individuals refers to all employees who were in the system during the fiscal
year.

(b) Base salary includes pensionable base pay.
(c) Other cash benefits include honoraria, bonuses, overtime and lump sum payments.

(d) Other non-cash benefits include:
¢ Employer’s current service and prior costs of supplementary executive retirement plan per (f) below.
o Share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of employees including pension, health care, dental coverage, vision coverage,
out-of-country medical benefits, group life insurance, accidental disability and dismemberment insurance, long and short term disability plans.
o Employer’s share of the cost of additional benefits including sabbaticals or other special leave with pay.

(e) Severance includes direct or indirect payments to individuals upon termination, which are not included in other benefits.

(f) Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP)
Under the terms of the supplemental executive retirement plan, executives may receive supplemental retirement payments. SERP costs are not cash payments in
the period but are the period expense for rights to future compensation. SERP costs shown reflect the actuarially estimated cost to provide pension income over
the post-employment period. SERP provides future pension benefits to participants based on years of service and earnings. See also accounting policy Note 2(d)
Employee Future Benefits and (Note 9) Long-term Employee Benefit Liabilities.

Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefit earned in the fiscal year. Other SERP costs include amortization of past service costs on plan
initiation, amortization of actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability.

The change in the accrued benefit obligation includes current service cost, interest accruing on the actuarial liability and the full amount of any actuarial gain or
loss in the period.
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Schedule 2 (continued)

David Thompson Health Region
Schedule of Salaries, Honoraria, Benefits, Allowances and Severance
For the Year Ended March 31, 2009

(g) On May 15, 2008, the Region’s board, along with the other regional health authority boards, was replaced by the Alberta Health Services (‘AHS’) interim board
according to Ministerial Order 50/2008. On December 1, 2008, an additional 8 panel members were appointed to complete the 15 member board. Salaries and
benefits of the AHS board members are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of East Central Health.

(h) Board Direct Reports reflect FTE’s and costs for the entire 08-09 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at May 15, 2008.

(i) On July 8, 2008 the Region’s CEO was terminated. The Interim CEO - AHS was appointed effective May 15, 2008 to manage the operations of the health
regions, provincial boards and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission and to effect their transition to a single provincial health authority. Salary and
benefits of the Interim CEO — AHS are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of East Central Health. The President and CEO — AHS was appointed
effective March 23, 2009. Salary and benefits of the President and CEO — AHS are reported and disclosed in the financial statements of East Central Health.

() CEO Direct Reports reflect FTE’s and costs for the 08-09 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at July 8, 2008. Any title changes
subsequent to July 8, 2008 are noted below.

(k) These individuals are provided with an automobile allowance. Dollar amounts are included under (c) above.

(1) Based on future SERP compensation benefits described under (f) above, the following schedule outlines pension income received by individuals who retired
within the 2008-09 fiscal period:

Title Pension Income  Elected Frequency Term
President & CEO $3,030 Monthly Indefinite
Sr. Vice President & COO - Health Services $1,173 Monthly Indefinite

(m) Effective November 1, 2008, the Vice President & Chief Operating Officer, Corporate Services was also appointed the Senior Vice President, Pharmacy &
Diagnostic Services — AHS. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of the Region.
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EAST CENTRAL HEALTH

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2009

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management and have been approved by
senior management. The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and the Financial Directives issued by Alberta Health and Wellness, and
of necessity include some amounts based on estimates and judgment.

To discharge its responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of financial reporting, management
maintains a system of internal accounting controls comprising written policies, standards, procedures, a
formal authorization structure, and satisfactory processes to review internal controls. This system offers
management reasonable assurance that transactions are in accordance with governing legislation, are
properly authorized, reliable financial records are maintained, and assets are adequately safeguarded. The
Region has established a code of ethics and corporate directives, which include communication of the
code to employees.

Region members carry out their responsibility for the financial statements through the Audit and Finance
Committee. This committee meets with management and the Auditor General of Alberta to review
financial matters, and recommends the financial statements to the Alberta Health Services Board for
approval upon finalization of the audit. The Auditor General of Alberta has free access to the Audit and
Finance Committee.

The Auditor General of Alberta provides an independent audit of the financial statements. His
examination is conducted in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and
includes tests and procedures which allow him to report on the fairness of the financial statements
prepared by management.

[Original signed] [Original signed]

Dr. Stephen Duckett Alan F. Heyhurst, CA
Chief Executive Officer Interim Chief Financial Officer
Alberta Health Services East Central Health

[Original signed]

Chris Mazurkewich, CA
Chief Financial Officer
Alberta Health Services
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AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the Alberta Health Services Board
and the Minister of Health and Wellness

I'have audited the statement of financial position of East Central Health (the Authority) as at
March 31, 2009 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Authority as at March 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

[Original signed by Fred J. Dunn]}
FCA
Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta
June 11, 2009
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EAST CENTRAL HEALTH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MARCH 31, 2009

{in thousands)

2009 2008
Actual Actual
ASSETS
Current:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments (Note 3) $ 129,925 16,144
Accounts receivable 6,635 7,824
Contributions receivable from Alberta Health and Wellness 10,603 3,320
Inventories 2,533 2,530
149,696 29,818
Non current cash, cash equivalents and investments (Note 3) 99,529 17,932
Capital assets (Note 4) 142,821 135,057
Other assets (Note 5) 396 825
TOTAL ASSETS $ 392,442 183,632
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 82,236 20,047
Accrued vacation pay 8,590 7,180
Deferred contributions (Note 6) 70,510 9,112
161,336 36,339
Deferred contributions (Note 6) 230 220
Deferred capital contributions (Note 7) 99,299 17,712
Unamortized external capital contributions 131,410 123,005
392,275 177,276
Net Assets
Accumulated deficit (Note 20) (11,244) {5,696}
Investment in capital assets 11,411 12,052
167 6,356
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 392,442 183,632

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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EAST CENTRAL HEALTH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(in thousands)

Revenue

Alberta Health and Wellness contributions (Note 12}

Other government contributions (Note 13)
Fees and charges

Ancillary operations (Note 14)

Donations

Investment and other income (Note 15)

Amortized external capital contributions

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenses (Schedule 1)

Inpatient acute nursing services

Emergency and outpatient services
Facility-based continuing care services
Community-based care

Home care

Diagnostic and therapeutic services
Promotion, prevention and protection services
Administration

Information technology

Support services

Amortization of facilities and improvements

Transition expenses (Note 19)

TOTAL EXPENSES

Deficiency of revenue over expenses before transfers

Transfer of HBA Services (Note 9)

Deficiency of revenue over expenses after transfers

2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 11)

$ 240,165 $ 322,968 $ 222,507
2,100 3,081 2,053
21,423 22,115 20,464
677 645 772
10 193 352
4,758 2,779 3,797
7,964 8,555 7,985
277,097 360,336 257,930
46,410 49,245 45,205
10,223 12,994 10,262
45,942 48,146 43,051
15,063 16,597 12,411
23,397 26,076 22,388
42,960 45,386 39,569
7,385 9,768 6,547
17,272 21,405 16,221
10,156 9,796 9,303
58,239 60,171 50,987
3,893 3,861 3,893

- 66,196 -
280,940 369,641 260,337
(3,843) (9,305) (2,407)

- 3,116 -
S (3,843) $ (6,189 S (2,407)
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EAST CENTRAL HEALTH
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(in thousands)

2009 2008
Accumulated Investment in

Deficit capital assets Total Total
Balance at beginning of year $ (5,696) $ 12,052 6,356 $ 8,763
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (6,189) - (6,189) (2,407)
Transfer of HBA Services (Note 9) (488) 488 - -
Capital assets purchased with internal funds (2,215) 2,215 - -
Amortization of internally funded capital assets 3,344 (3,344) - -
Balance atend of year $ (11,244) $ 11,411 167 $ 6,356

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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EAST CENTRAL HEALTH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(in thousands)

Cash generated from (used by):
Operating activities:
Deficiency of revenue over expenses
Non-cash transactions:
Amortization (Schedule 1)
Amortized external capital contributions
Disposals - externally funded
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of capital equipment
Unrealized loss on investments (Note 15)
Transfer of HBA Services Capital Assets (Note 9)
Changes in non-cash working capital account

Cash (used by) generated from operations

Investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Purchase of capital assets:
internally funded - equipment
internally funded -work in progress
externally funded - equipment
externally funded -facilities and improvements
externally funded - work in progress
Proceeds on sale of investments
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets
Increase (decrease) in other assets
Allocations from non-current cash
Change in accounting policy

Cash used by investing activities

Financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in non-current deferred contributions
Capital contributions received

Cash generated from financing activities

Increase (decrease) in current cash, cash equivalents and investments

Current cash, cash equivalents and investments, beginning of year

Current cash, cash equivalents and investments, end of year

2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
$ (3,843) § (6,189) $ (2.407)
10,928 11,899 10,928
(7,964) (8.555) (7,965)
S = @n

- 5) 18

- 1,146 8

- (488) -

3) 118,900 6,517

(882) 116,708 7,078
- (118,660) (16,692)
(840) (2,215) (2,097)
- - (308)
(2,500) (4,661) (2,842)
(14,000) (279) (154)
- (12,019) (23,403)
6,500 12,557 19,310
- 5 3
S 429 (117)
- 23,360 5,152
. - 472
(10,840) (101,483) (20,676)
- 10 (299)
10,000 98,546 19,121
10,000 98,556 18,822
(1,722) 113,781 5,224
16,144 16,144 10,920
$ 14422 $ 129,925 $ 16,144

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.
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Note 1

EAST CENTRAL HEALTH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Authority, Purpose and Operations

East Central Health (the “Region”) was established on June 24, 1994 under the Alberta
Regional Health Authorities Act. The Region is a registered charity under the Income Tax
Act and exempt from payment of income tax. Effective April 1, 2009, the Region will
become Alberta Health Authority and will operate as Alberta Health Services (“AHS”). The
Region will assume the assets and liabilities of the other regional health authorities, Alberta
Mental Health Board, Alberta Cancer Board, and the Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Commission (Note18).

The Region delivers appropriate, accessible and affordable health services in Alberta,
operating programs that promote, protect, maintain, restore and enhance physical and mental
well-being.

The Region’s operations include the following facilities and sites:

e Bashaw Community Health e Tofield Community Health
Services Services

e Bashaw Care Centre e Tofield Health Centre

e Camrose Community Health e Tofield Mental Health Clinic
Services e Two Hills Health Centre

¢ Camrose Mental Health Clinic » Two Hills Community Health

e Daysland Health Centre Services

* Galahad Care Centre e Vegreville Care Centre

s Hardisty Health Centre e Vegreville Community Health

e Hardisty Mental Health Clinic Services

e Islay Care Centre e Vegreville Mental Health Clinic

e Killain Mental Health Clinic e Vermilion Community Health

e Kitscoty Community Health Services
Services e Vermilion Health Centre

+ Lamont Community Health e Vermilion Mental Health Clinic
Centre e Viking Community Health

e Mannville Care Centre Services

* Myrnam Home Care s Viking Health Centre

¢ Provost Community Health *  Wainwright Community Health
Services Services

*  Provost Health Centre *  Wainwright Health Centre

» Provost Mental Health Clinic ®  Wainwright Mental Health

e Sedgewick Community Health Clinic
Services e Willingdon Home Care

The financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities and operations of voluntary or
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices
(a)  Basis of Presentation

(1) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and the reporting requirements of Alberta Health and
Wellness’ Financial Directive 34.

(2) These financial statements were prepared on a consolidated basis and include the
following:

(i) The Region uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its 11.8%
interest in the Regional Shared Health Information Program (“RSHIP™)
(Note 16(b)).

(ii) The Region uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its 50%
interest in the Camrose Local Primary Care Initiative and its 25% interest in the
Provost — Consort Primary Care Network (Note 16(c)).

(iii) The financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities or operations of the
foundations described in Note 16(d), which are controlled by the Region.

(3) These financial statements use the deferral method, the key elements of which are:
(i) Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year receivable.

(i) Restricted non-capital contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in
which the related expenses are incurred.

(iiii) Restricted capital contributions are recorded as deferred capital contributions
until invested in capital assets. Invested amounts are transferred to unamortized
external capital contributions and recognized as revenue in the period the related
amortization expense of the capital asset is recorded.

(iv) Restricted contributions to purchase capital assets that will not be amortized are
recorded as direct increases to net assets.

(v) Investment income includes dividend and interest income, and realized and
unrealized investment gains and losses. Unrealized gains and losses on held-for-
trading financial assets are included in investment income and recognized as
revenue in the Statement of Operations, deferred or reported directly in net assets,
depending on the nature of any external restrictions imposed on the investment
income. Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which
the related expenses are incurred. Other unrestricted investment income is
recognized as revenue when earned.

(vi) Donations and contributions in kind are recorded at fair value when such value
can reasonably be determined.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)
(b) Capital Disclosures

Effective April 1, 2008, the Region implemented new capital disclosure requirements per
section 1535 of the CICA Handbook. For operating purposes, the Region defines capital as
including working capital and unrestricted net assets. For capital purposes, the Region defines
capital as including deferred capital contributions, unamortized external capital contributions
and investment in capital assets. The Region’s objectives for managing capital are:

¢ In the short term to safeguard the Region’s financial ability to continue to deliver health
services; and

¢ In the long term to plan and to build sufficient physical capacity to meet future needs for
health services.

The majority of the Region’s operating funding is from Alberta Health and Wellness which is
paid at the first of each month. As a result, significantly less working capital is required. The
Region monitors working capital and cash flow forecasts.

Alberta Health and Wellness approves health care facilities based on long-term capital plans
and provides the majority of the funding through one-time capital grants. The Region funds
the required equipment and systems by a combination of allocating a portion of operating
funds and obtaining external funding from charitable donations and capital grants.

Where a Region has incurred an accumulated deficit, legislation requires submission of a
deficit elimination plan (Note 20).

(c) Full Cost

The Region accounts for all costs of services for which it is responsible. Fair value
transactions comprise:

(i) Revenue that contracted health service operators earn from Ministry of Health and
Wellness designated fees and charges are recorded as the Region’s fees and charges
and as the Region’s contracted health service expense.

(i) Alberta Health and Wellness direct payments to contracted health service operators
are recorded as revenue and as program expense as they represent part of the
Region’s health program costs.

(iii)  Fair value for use of acute care facilities not owned by the Region is recorded as
other government contributions or donations, and as program expense, since the
Region’s contract payments do not include amounts for use of these facilities.

(iv) Fair value for use of non-acute care facilities not owned by the Region and provided
to the Region at zero or nominal rent is recorded as other government contributions
and as program expense.

) Other assets, supplies and services a health region would otherwise purchase are
recorded as revenue and expense, at fair value at the date of contribution, when a fair
value can be reasonably determined. Volunteers’ contributed services are not
reported because a fair value cannot be reasonably determined.
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)
(d) Employee Future Benefits

The Region participates in the Local Authorities Pension Plan. This multi-employer
defined benefit pension plan provides pensions for participating employees based on
years of service and earnings. Defined contribution plan accounting is applied where
there is insufficient information to apply defined benefit plan accounting. Pension costs
comprise the employer’s contributions for its employees during the year, based on rates
expected to provide benefits payable under the pension plan. The Region does not record
its portion of the plan’s deficit or surplus. The Region fully accrues its obligations for
employee non-pension future benefits.

The Region provides a defined benefit Supplementary Retirement Plan to senior
executives. Costs of these benefits are actuarially determined using the projected benefit
method pro-rated on services, a market interest rate, and management’s best estimate of
expected costs and benefit coverage period. Net actuarial gains and losses of the benefit
obligation are amortized over the average remaining service life of the group. Current
service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefits earned in the fiscal year. Prior
service and other costs include amortization of past service costs on plan initiation,
amortization of actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability.
The plan is fully funded.

(e) Investments

Investments are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies described in
Note 2(f).

Transaction costs associated with the acquisition and disposal of investments are
expensed. The purchase and sale of investments are accounted for using the settlement
date accounting method.

(f) Financial Instruments

Initial measurement of financial instruments is at fair value and subsequent
measurement and recognition of changes in value depend upon the classification.
Financial assets and financial liabilities classified as “held for trading” are measured at
fair value with changes in those fair values recognized in the Statement of Operations,
deferred contributions or directly in net assets. “Loans and Receivables” and financial
liabilities classified as “other financial liabilities™ are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

The Region has classified its financial assets and financial liabilities as follows:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Classification

Cash and equivalents Held for trading
Investments Held for trading
Accounts receivable and contributions receivable Loans and receivables

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued vacation pay

The Region does not use hedge accounting and accordingly, is not impacted by the
requirements of Section 3865 Hedges. The Region as a Not-for-Profit Organization has
elected not to apply the standards for ernbedded derivatives in non-financial contracts.

The carrying value of the above approximate their fair value because of the short term
nature of these items. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the
Region is not exposed to significant interest, current or credit risks arising from its
financial instruments.

{g) Inventories

In June 2007 the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (the “CICA™) issued a new
accounting standard, Section 3031 Inventories which provides guidance on the
recognition, measurement and disclosure of inventories. The standard provides specific
direction for not-for-profit organizations to record inventories held for consumption or
distribution at no charge at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.

The Region adopted this new standard as of April 1, 2008 but did not adjust opening
balances or restate prior periods because the adoption did not have a material impact.

Inventaries for consumption or distribution at no charge are recorded at the lower of cost
(defined as moving average cost) and current replacement cost, All other inventories are
recorded at the lower of cost (defined as moving average cost) and net realizable value.

(h) Capital Assets

Capital assets and work in progress are recorded at cost and amortized over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Useful Life
Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 40 years
Leasehold improvements 20 years
Furniture and equipment 3-20 years
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

Capital assets with unit costs less than five thousand dollars are expensed. Work in
progress is not amortized until the project is complete. Leases transferring substantially
all benefits and risks of capital asset ownership are reported as capital asset acquisitions
financed by long-term obligations.

(i)  Accounting Policy Changes

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA™) has issued new sources of
generally accepted accounting principles which have not yet been applied but may
impact the Region.

In December 2006, the CICA issued Section 3862 Financial Instruments Disclosures
and Section 3863 Financial Instruments Presentation which replaces Section 3861
Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation. These standards will expand the
disclosure requirements placing an increased emphasis on disclosures about the risks
associated with recognized and unrecognized financial instruments and how those risks
are managed. The Region will review these new standards and the impact, if any, will
be reflected in the Region’s financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2010.

In September 2008, the CICA issued new accounting standard Section 4470 —
Disclosure of Allocated Expenses. This section takes effect for the Region beginning
April 1, 2009. The standard requires the Region to disclose policies adopted for the
allocation of fundraising and general support expenses among functions, the nature of
the expenses being allocated, the basis on which such allocations have been made, and
the functions to which they have been allocated. The impact of this new standard will
be reflected in the financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2010.

{j) Measurement Uncertainty

The financial statements, by their nature, contain estimates and are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amounts recorded for amortization of capital assets and
amortization of external capital contributions are based on estimates of the useful life of
related assets. The Supplementary Retirement Plan obligation is based on actuarial
calculations. The restructuring cost to transfer employees to the Local Authorities
Pension Plan is based on assumptions and actuarial calculations. Actual results could
differ from estimates.
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Note 3 Cash, cash equivalents and investments

2009 2008
Fair Market Cost Fair Market Cost
Value Value

Cash and cash equivalents $ 220468 $ 220442 $ 23,482 $ 23482
Bonds 6,302 6,392 6,400 6,290
Equities 2,684 3,773 4,194 4,312
Total $ 229454 $ 230,607 $ 34,076 $ 34,084
Classified as:

Current $ 129,925 $ 16,144

Non-current 99,529 17,932
Total cash, cash equivalents and - -
investments $ 229,454 $ 34,076

(a) To optimize returns at an acceptable risk level, management has established a policy asset
mix of 5% to 20% for cash and cash equivalents, 50% to 80% for fixed-income
investments, 10% to 20% for Canadian equities and 5% to 15% for foreign equities. Risk
is reduced through diversification.

Fixed-income securities, such as bonds, have an effective yield of 6.05% per year, and
3.00% per annum for securities maturing between 1 and 40 years. As at March 31, 2009,
the securities have the following maturity structure.,

1 to 5 years 97%
6to 10 years 1%
Over 10 years 2%

(b) Equities comprise publicly-traded securities in major stock markets. Risk is reduced by
prudent security selection and sector rotation.
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Note 4 Capital Assets

Note 6

The balance at the end of the year is restricted for the following purposes:

Alberta Health and Wellness:

Deferred Contributions

EMS Transition

Alberta Health Services Transition (Note 19)
Acute Care Pressure Relief

Mental Health Grants

Syphillis Prevention Response

Life Skills Training

Hip&Knee Replacement Continuum

Clinical Telehealth

Continuing Care - Case Management

Healthy Weights

Cardiac Access Collaborative
Pandemic Influenza Supplies

Health Care Aide Training
Continuing Care - Clinical Specialists
Privacy & Security 2005

Primary Pediatric Model

Specialists on call program
Immunization Strategy

Rural on call program

Continuing Care - Implement Standards
Various projects <$200,000 each

Other contributors:

Cost
Opening BANGE  Trncrers from s ”:n?fz‘; A ) Closing Balanee
April 1,200 Yok in Progress e it Pl March 31, 2009
iNole 3
Land $ 16714 S 8 $ $ $ 1,674
Land improvenents 303 3039 Current
Buildings and improvements 137,368 279 137,647
Ieasehold improvements 127 457 384
Fusniture and equipment 38330 2.632 4245 1121 370 65,978
Confruction and techrology
projects in progress 2,899 2.911) 14.930 44,918
H 23457 § . $ 0175 5 158§ 370 253,840
Accumulated Amontization
hesels K Net Book Value Net Book Vale
Opening Balwce  Cumrent year Amorizatimon  yaniered Closing Balance 2009 208
T amonizadon disposals fr((r::'l:g:ﬁ T
Land § 8 § 5 $ 5 8 5 L674 1674
Land improveneits 2,307 105 2412 627 72
Buildings and improvements 66,995 732 70727 66,920 70373
1aschold inprovements 57 25 140 7 362 70
Furmiture and equipment 20041 8.037 570 950 37.658 28320 29309
Contruction and technology
projects in pragress 44.918 32,899
$ AW S 11,809 S 30 S 100§ 111.019 142,821 135,057
Capital assets were funded from the following sources:
2009 2008
Externally funded (unamortized external
capital contributions) $ 131,410 $ 123,005
Internally funded (invested in capital assets) 11411 12,052
$ 142,821 $ 135,057

Note 5 Other Assets

Other assets include the accrued pension benefit relating to the Supplementary Retirement

Plan which is fully funded.
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Primary Care Initiatives

Stroke Strategy
ACB Screening

Various projects <$200,000 each

Non-Current

Alberta Department of Seniors and Community Supports:
Healthy aging partnership initiatives (HAPI)

Total

2009 2008
$ 33312 $ -
13,804 -
7,200 -
6,285 2,340
2,000 -
808 -
616 213
602 -
459 303
429 363
354 324
331 579
329 -
319 .
242 242
203 143
78 683
58 217
27 18
. 33
458 $86
1,369 1,349
622 998
37 300
478 121
70,510 9,112
230 220
$ 70740 $ 9,332
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Note 7 Deferred Capital Contributions

The balance at the end of the year is restricted for the following purposes:

2009 2008

Equipment replacement $ 277 4,879
Information technology projects 715 267
Building systems upgrade initiative 1,418 1,342
Infrastrocture maintenance program 6,591 2,307
Hand hygiene strategy 741 480
Reducing & avoiding injury initiative 1,077 1,100
New construction 88,480 7,337

$ 99,299 17,712

Note 8§ Long-Term Employee Benefits

(a) Supplementary Retirement Plan

The Region has a supplementary defined benefit plan for certain management staff.
There are no cash payments made to staff relating to this plan until their retirement. The
plan’s assets will be held in a trust pursuant to a Retirement Compensation Arrangement
(as defined by the Income Tax Act). The plan is fully funded. Actuarial valuations are
completed annually. The obligation and pension expense can vary with changes in

actuarial assumptions used to estimate the obligation.
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Note 8  Long-Term Employee Benefits (continued)

2009 2008
Accrued Benefit Obligation
Accrued obligation, beginning of year $ 1,389 § 1,142
Accrued obligation, HBA Services Nov 1, 2008 491 -
Current service cost 164 71
Interest cost 79 63
Benefits paid (553) -
Actuarial (gain) loss (184) 113
Accrued obligation, end of year $ 1,386 $ 1,389
Reconciliation of funded status of accrued benefit asset -
Funded status of plan (deficit) $ 264§ (104)
Unamortized actuarial (gain) loss (116) 291
Unrecognized initial obligation 248 638
Accrued benefit asset $ 396§ 825
Current service cost $ 164 $ 71
Interest cost 79 63
Actual return on assets %) (18)
Amortization of initial obligations 390 93
Amortization of actuarial (gain) loss in year (184) 114
Difference between expected and actual return on assets 34) (13)
Difference between recognized and actual actuarial loss (gain) in year 294 (90)
Net Benefit Cost $ 704 $ 220
Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows
Discount rate 6.20% 5.20%
Expected return on plan assets 3.10% 2.60%
Expected average remaining service life of employees 8 years 7 years
Salary scale increases per year 4.00% 4.00%

The above information is based on the annual actuarial valuation performed as of March 31 for

each fiscal year.

Plan assets (held by trustee)
Employer contributions
Fair value of assets - March 31

Plan assets (held by Canada Revenue Agency)
Employer contributions paid as refundable taxes

Total plan assets

Funded status of plan - Surplus (deficit)

$ 807 $ 655
843 630

$ 1,650 3 1,285

$ 264§ (104

East Central Health



Note 8 Long-Term Employee Benefits (continued
e e ( ) Note 10  Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

(b) Pension Expense

The Region participates in the Local Authorities Pension Plan, which is a multi-employer (i) ”fl"h“e Region is committed to operating lease payments in future years as
defined benefit plan. Pension expense in these financial statements is equal to the ollows:
Region’s annual contributions payable of $6,456 for the year ended March 31, 2009
(2008 $5,379). 2010 $ 882
2011 530
At December 31, 2008, the Lacal Authorities Pension Plan reported a deficiency of 2012 253
$4,413,971 (2008 — deficiency of $1,183,334). 2013 79
2014 and after 68
Note 9 Transfer of Provincial Health Authorities of Alberta operating as Health Boards of 5 1812

Alberta (HBA Services)
The leases expire at various dates from 2009 to 2015.

The Provincial Health Authority of Alberta (PHAA) operating as Health Boards of Alberta

. i . X (iv) Alberta Health Services will take over the delivery of Emergency Medical
(HBA Services) was transferred to the Region on November [, 2008. All assets and Services (EMS) for the entire province on April, 1, 2009, While some

services will be merged into operations, Alberta Health Services is
contracting for delivery of EMS in many communities in the province and
has signed contracts with total commitments over the next two years:

liabilities including all rights, obligations, commitments and contingencies were transferred
to the Region at the carrying values.

As a result of the transfer net assets increased as follows:

2010 $ 208,327
2011 98,660
Accumulated  Investment
AT . R Total net
Assets Liabilities surplus/ in capital J—
(deficit) assets v) The Region is committed to the following construction and technology
HBA Services November 1, projects currently in progress and which will be satisfied from externally
2008 $ 4572 5 145 $ 2628 § 488 $§ 3,116 funded grants:
Note 10  Commitments and Contingencies
Lloydminster Continuing Care Project $ 1,751
(a) Commitments Vermilion Long Term Care Project 201
i . . L . Viking Acute Care Expansion Project 674
(i) The Region contracts on an ongoing basis with voluntary and private health e . .
. o L . Central Sterilization Renovation Projects 358
service operators to provide health services (Note 16(f)). The Region has
contracted for services in the year ending March 31, 2010 similar to those Ambulance Bay - Provost ___ 166
provided by these operators in 2009. $ 3,150
(i1y In order to manage its exposure to the volatility in the electrical industry, the

Board has entered into a five year contract, expiring March 31, 2010, two
purchase electrical energy at a fixed price of $54.40 per MWh. Based on
2009 consumption, the annual costs for the year ending March 31, 2010 are
expected to be $1,425.
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Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
Note 13 Other Government Contributions

(b) Contingencies 2009 2008
Alberta Government:
The Region has a contingent liability in respect of a claim concerning increased long-term Fair value adjustments $ 1,473 $ 1,367
care accommaodation charges levied effective August 1, 2003. The claim has been filed Transfers from deferred contributions 1,608 686
against the Province of Alberta and the Regional Health Authorities. The total amonnt of the $ 3,081 $ 2,053
claim is in excess of $150 million based on the amount of the increase in accommodation
charges levied. The outcome of the claim is not determinable, and no liability is recorded at . i
. Note 14 Ancillary Operations
The Region has a contingent liability in respect of claims relating to the failure of St. Joseph’s 2009 2008
Hospilz_ll to provide adequate infection control and safety_ measures to prevenlAccl)ntamination Excess of I
of medical equipment. The total amount of these ¢laims is in excess of $40 million. The s Revenue
outcome of the claims is not determinable, and no liability is recorded at this time. Direct Amortization Over Over
Revenue Expenses Expense Expenses Revenue  Expenses
In the ordinary course of operations, various other claims and lawsuits are brought against the
Region. While it is not possible to estimate the ultimate liability with respect to the pending Non-patient food services $ 565 % 559 % 6 %5 - $ 673 % (2)
litigation, the Region believes there will be no material adverse effect on the financial Rental operations 29 16 . 13 39 26
position of the Region. Other 50 47 - 3 59 27
644 622 6 16 771 51
Note 11 Budget Amontized external capital contributions 1 - - 1 1 1
The budget was approved by Senior Management and submiitted to the Minister of Health and Ll $ b e 622 8 CH [T 121 -2

Wellness in early fiscal 2008-2009.

. . . ) Ancillary expenses are reported in support services in the Statement of Operations.
Over the course of the fiscal year, the Minister provided additional funding of $10,000. The

Board has allocated these additional resources to address funding expectations, Note 15  Investment and Other Income
Note 1 Alb Health Well ibuti 2009 2008
ote 12 erta Health and Wellness Contributions Investment income 3 55 3 )
2009 2008 Unrealized loss on investments (1,146) ®)
Unrestricted con tibuti $ 235552 $ 208973 Workers Compensation rebates 323 680
nrestricted contributions N ’ Primary Care Networks 347 178
Other one time grants - 1,500 Other revenue 3,058 2,685
Transfer from deferred contributions - transition grant (Note 19) 66,196 5 $ 2,779 $ 3,797
Transler from deferred contributions - other 13,029 8,992

Investment income comprises interest, dividends, amortization of discount (premiums) and
Transfer from deferred capital contributions 8,191 3,042 realized gains or losses on investments.

$ 322,968 $ 222,507

Other revenue comprises charges for laundry services to continuing care clients, services
provided to others and various miscellaneous recoveries.
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Note 16  Related Parties

(a) Province of Alberta and Health Regions

The Minister of Health and Wellness appoints members of the Alberta Health Services
Board. The Board is economically dependent on the Ministry of Health and Wellness

since the viability of its on-going operations depends on contributions from the Ministry.

The Region had the following transactions with other health regions recorded on the
Statement of Operations and Financial Position at the amounts of consideration agreed

upon between the related parties:

2009
Revenue _ Expense  Reccivable _ Payable Revenue _Expense Receivable Payable
Health Quality Council of Alberta 2 3 - - - 6 - -
Other Regional Health Authortics and Provincial
Health Boards 498 55,911 56 52,665 708 431
Total S 500 $ 55914 $ 56 § 52,663 708 431

(b) Regional Shared Health Information Program (RSHIP)

The seven non-metro health regions (Chinook Regional Health Authority, Palliser Health
Region, David Thompson Regional Health Authority, East Central Health, Aspen

Regional Health Authority, Peace Country Health and Northem Lights Health Region)
have entered into an agreement under the name Regional Shared Health Information
Program (RSHIP), to develop and implement a common, integrated health information
system. This standard system will integrate with Alberta’s Provincial Electronic Health

Record (EHR) initiative.

2009 2008
Alberta Health and Wellness Funding $ 624 1,676
Region contribution 541 959
$ 1,165 2,635
Expensed $ 593 1,435
Capitalized $ 572 1,200

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009

Note 16

Related Parties (continued)

(c¢) Primary Care Networks

The Authority’s share of the following Primary Care Networks are included in the
financial statements under the proportionate consolidation method.

Camrose Local Primary Care Initiative

Opening balance
Contributions from Alberta Health and Wellness

Amounts recognized as revenue
Amounts deferred

Provost - Consort Primary Care Network

Opening balance

Contributions from Alberta Health and Wellness
Amounts recognized as revenue
Amounts deferred

Region's 50% share

2009 2008

$ 1,300 $ 1,095
244 321
(230) (116)

$ 1,314 $ 1,300

Region's 25% share

2009 2008
$ 49 $ 66
36 45
(30) (62)
$ 53 $ 49

East Central Health



Note 16  Related Parties (continued) Note16  Related Partics (continued)

(d) Foundations

Contributions received by Resources held by the
The followi trolled foundati lidated in these fi ial ¢ Health Region Foundation
he contro t cons al 3 stat S
ollowing rolled foundations are not consolidated in these financial statements Venronded March 31, T Naroh 3T 3008
(1) Viking Health Foundation Externally
2009 2008 Restricted Unrestricted
The Viking Health Foundation was established under the authorization of the Minister Viking Health Foundation 'y 31 $ 36 Iy N g 2160
of Health on June 27, 1997. Representation on its Board consists of 11 members . . .
Tofield and Area Health Services Foundation - 42 17 -

appointed by the Authority. The Viking Health Foundation was created to solicit funds
from the public in order to assist the Region in achieving its health goals for the Net assets $ 31§ % 8 17 5 2160
residents of the Viking community.

(e} Other Foundations

2008 2007
Assets $ 2209 $ 2205 The Region has an economic interest in the Daysland General Hospital Foundation and
Liabilities 49) %) the Wainwright & District Community Health Foundation.
Net assets $ 2,160 $ 2,142 The Region is permitted to appoint one representative to the Board of Directors of

g P pPp P

Revenue $ 223 3 598 each foundation. These foundations were established to solicit funds from the
Expenses (193) (178) public in order to assist the Region in achieving its health goals for the residents
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 30 $ 420 of each community.

) Contracts with Health Service Providers
2) Tofield and Area Health Services Foundation &
The Region has an economic interest through its contracts with voluntary and private

The Tofield and Area Health Services Foundation was established under the health service providers in the region. Funding was provided as follows:

authorization of the Minister of Health on September 10, 2003. Representation on its
Board consists of 7 members appointed by the Authority. The Tofield and Area

Health Services Foundation was created to solicit funds from the public in order to - 2009 20,08
assist the Authority in achieving its health goals for the residents of the Tofield \OIT7 s ploluntany LEh
community. Heal}h Heal.th Total Hea!th Hea %th Total
Service Service Service Service
Providers _Providers Providers Providers
2008 2007 Direct Region funding ~ $ 97,243 § 14255  $ 111,498 S 86658 $ 12056 § 98714
RS $ 78 31 Fees and charges 10,275 1,022 11,297 9,493 929 10422
Liabilities - - Full cost adjustments 828 - 828 8238 - 828
Net assets $ 17 $ 31 Total $108346  $ 15277  $ 123,623 $ 96979 $ 12985 % 109,964
Revenue 3 28 $ 15
Expenses (44) ©)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (16} $ 6 Note 17 Trust Funds
The resources of the foundation amounting to $17 (2007 - $31) have been restricted by The Region is providing fiscal management of funds received in trust from Alberta Health
donors for the exclusive use of the Tofield community. and Wellness for the Building Health System Leadership Capacity project, the Alzheimer’s

Dementia project, Camrose Local Primary Care Initiative and the Provost — Consort Primary
Care Network. These amounts are not reported in the statements.

During the year the Region received $1,977 and disbursed $4,737. The balance of funds held
by the Region is $1,370.
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Note 18

New Governance Structure

Note 19
On May 15, 2008, the Minister of Health and Wellness issued Ministerial Order #50/2008 to
restructure the governance model of health services delivery in Alberta.

Accordingly, effective April 1, 2009, Aspen Regional Health Authority, Calgary Health
Region, Capital Health, Chinook Regional Health Authority, David Thompson Regional
Health Authority, Northern Lights Health Region, Palliser Health Region, and Peace Country
Health will be disestablished along with the Alberta Cancer Board, Alberta Mental Health
Board, and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission.

The boundary of East Central Health was expanded to cover the entire the province of
Alberta, with the name being changed to the “Alberta Health Region™, which will operate as
Alberta Health Services. All assets and liabilities including obligations, commitments and
contingencies of the disestablished regions and the other entities referred to above, will be
transferred to the Alberta Health Region on April 1, 2009,

Transition and Restructuring Expenses

The Region received $80 million in funding from Alberta Health and Wellness for the costs
of transitioning to AHS. These costs consist of severance costs and termination benefits,
professional services, consulting costs, transferring employees to LAPP, unfunded
supplemental executive retirement plan obligations and payments and other applicable
transition expenses.

The costs incurred by the other entities are recorded in their financial statements with
offsetting revenue and receivables from the Region. As the recipient of the grant, the Region
has recognized contributions from Alberta Health and Wellness (Note 12) and transition costs
in the Statemnent of Operations. In the Schedule of Expense by Object (Schedule 1), the
Region’s transition and restructuring costs are included in salaries and benefits and are not
included in transition expenses. The Region has recorded a payable to the other entities for
the transition costs incurred by them as described below:

Other Amount Unfunded
e . ) Severance Costs Expensed SERP Capitalized Total
The assets, liabilities and net assets that will be transferred to Alberta Health Services on Alberta Cancer
April 1, 2009 are reported on Schedule 4. Board $ 2,194 $ - $ 2,094 % - $ - $ 2,194
Alberta Mental
Health Board 988 301 1,289 341 - 1,630
Alberta Alcohol and
Drug Abuse
Commission - 181 181 - - 181
Aspen Regional
Health Authority - 55 55 - - 55
Calgary Health
Region 6,619 1,067 7.686 12,929 4,258 24,873
Capital Health 3,606 554 6,160 6,844 - 13,004
Chinook Regional
Health Authority 523 164 687 957 - 1,644
David Thompson
Health Region 2,707 - 2,707 - - 2,707
Northern Lights
Health Region 573 35 608 S - 608
Palliser Health
Region 1,056 - 1,056 - - 1,056
Peace Country
Health 683 84 767 306 - 1,073
20,949 2,441 23,390 21,377 4,258 49,025
East Central Health 1,639 15,532 17,171 - - 17,171
$ 22,588 $17,973 $ 40,561 $21,377 $4,258 66,196
Balance included deferred contributions (Note 6) 13,804
Total grant received $ 80,000
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Note 19  Transition and Restructuring Expenses (continued)

Schedule 1
As at March 31, 2009, the Region’s transition and restructuring expenses related to the e
transition to AHS as described above are as follows: EAST CENTRAL HEALTH
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT
Severance- FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
Related Other (in thousands)
Charges Charges Total Bud _ o
Liability as at March 31, 2008 s - s - 5 - teget 0 2
Amounts Expensed 1,639 15,532 17,171
Payments made during the year (316) (8,532) (8,848) Salaries and benefits (Schedule 2) $ 109,835 $ 125,554 $ 99,314
Liability as at March 31, 2009 $ 1,323 7,000 % 8,323 Contracts with health service providers (Note 16(f)) 113,937 123,623 109,964
Drugs and gases 1,658 1,768 1,675
Medical and surgical supplies 1,528 2,066 1,964
The Region has recorded an expense of $1.3 million for Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Other contracted services 8,008 19,488 8,120
Commission and $5.7 million for Alberta Cancer Board related to the transfer of employees Other 35.047 36.223 28.354
from the Public Service Pension Plan to the Local Authorities Pension Plan effective April 1, Amortization: ’ i ’
2009. This expense is included in other charges above. This estimate was actuarially mor Izé ton: i .
determined based on pension information at December 31, 2007 that was updated for salary Capftal equipment - internally funded 2,963 3.287 2,916
increases and pensionable service until April 1, 2009. ‘ Capital equipment - externally funded 4,118 4,751 4,119
Facilities and improvements - internally funded - 57 47
Note 20  Accumulated Deficit Facilities and improvements -externally funded 3,846 3,804 3,846
Loss (Gain) on sale of equipment - ) 18
The Region has reported an accumulated deficit at March 31, 2009. Per Alberta Regulation Transition expenses incurred by other Health Regions and
15/95 of the Regional Health Authorities Act, Alberta Health Services must provide the Provincial Health Boards (Note 19) - 49,025 -
Minister with a plan, in writing, that is satisfactory to the Minister, to eliminate the net
accumulated deficit of all regions within three years of it being incurred, $_280,940 $ 369,641 $ 260,337
D Other:
Note 21 Comparative Figures Utilities $ 3440 $ 3195 $ 2,950
R . . . ] X Buildings and ground maintenance 8,796 4,585 2,796
Certain 2008 figures have been reclassified to match their 2009 presentation. Staff travel costs 2.048 3.125 2,728
Note 22 Approval of financial statements Patient transportation 2.137 1,927 1,916
Food supplies 1,923 2,119 1,824
These financial statements have been approved by the Alberta Health Services Board. Minor equipment 1,761 1,255 1,743
Insurance 595 542 544
Other 13,447 19,475 13,853
Total $ 35,047 $ 36,223 $ 28,354

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009 East Central Health



Schedule 2

EAST CENTRAL HEALTH
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
MARCH 31, 2009
(in thousands)

2009 2008
Severance
§ = B Other Other Non- Qé Tg E &
8 &4 ase Cash Cash Sub-total £ 2 Amount Total 2 & Total
s Salary @ 0 @ E - E
z = Benefits Benefits Z & z
Board Chair @
K.Hughes -AHS 0.8 § - $ 77 % - $ 77 - $ - $ 77 - $ -
E. Andersen S S 5 S S - = = 0.13 13
Board Members ™
J. Ady -AHS 0.88 - 49 - 49 - - 49 - -
L. Andreachuk -AHS 0.33 - 20 - 20 - - 20 - -
G. Bontje - AHS 0.33 - 22 = 22 - - 22 S =
T. Bougie - AHS 0.33 - 20 - 20 - - 20 - -
J. Clifford - AHS 0.33 = 23 - 23 - - 23 - -
P. Crevolin - AHS 0.21 - 10 S 10 S - 10 - -
S. Crowfoot - AHS 0.33 - 22 S 22 - - 22 - -
T. Franceschini - AHS 0.33 - 20 S 20 - - 20 - -
L. Hohol - AHS 0.88 - 48 - 48 - - 43 - -
A. Laupacis -AHS 0.33 - 20 - 20 - - 20 - -
J. Lehners - AHS 0.88 - 49 - 49 - - 49 - -
I. Lewis - AHS 0.88 - 49 - 49 - - 49 - -
C. Roozen - AHS 0.63 - 27 - 27 - - 27 - -
D. Sieben - AHS 0.88 S 51 - 51 - - 51 S S
G. Winkel - AHS 0.33 - - - - - - S - =
M. Arnold = S S = = - = - 0.13 5
R. Crooker = = = S S S - - 0.13 4
P. Gulak 5 . = = S - S - 0.13 5
L. Heinemann - - - = - - - - 0.13 2
J. Hunter = 5 e S S e - - 0.13 3
R. Israelson S S S S - - - - 0.13 7
L. Johnson = = = - - - - - 0.13 2
C. Mastel = = = S 5 S - - 0.13 5
0. Olineck 5 = = S S S - - 0.13 8
J. Rudkowsky - = - - - - - - 0.13 6
M. Schreiber S = S S - - - - 0.13 4
Total Board Compensation 8.76 - 507 - 507 - - 507 1.56 64
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Schedule 2 (continued)

EAST CENTRAL HEALTH
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
Severance
qf = Other Non- ? é ‘é S
L Base ?alary Other‘Casqh Cash Sub-total 22 Amount Total 2 n Total
g i ¥ Benefits Benefits 7 g ’E S =
Z. 74 Z.
Board Direct Reports ®
President and Chief Executive Officer - AHS © 0.02 $ 17 $ 94 % 5 % 116 - $ - $ 116 - $ -
Interim Chief Executive Officer - Contracted Service - AHS @ 0.88 481 - - 481 - - 481 -
Chief Executive Officer - Region - - 498 i, 498 - - 498 0.40 745
Official Administrator - Contracted Service - Region 0.30 119 - - 119 - - 119 0.60 263
CEO Direct Reports © .
Executive Operating Officer, Continuum of Care - AHS 0.79 363 42 133 538 1 1,323 1,861 - -
Interim Chief Operating Officer, Corporate Services -
Contracted Service- AHS © © 0.45 178 9 . 187 - . 187 B} B}
Special Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer, Corporate
Services - Contracted Services - AHS 0.33 61 13 17 9] - - 91 - -
Vice President, Medical Services - Region 1.00 308 - 113 421 - - 421 1.10 406
Vice President, Operations - Region & 1.00 172 - 32 224 - - 224 1.00 210
Chief Financial Officer - Region 1.00 191 21 44 256 1 316 572 1.00 187
Chief Corporate Services Officer - Region 1.00 159 - 41 200 - - 200 1.00 191
Director, Communications - Region 1.07 91 - 16 107 - - 107 0.80 90
Total Board and Executive 16.60 2,140 1,184 421 3,745 2 1,639 5,384 7.46 2,156
Management reporting to CEO Reports 20.97 2,428 96 445 2,969 - - 2,969 16.50 2,054
Other management 79.45 7,194 121 1,388 8,703 - - 8,703 65.70 6,939
Restructuring costs to transfer employees to LAPP ® - - - 7,000 7,000 - - 7,000 - -
Regulated nurses not included above
RN's, Reg. Psych. Nurses, Grad nurses 296.32 23,488 2,669 4,967 31,124 - = 31,124 281.90 28,064
LPN's 133.89 7,148 764 1,388 9,300 - - 9,300 128.20 7,640
Other health technical and professionals 239.59 16,764 990 3,226 20,980 - - 20,980 222.70 17,990
Unregulated health service providers 410.92 11,976 1,567 2,369 15,912 - = 15912 370.90 12,666
Other staff 493.66 19,554 224 4,404 24,182 - - 24,182 475.30 21,805
Total 1,691.40 $90,692 $§ 7,615 $ 25608 $ 123915 2 $ 1,639 $ 125554 1,568.66 $ 99,314
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Schedule 2 (continued)

EAST CENTRAL HEALTHE
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) is determined at the rate of 2,022.75 annual hours for each full-time employee. Total actual discrete number of
individuals employed: 2,338 (2008 - 2,288). “Discrete” number of individuals refers to all employees who were in the system during the fiscal year.

Base salary includes pensionable base pay.

Other cash benefits include bonuses, overtime, shift and responsibility premiums, lump sum payments and honoraria.
Other non-cash benefits include:

a. Employer’s current and prior service cost of supplementary retirement plans per note (7) below.

b. Share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of employees including pension, health care, dental coverage, vision
coverage, out-of-country medical benefits, group life insurance, accidental disability and dismemberment insurance, long and short term disability
plans, professional membership and tuition.

c. Employer’s share of the cost of additional benefits including sabbaticals or other special leave with pay, financial planning services, retirement
planning services, concessionary loans, travel allowances, car allowances, and club memberships.

Severance includes direct or indirect payments to individuals upon termination, which are not included in other benefits.
Automobile provided. No dollar amount included in other non-cash benefits.
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP)

Under the terms of the supplementary retirement plan, executive officers may receive supplemental retirement payments. Retirement arrangements
costs as detailed below are not cash payments in the period but are the period expense for rights to future compensation. Costs shown reflect the total
estimated cost to provide annual pension income over an actuarially determined post-employment period. SERP provides future pension benefits to
participants based on years of service and earnings.
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Schedule 2 (continued)

EAST CENTRAL HEALTH

SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

a) On May 15, 2008, the Region’s board (which had already been replaced by two Official Administrators in July 2007), along with the other regional health
authority boards, was replaced by the Alberta Health Services (‘AHS’) interim board according to Ministerial Order 50/2008. On December 1, 2008, an
additional 8 panel members were appointed to complete the 15 member board. Salaries and benefits of the AHS board members are reported and disclosed
in these financial statements.

b) Board Direct Reports for Region employees reflect FTE’s and costs for the entire 08-09 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at
May 15, 2008. Included are the AHS Board Direct Reports whose costs are reflected in the accounts of the Region.

¢) The President and Chief Executive Officer — AHS was appointed effective March 23, 2009. Other Cash Benefits includes reimbursement of relocation
costs of $44 and signing bonus of $50. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of the Region.

d) The Interim Chief Executive Officer - AHS was appointed effective May 15, 2008 to manage the operations of the health regions, provincial boards and
Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission and to effect their transition to a single provincial health authority. Costs incurred are reported in the
accounts of the Region.

e) OnJuly 8, 2008 the Official Administrator for the Region was transferred to AHS as Chief Operating Officer — Corporate Services.

f) CEO Direct Reports for Region employees reflect FTE’s and costs for the 08-09 fiscal year based on the titling and positioning that existed as at July 8,
2008. Included are AHS CEO Direct Reports whose costs are reflected in the accounts of the Region. All other AHS positions are disclosed in Schedule 3
and costs are reported in the respective Regions' records.

g) The Region has recorded an expense of $1.3 million for AADAC and $5.7 million for ACB related to the transfer of employees from PSPP to LAPP
effective April 1, 2009. This estimate was actuarially determined based on pension information at December 31, 2007 that was updated for salary

increases and pensionable service until April 1, 2009.

h) The previous Chief Executive Officer left the Region in July 2007, however the SRP lump sum was not paid out until April 2008.
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Schedule 2 (continued)

EAST CENTRAL HEALTH
SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

2009 2008
Accrued Change in Accrued
Current Other Benefit Accrued Benefit
Service SERP Obligation Benefit Obligation
Cost Costs Total Total March 31,2008  Obligation = March 31, 2009
Chief Executive Officer - Region $ - $ 498 % 498 $ 84 S 579 $ (579 $ -
Executive Operating Officer - AHS ® 90 5 05 - - 66 66
Vice President - Medical Services - Region 45 45 90 77 4432 2 444
Vice President - Operations - Region 10 18 28 26 164 (18) 146
Chief Financial Officer - Region 7 12 19 17 97 60 157
Chief Corporate Services Officer - Region 6 12 18 16 107 4) 103
Other © 6 (50) (44) = ) 470 470
$ 164 § 540 3 704 % 220§ 1,389 & 3 9 1,386

(a) Receiving annual pension of $10.3 indefinately

(b) Paid lump sum of $66.0 subsequent to March 31, 2009

(c) Relates to former HBA Services employees who were merged with the Region on November 1, 2008
(d) Paid lump sum of $532.2
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Schedule 3
ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(thousands of dollars)
2009
Severance ©
- Other T
g% Base Other Non- : °'s
T Salary Cash Cash Subtotal 2 'E Amount Total
2 ) L Benefits © Benefits § 5
@ ® Z 5
Board Chair ®
Ken Hughes 08 $ - 3 77 $ - $ 77 - $ - $ 77
Board Members ©

Jack Ady 0.88 5 49 = 49 - - 49
Pierre Crevolin 0.21 - 10 - 10 - - 10
Catherine Roozen 0.63 - 27 - 27 - - 27
Linda Hohol 0.88 - 48 - 48 - - 48
John Lehners 0.88 5 49 5 49 - - 49
Irene Lewis 0.88 - 49 - 49 - - 49
Don Sieben 0.88 - 51 - 51 - - 51
Lori Andreachuk 0.33 - 20 - 20 - - 20
Gord Bontje 0.33 - 22 - 22 - - 22
Teri Lynn Bougie 0.33 - 20 - 20 - - 20
Jim Clifford 0.33 - 23 - 23 = - 23
Strater Crowfoot 0.33 = 22 = 22 - - 22
Tony Franceschini 0.33 - 20 - 20 - - 20
Andreas Laupacis 0.33 - 20 - 20 - - 20
Gord Winkel 0.33 - - - - - - -
8.76 $ - $ 507 $ - $ 507 - $ 5 $ 507
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES

Board Direct Reports

President and Chief Executive Officer @
Interim Chief Executive Officer — Contracted
Service ®

CEO Direct Reports

Executive Operating Officer, Continuum of
Care ¥
Chief Operating Officer, Performance
Improvement and Clinical Support Services
Chief Operating Officer, Urban ™™
Chief Operating Officer, Community and Rural ©
Interim Chief Operating Officer, Health Strategies,
Research and Design
Interim Chief Financial Officer @ ®
Interim Chief Operating Officer, Corporate Services
- Contracted Service ¥
Special Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer,
Corporate Services - Contracted Service ©
Interim Chief Operating Officer, Change
Management @ ©
Senior Physician Executive

(i) (m)

(u)

Total Board and Executive

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Schedule 3 (continued)

(thousands of dollars)
2009
Severance ©
s Other Other cE
5, Base Cash Non- 52
< Salary . Cash Subtotal LI Amount Total
EL & RIS Benefits £ 3
> © e Z 2
0.02 $ 17 $ 94 $ 5 $ 116 $ - $ 116
0.88 481 e e 481 5 481
0.71 363 42 133 538 1,323 1,861
1.00 335 - 55 390 - 390
1.00 316 140 203 659 E 659
1.00 385 5 332 717 - 717
1.00 324 - 70 394 351 745
1.00 314 140 618 1,072 782 1,854
0.45 178 9 S 187 - 187
0.33 61 13 17 91 S 91
1.00 269 63 44 376 602 978
1.00 380 95 104 579 e 579
9.39 3,423 596 1,581 5,600 3,058 8,658
18.15 $ 3,423 $ 1,103 $ 1,581 $ 6,107 $ 3,058 $ 9,165
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ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Executive Operating Officer, Continuum of Care

Chief Operating Officer, Performance Improvement and
Clinical Support Services

Chief Operating Officer, Urban

Chief Operating Officer, Community and Rural

Interim Chief Operating Officer, Health Strategies, Research
and Design

Interim Chief Financial Officer

Interim Chief Operating Officer, Change Management

Senior Physician Executive

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009

Schedule 3 (continued)

(thousands of dollars)
2009
Accrued
Current Other Benefit
Service SERP Obligation
Cost Costs Total March 31, 2009
90 5 95 66
29 2 31 49
101 98 199 915
33 277 310 394
42 11 53 210
91 520 611 =
18 8 26 141
75 22 97 334
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Schedule 3 (continued)
ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Full-time equivalents (FTE) is determined at the rate of 2,022.75 annual hours for each full-time employee. Total actual discrete number of individuals employed during the
year was 12.

Base salary includes pensionable base pay.

Other cash benefits include honoraria, bonuses, overtime, vacation payouts and lump sum payments.

Other non-cash benefits include:

e Employer’s current and prior service cost of supplementary retirement plans per (f) below.

*  Share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of employees including pension, health care, dental coverage, vision coverage, out-of-country
medical benefits, group life insurance, accidental disability and dismemberment insurance, long and short term disability plans.

¢ Employer’s share of the cost of additional benefits including sabbaticals or other special leave with pay.

Severance includes direct or indirect payments to individuals upon termination, which are not included in other benefits.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP)

Under the terms of the supplemental executive retirement plan, executives may receive supplemental retirement payments. SERP costs are not cash payments in the period but are the
period expense for rights to future compensation. SERP costs shown reflect the actuarially estimated cost to provide pension income over the post-employment period. SERP

provides future pension benefits to participants based on years of service and earnings.

Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefit earned in the fiscal year. Other SERP costs include amortization of past service costs on plan initiation, amortization
of actuarial gains and losses, and interest accruing on the actuarial liability.

The change in the accrued benefit obligation includes current service cost, interest accruing on the actuarial liability and the full amount of any actuarial gain or loss in the period.

On May 15, 2008, the Alberta Health Services (‘AHS’) interim board was appointed. On December 1, 2008, an additional 8 panel members were appointed to complete the 15
member board. Honorariums and benefits of the AHS board members are reported in the financial statements of East Central Health.

These individuals are provided with an automobile allowance. Dollar amounts are included in other cash benefits (c) above.
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Schedule 3 (continued)
ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2009

These individuals are provided with an automobile. Dollar amounts are not included in non-cash benefits (d) above.

The President and CEO was appointed effective March 23, 2009. Other Cash Benefits includes reimbursement of relocation costs of $44 and signing bonus of $50. Costs
incurred are reported in the accounts of East Central Health.

The Interim CEO was appointed effective May 15, 2008 to manage the operations of the health regions, provincial boards and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission
and to effect their transition to a single provincial health authority. The incumbent's contract was terminated effective March 20, 2009. Costs incurred are reported in the
accounts of East Central Health.

This position was appointed effective July 8, 2008 and terminated effective March 20, 2009. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of East Central Health.

This position was appointed effective July 8, 2008. Costs incurred, and reflected for the entire fiscal 08-09 year, are reported in the accounts of Aspen Regional Health
Authority.

This position was appointed effective July 8, 2008. Costs incurred, and reflected for the entire fiscal 08-09 year, are reported in the accounts of Calgary Health Region.

This position was appointed effective July 8, 2008. Costs incurred, and reflected for the entire fiscal 08-09 year, are reported in the accounts of Chinook Regional Health
Authority.

This position was appointed effective July 8, 2008 and terminated effective April 30, 2009. Costs incurred, and reflected for the entire fiscal 08-09 year, are reported in the
accounts of Alberta Cancer Board.

This position was appointed effective July 8, 2008, and terminated effective March 31, 2009. Costs incurred, and reflected for the entire fiscal 08-09 year, are reported in the
accounts of Calgary Health Region.

This position was appointed effective July 8, 2008, and terminated effective November 27, 2008. Costs incurred, and reflected from July 8, 2008 to November 27, 2008, are
reported in the accounts of East Central Health.

This position was appointed effective December 2, 2008. Costs incurred are reported in the accounts of East Central Health.

This position was appointed effective January 22, 2009. Costs incurred, and reflected for the entire fiscal 08-09 year, are reported in the accounts of Calgary Health Region.
The incumbent will be departing December 31, 2009.

This position was appointed effective February 9, 2009. Costs incurred, and reflected for the entire fiscal 08-09 year, are reported in the accounts of Calgary Health Region.
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SALARIES AND BENEFITS

ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Schedule 3 (continued)

Based on future SERP compensation benefits described under (f) above, the following schedule outlines pension income received by individuals who departed within the 08-09 fiscal

period:

Pension Income

Name (not in thousands) Frequency Term
Executive Operating Officer, Continuum of
Care $ 66,010 Lump-Sum One-Time
Interim Chief Financial Officer 1,186,758 Lump-Sum One-Time

The Interim Chief Operating Officer, Health Strategies, Research and Design and Interim Chief Operating Officer, Change Management are eligible for SERP benefits, but

have not yet elected their pension income arrangement.

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009
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Alberta Alcohol and
Drug Abuse
Commission

Alberta Cancer Board

Alberta Mental Health
Board

Aspen Regional Health
Authority

Calgary Health Region

Capital Health

Chinook Regional Health
Authority

David Thompson Health
Region

East Central Health

Northern Lights Health
Region

Palliser Health Region

Peace Country Health

EAST CENTRAL HEALTH

Schedule 4

SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED TO ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES

MARCH 31, 2009
(thousands of dollars)

Unrestricted net assets

Accumulated net
unrealized gains/

Accumulated (losses) on Investment in

Assets Liabilities surplus/ (deficit) investments capital assets Endowments Total net assets
$ 27,081 $ 10,782 $ 16,299 $ - $ S $ e $ 16,299
300,056 237,408 3,990 2,175 46,181 10,302 62,648
120,029 111,674 10,482 (2,716) 589 - 8,355
254,729 245,703 (6,459) - 15,485 - 9,026
3,519,550 3,463,231 (218,886) (2,736) 277,941 - 56,319
2,944,195 2,836,705 (102,671) (14,460) 224,621 - 107,490
314,922 319,481 (23,042) - 18,333 150 (4,559)
589,872 581,375 (25,492) - 33,989 - 8,497
392,442 392,275 (11,244) - 11,411 - 167
206,786 156,598 29,703 )] 20,486 - 50,188
131,737 117,425 5,942 - 8,370 - 14,312
255,883 263,464 (21,440) - 13,859 - (7,581)

$ 9,057,282 $ 8,736,121 $ (342,818) $ (17,738) $ 671,265 $ 10,452 $ 321,161
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CAPITAL HEALTH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2009

Capital Health
Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting
Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2009 Consolidated Statement of Operations

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedule 1 - Consolidated Schedule of Expenses by Object

Schedule 2 — Consolidated Schedule of Salaries and Benefits

ital Health
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CAPITAL HEALTH
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

MARCH 31, 2009

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of management and have been
reviewed and approved by Senior Management. The consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the financial directives issued by
Alberta Health and Wellness, and of necessity include some amounts that are based on estimates and judgments.

To discharge its responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of financial reporting, management maintains a
system of internal accounting controls comprising written policies, standards and procedures, a formal
authorization structure, and satisfactory processes for reviewing internal controls. This system provides
management with reasonable assurance that transactions are in accordance with governing legislation and are
properly authorized, reliable financial records are maintained, and assets are adequately safeguarded.

The region members carry out their responsibility for the consolidated financial statements through the Audit
and Finance Committee. This Committee meets with management and the Office of the Auditor General of
Alberta to review financial matters, and recommends the consolidated financial staterents to the Alberta Health
Services Board for approval upon finalization of the audit. The Office of the Auditor General of Alberta has
free access to the Audit and Finance Committee.

The Office of the Auditor General of Alberta provides an independent audit of the consolidated financial
statements. His examination is conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
and includes tests and procedures, which allow him to report on the fairness of the consolidated financial
statements prepared by management.

[Original signed] [Original signed]
Dr. Stephen Duckett Chris Mazurkewich
President and CEO - AHS Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer -
AHS

[Original signed]

Colleen Purdy
Acting Chief Financial Officer

Ministry of Health and Wellness Annual Report 2008/2009

AUDITOR

GENERAL
Alberta

Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the Alberta Health Services Board
and the Minister of Health and Wellness

I'have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of Capital Health (the Authority)
as at March 31, 2009 and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Authority’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
managemen, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In my opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as at March 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

[Original signed by Fred J. Dunn]
FCA
Auditor General
Edmonton, Alberta
June 11, 2009

Capital Health



CAPITAL HEALTH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF FINANCIAL POSITION
MARCH 31,2009

(thousands of dollars) CAPITAL HEALTH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
2009 2008 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2009
ASSETS (thousands of dollars)
Current assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments (Note 3) s 310,122 s 295,868 2009 2008
Accounts receivable: Budget Actual Actual
Contributions receivable from Alberta Health and Wellness 10,573 66,735 (Note §1)
Other receivables 80,104 82,488 Revenue
Inventories 28414 20,081 Alberta Health and Wellness contributions (Note 12) $ 2,636,076 g 2,784,832 $ 2,446,151
Prepaid expenses 19,977 105,975 Other govemment contributions (Note 13) 42,524 77,879 53,813
Fees and charges 197,800 200,207 189,052
449,190 571,147 Ancillary operations (Note 14) 44,800 51,290 49,325
Research and education 35,900 29,684 37,728
Contributions receivable 43,875 163,563 Investment and other income (Note 15) 108,100 103,843 100,188
Loans - long-term care partnership projects {Note 4 (a)) 41,942 43,597 Amortization of external capital contributions 94,000 113,113 86,753
Non-current cash and investments (Note 3) 674,255 679,721
Capital assets (Note 5) 1,734,933 1,450,120 TOTAL REVENUE 3,159,200 3,360,848 2,963,010
TOTAL ASSETS S 2,944,195 $ 2,908,148 Expense (Schedule 1)
Inpatient acute care services 882,885 058,017 824,364
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS Emergency and outpatient services 390,858 406,501 364,898
. Facility-based conlinuing care services 303,942 271,330 266,556
Curzent liabilities: Community-based care 149,811 161,558 110,420
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5 325,134 $ 256,814 Home care 106,133 120,477 94,864
Accrued vacation pay 110,632 98,777 Diagnostic and therapeutic services 617,049 651,581 570,757
Deferred operating contributions (Note 6) 130,555 173,436 Promotion, preventian and protection services 79,430 87,308 74,015
Research and education 133,150 104,001 100,380
566,321 529,027 Administration 80,899 91,544 77,082
Information technology 53,557 90,151 49,952
Deferred operating contributions {Note 6) 2,767 3,736 Support services 427,886 469,124 412,289
Deferred capital contributions (Note 7) 703,915 828,553 Amortization of facilities and improvements 32,000 38,355 35,535
Deferred contributions - long-term care
partnership projects (Note 4 (b)) 43,462 45,136 TOTAL EXPENSES 3,257,600 3,449,947 2,981,512
Asset retirement obligation (Note 5 (¢)} 9,928 9,456
Life lease deposits (Note 8) 13,625 12,862
Deficiency of revenue aver expenses 3 (98,400} $ (89,099) $ (18,502)
773,697 899,743
Unamortized external capital contributions 1.496,687 1,262,275
The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these consolidated financial staternents.
Net assets:
Unrestricted deficiency (102,671} (21,923)
Cumulative net unrealized (losses)/gains on investments (14,460) 6,957
Intemally restricted funds - 57,086
Accumulated (deficit) surplus (Note 9) (117.131) 42,120
Investment in capital assets 224,621 174,983
107,490 217,103
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2944195 8 2,908,148

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL HEALTH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
Cumulative Net
Unrealized Internally Investment
Unrestricted Gains (Losses) Restricted Accunmulated in Capital
(Deficiency) on Investiments Funds Surplus (Deficit) Assets Total Total
Balance at beginning of year $ (21,923) $ 6,957 $ 57,086 % 42,120 $ 174,983 $ 217,103 $ 235,392
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (89,099) - - (89,099) - (89,099) -
Net transfers ol internally restricted funds 57,086 - (57,086) - - - (18,502)
Capital assets purchased with internal funds (89,773) - - (89,773) 89,773 - -
Amortization of internally funded capital assets 40,047 - - 40,047 (40,047) - -
Contribution ol land = s - - 903 903 10,434
Capital asset write off’ 228 - - 228 (228) - -

Cumulative net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments
Unrealized loss on available for sale financial
assels arising during the year - (19.418) - (19,418) - (19,418) (10,349)

Reclassification adjustment for losses included

in deficiency of revenue over expenses - (1,999) - (1,999) - (1,999) 128
Amortization of discount on life lease liability 760 - - 760 (760) E -
Lile lease deposits/(repayments) 3 - - 3 3 - -
Balance at end of year $ (102,671 $ (14,460) $ - $ (117,13 $ 224,621 $ 107,490 $ 217,103

The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL HEALTH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2009
(thousands of dollars)

2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 11)
Operating activities;
Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (98,400) s (89,099) (18,502)
Non-cash transactions:
Amortization (Schedule [) 126,000 129,431 103,496
Loss on disposal of capital assets - 10,365 10,832
Write-off of capital assets 13,310
Amortization of external capital contributions (94,000) (113,331) (86,900)
Amortization of discount on life lease deposits 550 760 549
Amortization of long-term care partnership non-current loan (Note 4) 1,701 1,655 1,701
Amortization of long-term care partnership
deferred contributions (Note 4) (1,701) (1,655} (1,701)
Asset retirement obligation 450 472 449
Amortization of bond discount 280 256 757
(Gain)loss on disposal of investments (130} 1,999 (128)
Change in non-cash working capital accounts (18,748) 173.505 44,104
Cash (used by) generated from operations (83,998) 128,168 54,657
Investing activities:
Parchase of investments {160,000) (125,946) (157,486)
Purchase of capital assets:
Internally funded - equipment {139,100) (66,034) (21,739)
Internally funded - facility and improvements (42,200) (23,739) (21,837)
Externally funded - equipment (31,000) (87,317) ©9,177)
Externally funded - facility and improvements (238,000) (261,329) (167,122)
Proceeds on sale of investments 160,000 120,684 157433
Net unrealized gain/(loss) on investments 5,130 (1417 6,957
Long-term care partnesship projects (Note 4) - - (640)
Allocations (from)/to non-current cash and investments (31,360) 8,473 (210,762)
Cash used for investing activities (476,530) (456,625) (514,373)
Financing activities:
Deferred contributions 200 {969) 218
Capital contributions 300,000 224,480 486,187
Transfer for asset retirement obligation - @72) (449)
Long-term care partnership projects (Note 4) - (19) 9
Change in contributions receivable - 119,688 (9,289
Life lease deposits received 160 3 619
Cash generated from financing activities 300,380 342,711 477,295
Net {decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and investments (260,168) 14,254 17,579
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, beginning of year 295,268 295,868 278,289
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, end of year $ 35,700 $ 310,122 295,868

The accompanying notes and are part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1

CAPITAL HEALTH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

Authority, Purpose and Operations

Capital Health was established on June 24, 1994 under the authority of the Alberta Regional
Health Authorities Act, Chapter R-10, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000. On May 26, 2003
under the Ministerial Order, the Health Authority was named Capital Health. Capital Health is
exempt from payment of income tax and is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.
Effective April 1, 2009, Capital Health will be disestablished and all assets and liabilities will
be transferred to Alberta Health Services (“*AHS™) (Note 20).

Capital Health’s mandate is to deliver appropriate, accessible and affordable health services in
Alberta.  This responsibility includes operating programs designed to promote, protect,
maintain, restore and enhance physical and mental well being.

Capital Health geographic boundaries include the cities of Edmonton, Fort Saskatchewan,
Ledue, Spruce Grove and St. Albert; the communities of Devon, Stony Plain, Sherwood Park,
Evansburg, Morinville and Redwater; and the counties of Leduc, Parkland, Strathcona,
Sturgeon and the eastern part of Yellowhead county.

Capital Health operations include the following:

a) Acute Care Hospitals, Community Hospitals and Health Centres
University of Alberta Hospital
Stollery Children’s Hospital
Royal Alexandra Hospital
Glenrose Rehabilitation Hospital
Grey Nuns Community Hospital (operated by Covenant Health)
Misericordia Community Hospital (operated by Covenant Health)
Sturgeon Community Hospital
Leduc Community Hospital
Devon General Hospital
Alberta Hospital Edmonton
Fort Saskatchewan Health Centre
Redwater Health Centre
Westview Health Centre
Evansburg Health Centre

Capital Health



Note 1

Authority, Purpose and Operations {continued)

b) Innovative Primary Health Facilities
Northeast Community Health Centre
Health First Strathcona Primary Care Centre
Eastwood Primary Health Care Centre

c) Continuing Care Facilities

Capital Care Group Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of Capital Health):
Dickinsfield, Grandview, Norwood, Lynnwood, Kipness Centre for
Veterans, Strathcona Care Centre, McConnell Care
Centres, Laurier Houses, and Strathcona Alzheimer Care Centre

Aspen House

Edmonton General Hospital (operated by Covenant Heath)

Private and Voluntary Continuing Care Providers:
18 providers under contract operating at 34 sites

Supportive Living — Private and Voluntary Operators
33 designated assisted living sites
78 support homes

d) Home Care - contracts with 17 agencies, 41 seniors residences/lodges and 428 self
managed care contracts with individuals/guardians

e) Public Health Clinics - 23 sites

f) Public Health Speciality Clinics - 5 sites, 4 school health sites and 8 student health
initiative partnership sites

g Medical Education (residents) - various facilities

h) Research - undertaken at Northemn Alberta Clinical Trials Centre and various facilities

i) Laboratory Services - hospital based laboratory services, and services contracted from a
private operator

P Provincial Laboratory at the University of Alberta Hospital site

k) Community Rehabilitation Physiotherapy Clinics at 64 sites under contract and 4 public
sites and 19 other contract rehabilitation service agreements (audiology, respiratory
therapy, etc.)

1 Ancillary Operations - non-patient food services, parking, and other commercial
activities

In meeting its responsibilities under the Regional Health Authorities Act, Capital Health
contracts with the Covenant Health (formerly Caritas Health Group) to provide certain acute
care services as an integral part of Capital Health operations.

These financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities and operations of any voluntary
or private facilities providing health services in the region.
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting requirements of Financial Directive
34 issued by Alberta Health and Wellness. Following are the significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of Presentation

I o These financial statements have been prepared on a consolidated basis, except
that controlled foundations are not consolidated. The entities consolidated are
Capital Health and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Capital Care Group Inc.,
Capital Health Tele-Ophthalmology Inc., and Edmonton Heart Systems Inc.
(Note 16).

(ii)  Capital Health uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its 50%
interest in the Northern Alberta Clinical Trials Centre joint venture with the
University of Alberta.

(iif) Capital Health uses the proportionate consolidation method to acconnt for its 50%
interest in the following Primary Care Networks;

Edmonton Southside Primary Care Network
Edmonton Oliver Primary Care Network
Westview Primary Care Network

St. Albert and Sturgeon Primary Care Network
Leduc Beaumont Devon Primary Care Network
Edmonton West Primary Care Network
Edmonton North Primary Care Network
Sherwood Park Primary Care Network

(2)  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the deferral method of
accounting for contributions. The key elements of our revenue recognition policies are:

(1) Unrestricted operating grants and other contributions are recognized as revenue in
the year they become receivable.

(i)  Externally restricted non-capital contributions are deferred and recognized as
revenue in the year the related expenses are incurred. Unspent contributions are
recorded as deferred contributions.

(i)  Externally restricted capital contributions are recorded as deferred capital
contributions until invested in capita] assets. Amounts invested, representing
externally funded capital assets, are then transferred to unamortized external capital
contributions.  Unamortized external capital contributions are recognized as
revenue in the periods in which the related amortization expense of the capital asset
is recorded.
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of Presentation (continued)

(iv)  Externally restricted contributions to purchase capital assets which will not be
amortized are recorded as direct increases to net assets.

vy Investment income includes dividend and interest income, and realized gains or
losses on the sale of investments. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale
investments are included directly in net assets or deferred contributions as
appropriate, until the related investments are sold. Unrealized gains and losses on
held-for-trading investments are included in investment income and recognized as
revenue, deferred or reported directly in net assets, depending on the nature of any
external restrictions imposed on the investment income. Restricted investment
income is deferred and recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred. Other unrestricted investment income is recognized as
revenue when earned.

(vi) Donations and contributions in kind are recorded at fair value when such value can
reasonably be determined.

(vii) Revenue from sales of goods and services is recorded in the period that goods are
delivered or services are provided.

Capital Disclosure

Effective April 1, 2008, Capital Health Region adopted CICA Handbook Section 1535,
Capital Disclosures (“CICA 15357). CICA 1535 requires disclosure of an entity’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital, quantitative data about the
entity in regards to capital and whether the entity has complied with any capital
requirements and if it has not complied, the consequences of such non-compliance.

For operating purposes, Capital Health defines capital as including working capital and
accumulated surplus. For capital purposes, Capital Health defines capital as including
deferred capital contributions, unamortized external capital contiibutions and
investment in capital assets.

Capital Health’s objective for managing capital is:

@)  In the short-term, to safeguard Capital Health’s financial ability to continue to
deliver health services; and

(i)  In the long-term, to plan and to build sufficient physical capacity to meet future
needs for health services.

The majority of Capital Health’s operating funds are from Alberta Health & Wellness,
which is paid on the first of each month. As a result, significantly less working capital
is required. Capital Health monitors its working capital and cash flow forecasts.
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital Disclosure (continued)

Alberta Health and Wellness approves health care facilities based on long term capital
plans and provides the majority of the funding through one-time capital grants. Capital
Health funds the required equipment and systems by a combination of allocating a
portion of operating funds and obtaining external funding from charitable donations
and capital grants.

When a health region has incurred an accumulated deficit, legislation requires
submission of a deficit elimination plan (Note 9).

Full Cost

Capital Health accounts for all expenses and revenues related to services carried out for
which it is responsible at fair value. Fair value transactions recorded consist of the
following:

(i)  Revenue earned by contracted health service operators from Ministry of Health
and Wellness designated fees and charges are recorded as fees and charges of
Capital Health. An equivalent amount is recorded as contracted health service
operator expense of Capital Health.

(i) Payments from Alberta Health and Wellness directly to contracted health service
operators for health programs are recorded as revenue. An equivalent amount is
recorded as program expenses as these payments represent part of the cost of
Capital Health’s health programs.

(i) The fair value for use of acute care facilities not owned by Capital Health is
recorded as revenue from other government contributions and as program
expenses, since contract payments from Capital Health do not include an amount
for use of these facilities.

(iv)  The fair value for use of non-acute care facilities not owned by Capital Health
and provided to Capital Health at zero or nominal rent is recorded as other
government contributions and as program expenses.

(v)  Other assets, supplies and service contributions that would otherwise have been
purchased are recorded as revenue and expenses, at fair value at the date of
contribution, when a fair value can be reasonably determined. Volunteers
contribute a significant amount of time each year to assist Capital Health in
carrying out its programs and services. However, contributed services of
volunteers are not recognized as revenue and expenses in the financial statements
because fair value cannot be reasonably determined.
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

(d)

Investments

Investments are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies described in
Note 2(e). Capital Health records these investments on a settlement date basis and
transaction costs associated with investment activities are capitalized and are included in
the acquisition costs or reduce proceeds on disposal.

Financial Instruments

Initial measurement of financial instruments is at fair value and subsequent
measurement and recognition of changes in value depends upon the classification.
Financial assets and financial liabilities classified as “held-for-trading” are measured at
fair value with changes in those fair values recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations. Financial assets classified as “available-for-sale” are measured at fair value
with changes in fair values recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net
Assets until realized, at which time the cumulative changes in fair value are recognized
in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. “Loans and receivables” and financial
liabilities classified as “other financial liabilities” are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

Capital Health has classified its significant financial assets and financial liabilities as
follows:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Classification
Held-for-trading
Available-for-sale
Loans and receivables
Other financial liabilities
Other financial Habilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable and contributions receivable
Accounts payable and accrued labilities
Accrued vacation pay

Capital Health does not use hedge accounting and accordingly, it is not impacted by the
requirements of Section 3865, Hedges.

When it is determined that an impairment of a financial instrument classified as
available-for-sale is other than temporary, the cumulative loss that had been recognized
directly in net assets or deferred contributions is removed and recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations even though the financial asset has not been
derecognized.  Impairment Josses recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations for a financial instrument classified as available-for-sale are not
subsequently reversed.

The carrying values of current cash, accounts receivable, contributions receivable and
accounts payable approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these
items. It is management’s opinion that Capital Health is not exposed to significant
interest rate, currency or credit risks arising from its financial instruments.
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

®

Employee Future Benefits

)

(it}

Pension Obligation

Capital Health and its eligible employees participate in the Local Authorities
Pension Plan. This is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan that
provides pensions for participating employees, based on years of service and
earnings. Defined contribution plan accounting is applied to this plan for which
Capital Health has insufficient information to apply defined benefit plan
accounting. Pension expense included in these financial statements comprises
the amount of employer contributions required for its employees during the year,
based on rates expected to provide benefits payable under the pension plan.
Capital Health does not record its portion of the pension plan’s deficit or surplus.

Capital Health has a supplementary defined benefit plan for certain management
staff. Capital Health benefit obligations are actuarially determined using the
projected benefit method prorated on services valuation that includes employee
service to date and present compensation levels as well as a projection of salaries
and service to retirement. No cash payments are made to staff relating to this plan
until their retirement. Net actuarial gains and losses of the benefit obligation are
recognized as expense immediately. Past service costs are amortized over the
average remaining service period of active employees — 5.8 years (2008 — 5.10
years).

Current service cost is the actuarial present value of the benefits camed in the
fiscal year. Prior service and other costs include amortization of past service
costs on plan initiation, amortization of actuarial gains and losses, and interest
accruing on the actuarial liability. The supplemental executive retirement benefit
plan is unfunded.

Other Future Benefits

Capital Health provides its employees with basic life, accidental death and
dismemberment, short term disability, long term disability, extended health,
dental and vision benefits through benefits carriers. Capital Health’s contribution
to the extent that they do not relate to discretionary reserves, are recorded as
expense.

Capital Health is obligated to pay out accumulated sick leave credits to certain
employees employed prior to April 1, 1975 with five continuous years of
permanent service. Those who terminate employment are entitled to collect pay
in an amount equivalent to twenty-five percent (25%) of any vnexpended sick
leave credits.
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

®

(8)

Employee Future Benefits (continued)
(i)  Other Future Benefits (continued)

Capital Health participates in a Supplementary Unemployment Benefit Plan
(SUBP). This is a post-delivery disability benefit for female employees who
meet certain qualification criteria. Qualifying employees are entitled to a top-up
of their Employment Insurance Maternity benefits to a percentage of their regular
earnings and to a cost sharing of SUBP premiums during the post-delivery
disability period.

Other benefit plans include employee and employer funded healthcare, dental,
life insurance and long and short term disability plans.

Capital Health fully accrues its obligations for employee non-pension future
benefits.

Inventories

In June 2007 the Canadian Institmte of Chartered Accountants (the “CICA”) issued a
new accounting standard, Section 3031 Inventories which provides guidance on the
recognition, measurement and disclosure of inventories. The standard provides specific
direction for not-for-profit organizations to record inventories held for consumption or
distribution at no charge at the lower of cost or current replacement cost.

Capital Health adopted this new standard as of April 1, 2008 but did not adjust
opening balances or restate prior periods because the adoption did not have a material
impact.

Inventories for consumption or distribution at no charge are recorded at the lower of
cost (defined as moving average cost) and current replacement cost. All other
inventories are recorded at the lower of cost (defined as moving average cost) and net
realizable value,
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Note 2

Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)

()

®

o

Capital Assets

Capital assets and capital projects in progress are recorded at cost. Capital assets with
unit costs less than five thousand dollars are expensed.

Capital assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis as
follows:

Buildings 2.5% - 5%
Parking lots 5% - 10%
Land improvements 10%

Furniture and equipment 5% - 20%

Equipment under capital lease 5% - 20%
Leasehold improvements Lease term plus one renewal period

Capital projects in progress include infrastructure and information systems projects.
Capital projects in progress are not amortized until the project is substantially complete.

Leases transferring substantiaily all of the benefits and risks of ownership of capital
assets to Capital Health are reported as acquisitions of capital assets financed by long-
term obligations.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Capital Health recognizes the fair value of a future asset retirement obligation as a
liability in the period in which it incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement
of tangible long-lived assets that results from the acquisition, construction, development,
and/or normal use of the assets. Capital Health concurrently recognizes a comesponding
increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset that is amortized over the
life of the asset. The fair value of the asset retirement obligation is estimated using the
expected cash flow approach that reflects a range of possible outcomes discounted at a
credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate. Subsequent to the initial measurement, the asset
retirement obligation is adjusted at the end of each period to reflect the passage of time
and changes in the estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation. Changes in
the obligation due to the passage of time are recognized as an operating expense using
the effective interest method. Changes in the obligation due to changes in estimated
cash flows are recognized as an adjustment of the carrying amount of the related long-
lived asset that is amortized over the remaining life of the asset.

An asset retirement obligation related to the removal of hazardous material that would
be required as part of a capital project is only recognized when there is approval from
the Minister of Health and Wellness to proceed with the project.

Trust Funds Received by Capital Health
Capital Health received trust funds from Alberta Health and Wellness that are to be paid
to operators of non-owned facilities for capital purposes or facility repairs. In addition,

Capital Health administers funds received in trust from Alberta Health and Wellness for
specific projects. These amounts are not reflected in the financial statements.

Capital Health
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Note 3 Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued)
(k) Measurement Uncertainty 2009 2008
The consolidated financial statements, by their nature, contain estimates and are subject . )
to measurement uncertainty that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities, Fair Market Fair Market
Value Cost Value Cost

revenue and expenses at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
(thousands of dollars)

Significant estimates include the impact of employee future benefits, other than
temporary impairment of investments, accruals for payroll, asset retirement obligations,

life lease deposits, capital projects in progress and useful lives of assets. Actual results Cash . $ 787,998 5 787998 $ 762,078 § 762,079
could differ from these estimates Money market securities 15,328 15,339 15,593 15,555
: Bonds 131,077 131,606 137,595 134,966
Equities 49,574 63,894 60,323 56,032
Total $ 984,377 $ 998,837 $ 975,589 $ 968,632
Classified as:

Current $ 310,122 $ 295,868

Non-current 674,255 679,721

$ 984,377 5 975,589

(a)  Income and financial returns are exposed to credit and price risks. Credit risk relates to
the possibility that a loss may occur when another party fails to perform according to the
terms of the contract. Price risk comprises interest rate risk and market risk. Interest
rate risk relates to the possibility that investments will change in value with future
fluctuations in market interest rates. Market risk relates to the possibility that
investments will change in value due to future fluctuations in market prices.

To earn optimal financial returns at an acceptable level of risk, management has
established an asset mix policy of 0 % to 100 % for fixed-income instruments and 0 %
to 35 % for equities. Risk is reduced through asset class diversification, diversification
within each asset class and quality constraints on fixed-income and equity instruments.

(b)  Publicly traded fixed-income instruments are managed with the objective of providing
optimal returns while maintaining maximum security of capital. Return is optimized
within risk constraints on the portfolio by management of portfolio duration and issuer
mix.

Fixed-income securities maturity dates range from April 2009 to December 2041. Bond
yields to maturity range from 1.37% to 23.73% as at March 31, 2009 (2008 — 2.74 % to
7.64 %). The weighted average term to maturity is 9.3 years (2008 — 9.6 years).

Fixed-income securities, such as bonds, have an average effective yield of 4.60 % per
annum based on the market for securities maturing within a year, 3.50 % per annum for
securities maturing between 1 and 3 years, 3.50 % per annum for securities maturing
between 3 and 5 years, 5.60 % per annum for securities maturing between 5 and 7 years,
4.90 % per annum for securities maturing between 7 and 10 years and 4.80 % per
annum for securities maturing over 10 years.
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Note 3 Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

(b)  (continued)

As at March 31, 2009 the securities have the following term structure:

2009 2008
% %
Under | Year 11.9 =
1 to 5 years 34.8 394
S to 10 years 31.8 30.7
Over 10 years 21.5 29.9
100.0 100.0

(¢} Equities are comprised of publicly traded equities in Canadian and United States
resident corporations.

(d) Capital Health excludes from current cash funds that are subject to restrictions
preventing its use for current purposes. Non current cash includes amounts restricted
for commitments and other non current liabilities. Capital Health uses the matching
concept where current cash is matched to current liabilities and non current cash to non
current liabilities.

Non-current cash and investments held relate to the following:

2009 2008

(thousands of dollars)

Funds committed for long-term care partnership

projects (Note 4) $ 43,462 $ 45,136
Non-current loans - long-term care partnership
projects (Note 4) (41,942} (43,597)
Deferred operating contributions (Note 6) 2,767 3,736
Deferred capital contributions (Note 7) 703,915 828,553
Contributions receivable (43,875) (163,563)
Asset retirement obligation (Note 5(¢)) 9,928 9,456
$ 674,255  $ 679,721
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Note 4

Long-term Care Partnership Projects

Capital Health uses the Forgivable Mortgage Model for reporting the receipt and advancement
of funds for long-term care partnership projects. The Provincial Government supports
partnerships between Capital Health and private, public or voluntary organizations by
providing a one-time, ap-front capital grant to Capital Health. These funds are recorded as
deferred contributions — long-term care partnership projects; except for funds used by Capitat
Care Group Inc. to construct the Strathcona Care Centre and Kipnes Centre for Veterans,
which are accounted for as deferred capital countributions. Capital Health in turn provides a
demand loan to the partner. The partner uses these funds towards the construction of the
facility. The loan is forgivable over the useful life of the infrastructure. The loan is repayable
on demand, is secured by the facility and is forgivable for services rendered by the owner over
the life of the facility. Capital Health does not accrue interest on the loan as Capital Health
will forgive the balance of the loan following the expiry of the initial thirty years of use and
any extension arrangement (not to exceed ten years).

Capital Health amortizes loans - long-term care partnership projects to facility-based
continuing care services and recognizes an equal amount of revenue as other government
contributions through the amortization of deferred contributions long-term care partnership
projects.

a)

b)

Loans — Long-term care partnership projects
2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)

Balance, beginning of year $ 43,597 $ 44,658
Funds advanced for construction of facilities - 640

Amount recognized as facility-based
continuing care services expense (1,655) (1,701)

Balance, end of year $ 41,942 $ 43,587

Deferred contributions — Jong-term care partnership projects

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)
Balance, beginning of year $ 45,136 $ 46,828
Net interesl (paid) earned a9 9
Amount recognized as other government
contribution revenue (Note 13) {1,655) (1.701)
Balance, end of year 3 43,462 $ 45,136
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Note 5 Capital Assets
Note 5 Capital Assets (continued)

Cost
(thousands of dollars) (b)  Capital assets have been funded from the following sources:
Opening Transfers from Closing
Balance Work in Additions Disposals Balance 2009 2008
April 1, 2008 Progress March 31, 2009 (thousands of dolars)
Externally funded (unamortized external
Buildings $ 1,256,018 $ -8 225203 § -5 1481221 capital contributions) $ 1,496,687 $ 1,262,275
Parking lots 69,548 . 15456 . 85,004 Internally funded (investment in capital
Land and improvements 30,065 - - - 30,065 assets) 224,621 174,983
Furniture and equipment 695,597 152,602 (27,038} 821,161 Financed through:
Equipment under capital lease 9.532 - - - 9,532 Life lease deposits (Note 8) 13,625 12,862
Leasehold improvements 5,022 - 1,757 (360 6,419
Projects in progress 392,288 - 43,401 (13,810 421,879 § 1,734,933 $ 1,450,120
Intangible asset - leases 8,552 - - - 8,552
$ 2,466,622 $ - § 438419 § (41,208) § 2,863,833 (c)  Asset Retirement Obligation (amounts in thousands of dollars)
; o Capital Health has recorded a liability for asset retirement obligation of $9,928 (2008 -
I $9,456). The asset retirement obligation represents the legal obligation to remove
(TR asbestos from four Capital Health buildings.  Amortization of facilities and
Opening Closing Net Net imProvementsv inf:ludes amortization of $2,104 (2_008 - $2,104) related t(? asset
Balance Current year Amortization Balance Book Value Book Value retirement obligation. Interest of $472 (2008 - $449) is recorded on the asset retirement
April [, 2008 amortization on Disposals  March 31, 2009 2009 2008 obligation. Revenue equal to the amortization expense is recorded as amortization of
external capital contributions. Revenue equal to interest expense is recorded as other
Buildings $ 461,567 § 35727 § -8 497294 § 983,827 3 791,843 government contributions.
Parking lots 32,641 2,849 - 35,490 49,514 36,907
Land and improvements 4,055 3 - 4,058 26,007 26,010
Furniture and equipment 497,344 88,858 (16,728) 569,474 251,687 198,253
Equipment under capital lease 9,532 e - 9,532 o -
Leasehold improvements 4,365 567 (305) 4,627 1,792 3,265
Projects in progress - - - - 421,879 392,288
Intangible asset - leases 6,998 1,427 - 8,425 127 1,554

$ 1,016,502 § 129,431 $  (17,033) § 1,128,900 § 1734933 $§ 1,450,120

& Projects in progress include the Royal Alexandra Hospital redevelopment, University of Alberta
Hospital operating rooms, Alberta Health Institute, other major capital upgrades and information
technology projects under development.

(a) Land

Land at the following sites has been leased to Capital Health at nominal values:

Site Leased From Lease Period
McConnell Place North City of Edmonton Expires 2035
Northeast Community Health Centre  City of Edmonton Expires 2048
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Note 9 Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)

Note 6 Deferred Operating Contributions
Capital Health’s accumulated surplus/(deficit) comprises the following:

The balance at the end of the year is restricted from the following sources:

2009 2008
2009 2008 {thousands of daollars)
(thousands of dollars)
. Unrestricted deficiency $ (102,671)  $ (21,923)
urrent . . . .
Cumimulative net unrealized (losses)/gains on investments (14,460 6,957
Alberta Health and Wellness $ 82630 8 120,568 L ane ized losses)/g J
Other Lo 183 5460 Internally restricted net assets:
— Igovemment GRHTIE y Employee benefits rate stabilization reserve - 14,020
Donations 38,879 38,736
Oth buti 3.663 8.663 Program funds - 9,943
ther contributions B : Equipment and informations systems e 33,123
130,555 173,436
$ 117,131 $ 42,120
Non-current 2,767 3,736 ¢ )
. L. 177,172 In 2009, the Alberta Health Services Board has unrestricted all fonds that were previously
internally restricted.
=LY Reibuedis pilallCntibations Capital Health has reported an accumulated deficit at March 31, 2009. Per Alberta Regulation
The bal he end of th . i . ) 15/95 of the RHA Act, AHS will provide the Minister with a plan, in writing, that is
lbalancelatiitelendiofiitieheanishestuciediiontheriollowinsiphpeses: satisfactory to the Minister, to eliminate the net accumulated deficit of all health regions

combined, within three years of incurrence.
2009 2008

(thousands of dollars)

Facilities and improvements $ 534,859 $ 599,084
Information systems 116,016 142,351
Equipment 53,040 37,118

$ 703,915 $ 828,553

Note 8 Life Lease Deposits

Funding for the Laurier House facilities, a project for long-term care residents, is provided by
the tenants with a non-interest bearing repayment deposit, for the right to occupy the unit they
are leasing. When the life lease agreement is terminated, which may be by death of the tenant
or the tenant moving out, the life lease deposit is returned to the tenant without interest and in
accordance with the terms of the Life Lease Agreement. Capital Health has a liability for life
lease deposits of $13,625 (2008 - $12,862) based on a discharge rate of 25% and a discount
rate of 4%, representing the bank secured lending rate. The reported lability is based on
estimates and assumptions with respect to events extending over a 4 year period using the best
information available to management.
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Noie 10 Commitments and Contingencies

(a)  Operating Leases

Capital Health is committed to operating lease payments in future years as follows:

{thousands of dollars)

For the year ending March 31

2010 14,162
2011 13,444
2012 11,162
2013 7,503
2014 2,176
and thereafter 322

The leases expire at various dates from 2010 to 2021.

(b} Capital Assets

Capital Health has the following outstanding contractual commitments for capital assets:

48,769

©

2009
(thousands of dollars}

Capital projects 3 742,683
Information systems 3,668
Equipment 36,563

3 782,914

Contracted Health Services

Capital Health contracts on an ongoing basis with voluntary, private and community
health service operators to provide acute and continuing care and other health services in
the Region. In addition Capital Health has ongoing contracts for laundry, laboratory,
waste management, security and radiology services. Capital Health has contracted for
services in the year ending March 31, 2009 similar to those provided by these operators
in 2008.
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Note 10

Note 11

Note 12

Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
(d) Contingencies

Capital Health has been named as a defendant in a legal action in respect of increased
long-term care accommodation charges levied effective August 1, 2003. The claim has
been filed against the Province of Alberta and the Regional Health Authorities. The
amount of the claim is in excess of $150 million based on the amount of the increase in
accommodation charges levied. The outcome of the claim is not determinable.

In the ordinary course of operations, various claims and lawsuits are brought against
Capital Health. While it is not possible to estimate the ultimate [iability with respect to
the pending litigation, Capital Health believes there will be no material adverse effect on
its financial position.

Budget

The budget was prepared by management and accepted as information by the Capital Health
Finance Committee of the Board on April 29, 2008, and submitted to the Minister of Health
and Wellness. Over the course of the fiscal year, the Minister provided additional funding of
$100 million. Management has allocated these additional resources to address funding
requirements.

Alberta Health and Wellness Contributions

2009 2008

(thousands of dollars)

Unrestricted funding $ 2,596,599 $ 2,294,773

Transfers from deferred operating contributions 187,623 150,703

Alberta Health and Wellness payments to

contract operators:
Legacy Mortgage Assistance Program
for nursing home upgrades 610 675

$ 2,784,832 3 2,446,151
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Note 13 Other Government Contributions Note 14 Ancillary Operations

2009 2008
ZLL L (thousands of dollars)
(thousands of dollars)
Alberta Infrastructure and Transportation $ 1,127 $ 1.119 . L Excess of Excess of
? : Direct Amortization  Revenue over Revenue over
Alberta Mental Health Board 37,932 30,655
;. ’ ! Revenue Expenses Expense Expenses Revenue Expenses
Transition grants from Bast Central Health 13,270 -
icg""’ T 7,763 6,438 Parking operations $ 16569 § 6648 5 2939 8 6982 5 15006 5 7,308
e gove,rn‘ment prOJ.ECtS 364 221 Non-patient food services 15,867 15,417 30 420 15,420 1,225
A['\DAC smoking cessation 904 794 Sale of goods and services 13,395 14,238 53 (896) 9,753 191
Fair value of rent less rent charges for non- Other 5,459 2234 3 3217 9,146 2,893
acute care facilities used by
Capital Health - 24 $ 51290 $ 38537 § 3030 $ 9,723 9325 § 11,617
Fair value of use of non-owned acute care
facilities 13,460 11,238 Ancillary expenses are reported in support services in the Consolidated Statement of
Amortization of long-term care partnership Operations.
deferred contribution (Note 4) 1,655 1,701
Other 1,404 1,623 Note 15 Investment and Other Income
2009 2008
$ 77,879 $ 53,813 (thousands of dollars)
Investment income $ 13,931 $ 28,870
Other contributions 50,496 36,821
Sales and recoveries 39,416 34,497
$ 103,843 $ 100,188

Investment income comprises interest, dividends, amortization of discount and premiums, net
realized gains and losses on disposal of investments, and other than temporary impairment loss
on financial assets classified as available-for-sale, which amounted to $1,136.
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Note 16 Related Parties

(a)

(b)

Province of Alberta

The Minister of Health and Wellness appoints the members of Alberta Health Services
Board. Capital Health is economically dependent upon the Ministry of Health and
Wellness since the viability of its ongoing operations depends on contributions from the
Ministry.

Health Regions and Other Related Parties

Capital Health shares a common relationship with other health regions through its
relationship with the Province of Alberta. Transactions between Capital Health and
other health regions are reported in the consolidated financial statements.

Capital Health had the following transactions with other health regions recorded in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statement of Operations
at the amounts agreed upon by the related parties:

Receivable from Payable to
2009 2008 2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)
Ministry of Advanced Education  $ - $ 830 $ 6,364 $ 6,136
Other Ministries 3,666 473 22 116
Health related boards 323 956 1,454 35
Other health regions 13,960 980 278 1,320

$ 17,949 $ 3,239 $ 8,118 $ 7.607

Revenue Expenses

2009 2008 2009 2008

(thousands of doltars)

Ministry of Advanced Education  $ 5,531 $ 10,125 $ 46,585 $ 54,380

Other Ministries 5,099 5916 768 792
Health related boards 39,607 33,668 2,116 248
Other health regions 19,580 13,433 12,636 4,330

$ 69,817 $ 63,142 $ 62,105 $ 59,750
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Note 16 Related Parties (continued)

©

(d)

Primary Care Networks (thousands of dollars)

Capital Health’s 50% interest in the Primary Care Networks are included in the
consolidated financial statements using the proportionate consolidation method. Assets
and liabilities of $18,123 (2008 - $16,130) and income and expenses of $13,443 (2008 -
$10,317) have been included in the consolidated financial statements.

Contributions from Alberta Health and Wellness are as follows:

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)

Opening balance $ 15,184 $ 11,011

Contributions from Alberta Health and Wellness 12,655 12,370

Amounts recognized as revenue (11,038) (8,197)
Amounts deferred $ 16,801 $ 15,184
Foundations

The following controlled foundations are not consolidated in these statements:

e Fort Saskatchewan Hospital Foundation
*  Alberta Hospital Edmonton and Community Mental Health Foundation

Amounts held by the Foundations are not significant.
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Note 16

Related Parties (continued)

Note 16

(e)  Foundations (continued}
Capital Health has an economic interest in the following foundations:
Coniributions Received ‘" Resources Held by Foundations
2009
Endowments &
Externally Internally
2009 2008 Restricted Restricted Unrestricted
(thousands of dollass)

University Hospital Foundation $ 4,010 § 13,622 S 43.883 s 6981 7053
Royal Alexandra Hospital

Foundation 1,186 2,708 24,309 797 (2.210)
Stollery Children's Hospital

Foundation 1,563 2,818 6922 15,868 o
Capital Care Foundation 587 640 1,069 180 351
Black Gold Health Foundation - 99 288 - 45
Glensose Foundation 468 255 1,193 1,576 538
Sturgeon Community

Hospital Foundation 133 239 940 (178) 321
Council of Foundations o - - o &
Tri Community Health & Weliness

Foundation - = 15 4 67
Devon Hospital Foundation 30 103 23 303

$ 7,977 § 20,486 3 78,642 5 25,228 6,468

& Contributions comprise externally restricted amounts for equipment, programs, research

and education.
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Related Parties (continued)

{e)  Foundations (continued)
Amounts related to administrative support provided to foundations and the accounts
receivable from (payable to) the foundations at year-end are as foliows:
Administrative Accounts Recejvable
Support (Payable)
2009 2008 2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)

University Hospital Foundation $ - $ - $ 213 $ 370
Royal Alexandra Hospital Foundation = S S -
Stollery Children's Hospital

Foundation - - - 7
Capital Care Foundation 262 181 245 -
Black Gold Health Foundation - - 9 7
Glenrose Foundation - - 122 220
Sturgeon Community Hospital

Foundation - - 129 125
Council of Foundations - - - -
Tri Community Health & Wellness

Foundation (Stony Plain) - - - -
Devon Hospital Foundation - - - 51

$ 262 $ 181 $ 718 § 780

(f)  Other Voluntary Organizations

Capital Health has an economic interest in the following organizations affiliated
with the hospitals:

Contributions Received Resources Held by Or

2009

Endowments &
Externally
Restricted

Internally

2009 2008 Restricted

{thousands of dollars)

Unrestricred

The Friends of University

Hospital

$ 98 3 151 $ S $ & $

Royal Alexandra Hospital

‘Women's Auxiliary - - - - -
Sturgeon Healthcare

Auxiliary Volunteer Association - - o o -
Glenrose Rehabiliation Hospital

Women's Auxiliary - - - - -
Stony Plain and District Health

Centre Auxiliary 29 13 = 2 =
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Note 17

Note 18

Trust Funds (thousands of dollars)

Capital Health receives funds in trust from Alberta Health and Wellness for non-owned
facilities for capital purposes and facility repairs. These amounts are not reported in the
consolidated financial statements. During the year Capital Health received $623 (2008 -
$10,085) and disbursed $679 (2008 - $9,201) for capital and facility repairs for non-owned
facilities. The balance of funds held by Capital Health is $1,003 (2008 - $1,059).

Capital Health also receives trust funds from Alberta Health and Wellness for certain special
programs that are not reported in the consolidated financial statements. The balance of funds
held by Capital Health at the end of 2008/09, including interest where applicable, was $215
(2008 - $1,715).

Employee Future Benefits (thousands of dollars)
(i) Pension Obligation

Capital Health participates in the Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP), which is a
multi-employer defined benefit plan. The pension expense recorded in these financial
statements is equivalent to Capital Health annual contributions payable. In the current
fiscal year, employer contribution rates were 8.46% for earnings up to the Year’s
Maximum Pensionable Earnings (YMPE) and 11.66% for earnings above YMPE. The
LAPP Board of Trustees cautions that depending on LAPP’s return on investments over
the next few years and other factors such as interest rates, retirement rates and other
demographic cost changes, further rate increases could be necessary. At December 31,
2008 LAPP reported a deficiency of $4,413,971 (2008 - deficiency of $1,183,334).
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Note 18

Employee Future Benefits (amounts in thousands of dollars) (continued)

(i)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Capital Health has a non-contributory defined benefit supplemental executive
retirement plan for certain management staff. There are no cash payments made to staff
relating to this plan until their retirement. The plan is secured by a letter of credit from
a financial institution. The plan’s assets are held in a refundable tax account with the
Canada Revenue Agency. An actuarial valuation of the accrued benefit obligation is
completed at the end of each calendar year. The obligation and pension expense can
vary with changes in actuarial assumptions used to estimate the obligation.

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars)

Accrued benefit obligation

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 7,121 $ 5,719
Current service cost 414 450
Interest cost 395 343
Prior service cost - 431
Actuarial (gain) loss (235) 305
Benefit payments (01) 27
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 6,994 $ 7.121

Reconciliation of funded status of accrued benelit lability

Plan deficit $ (6,844) $ 7.07)
Unamortized prior service costs 596 789
Accrued liability $ (6.248) _$ (6,228)
Current service costs 414 450
Interest cost 395 343
Amortization of prior service costs 193 193
Amortization of net actuarial loss/(gain) (235) 305

3 767 $ 1,291

Significant actuarial assumptions are as follows
2009 2008

Discount rate 7.00% 5.50%
Expected average remaining service life of employees 5.8 years 5.10 years
Salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

The above information is based on an actuarial valuation performed at December 31, 2008,

Plan assets
Market value of plan assets (held by Canada
Revenue Agency) $ 150 $ 104
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Note 18 Employee Future Benefits (continued)

(iii)

(i)

Pension Expense
Pension plan expense comprises the following:

2009 2008
(thousands of dollars})

Local Authorities Pension Plan $ 81,769 $ 70,554
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 767 1,281
$ 82,536 $ 71,845

Other Future Benefits

Basic life, accidental death and dismemberment, short term disability, long term
disability, extended health, dental and vision benefits are fully funded with benefits
carriers. Capital Health paid $38,318 (2008 - $33,129) and drew down its discretionary
reserves by $3,281 (2008 - $680 increase in discretionary reserves) resuliting in a total
expense of $41,599 (2008 - $33,809). Discretionary reserves of $10,739 (2008 -
$14,020) are held by the benefits carriers in interest bearing accounts and are included
in other receivables in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. There is no
actuarial valuation completed; however, the plan funding for expenses and required
reserves is based on actual experience.

Accumulated sick leave credits are calculated based on actual entitlements of current
employee staff who qualify for this benefit. A liability of $116 (2008 - $119) and
expense of $3 (2008 - $25) is recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

Supplementary unemployment benefit expense is based on actual payments and an
accrual for incurred by not reported claims. A liability of $347 (2008 - $353) and
expense of $1,515 (2008 - $1,540) is recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 19

Note 20

Note 21

Note 22

Transition Costs

As at March 31, 2009, Capital Health recorded incremental transition and restructuring
expenses, related to the transition to Alberta Health Services, consisting of severance and
termination benefits (Schedule 2), retention payments, professional services and consulting
costs.  These expenses are included in Support Services and Administration in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations. Additional incremental expenses related to the
transition to Alberta Health Services are also reported and disclosed in the financial statements
of East Central Health.

Severance
Related Other Total
(thousands of doilars)
Liability as at March 31, 2008 3 - $ - $ -
Expenses 5,606 554 6,160
Payments made during the year (5,023) (314) (5,337)
Liability as at March 31, 2009 $ 583 3 240 3 823
Unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ~ $ - $ 6,844 3 6,844

East Central Health received $80 million in funding from Alberta Health and Wellness for the
costs of AHS transitioning and Capital Health has recorded a receivable from East Central
Health for the transition costs incurred as described above.

The transition grant restrictions include payments for the unfunded status of Capital Health’s
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. Capital Health has recorded a receivable from East
Central Health for the amount of the accrued benefit obligation less plan assets at the end of
the year.

New Governance Structure

On May 15, 2008, the Minister of Health and Wellness restructured the governance model of
health services delivery in Alberta. A single common board replaced the board members of
each of Alberta’s nine regional health authority boards, Alberta Mental Health Board, Alberta
Cancer Board, and Alberta Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission, Effective April 1, 2009, all
the entities, including Capital Health, will be disestablished and all the assets, liabilities, rights
and obligations of these entities will be assumed by East Central Health, whose name will
change to Alberta Health Services (“AHS™).

Comparative Figures

Certain 2008 figures have been reclassified to conform to 2009 presentation.

Approval of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been approved by the Alberta Health Services Board.
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Schedule 1
CAPITAL HEALTH
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2009
(thousands of dollars)
2009 2008
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 11)
Salaries, honoraria, benefits, allowances and severance (Schedule2) 1,564,239 $ 1,605,142 S 1,394,968
Contracts with health service operators 820,373 893,392 770,304
Medical, consulting and other professional services 223,450 258,146 209,193
Medical and surgical supplies 125,173 139,125 119,212
Drugs and gases 91,265 89,919 86,919
Contracts under the Health Care Protection Act 5,637 4,901 4,684
Other™" 301,463 305,216 281,904
Amortization:
Capital equipment - internally funded 32,000 <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>